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Directors and Corporate Information
EEREEER
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Closure of Register of Members

FEPEROBFERT

- Annual General Meeting
RERBFRS
Record Date
EREz =R

- Proposed Final Dividend
EEARARE

Record Date
Fo8% H A

29th August 2018 (Wednesday) to 3rd September 2018 (Monday)
—E-NENBZ+NA (EH=) ZEZZE—-N\FHAA=H (EH-)

3rd September 2018 (Monday)

—E-N\FhA=H(EH—)

7th September 2018 (Friday) to 11th September 2018 (Tuesday)
—E-N\FhALR (EHE) Z=FE-N\FEhA+—H (EHD)

11th September 2018 (Tuesday)
—ZEZ-)\FhA+—H (EHI)

Annual General Meeting

RERBFRE

at 3:00 p.m., 3rd September 2018 (Monday)

Granville Room, Lower Lobby Level, Conrad Hong Kong, Pacific Place,
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

R=ZZE-N\FhB=H (EH—) TF=KIE
BEEBEEEISNANES  FEBBEE  KRERESHE

Final Dividend Payable
KBRS

21st September 2018 (Friday)
—ZE-)\FHhAZ+—RH (EHH)
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Financial Highlights

IR RE

Year Ended 31stMarch B8Z=BA=+—HILFEE

Results
.
MR
2018 2017
—g-\F —T—tF %
HKS million  HK$ million Change
BEHET BEHET ERalr X
Revenue A 6,465 5,406 +20
Gross Profit EF| 3,420 2,873 +19
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest ARetFSHEA - BEHA -
Income, Finance Costs, Income Tax, FriS®i - ITE - #eE
Depreciation, Amortisation and BAREEE AT
Share of Losses of Joint Venture) E5iERI &R
(TEBITDAJ) 1,063 1,083 -2
Profit Attributable to Equity RRATREREA
Shareholders of the Company FE{EER 586 618 -5
Basic Earnings per Share (HK cents) BRERZF (B 55.5 58.9 -6
Total Dividends per BREBRARE
Ordinary Share (HK cents) (BAL) 35.2 35.1* +0.3
* Special dividend of HK4.2 cents per ordinary share had been included in FY2016/2017. BN CE—LHBFEEESNREEREERA2BL -
Year Ended 31stMarch #Z=B=+—HILEE HK$ million B¥HE T
Revenue Gross Profit
KA EF
7,000 — 6,465 4,000 —
3,420
6,000 5,552 5406 3,500
5,052 ’ | 2826 2,873
5000 —~ 4494 3,000 2,511
4,000 |- 2,500 = 2175
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0 0
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EBITDA Profit Attributable to Equity

Rt FIEWA - BERZA - FIBHR - 7 Shareholders of the Company
E BHEARFLEEQARERARFN AATRESEAEGER

1,200 = 1083 1,063 0o 618
’ 586
1,000 |- 600 - 531
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800 |- 725 >00
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Financial Highlights
R REE

Asat31stMarchiR=A=+—H

Financial Position

B AR R
Total Assets BEE
Net Cash Balance B EE
Total Equity Attributable to Equity AATREFEA
Shareholders of the Company P L E R

Year Ended 31st March2018 B Z—E—N\E=A=+—HILEE

Sales Analysis by Location

HEBES T (RBE)

2%

B Mainland China Bl it

57%

B singapore Fins

2018
—E-N\F
HKS million
BERER

5,182

958

2017
—E—tF %
HK$ million Change
BEEET ERalid-x)
4,487 +15
644 +49
2,471 +18

[] Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)
BRER (58 BFAREOD)
B Australia and New Zealand S % #7705 88
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Chairman’s
Statement

FEHRE

In FY2017/2018, the Vitasoy Group has
delivered strong performance ahead of our

original target especially in our Mainland
China Operation whilst staying focused on
our “Sustainable Growth” strategy.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited experienced a growth
acceleration in FY2017/2018, building on high momentum of our
Mainland China Operation, solid growth in our other geographies
and favourable currency appreciation.

Excluding the one-off gain of the divestiture of North American
Mainstream and SAN SUI business in FY2016/2017 (the “North
American divestiture”), the Group achieved 21% growth in
revenue to HK$6,465 million, or 18% on a constant currency basis.
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company increased by
14% to HK$586 million.

In light of the Group’s healthy financial position and strong
business growth, the Board will recommend a final dividend of
HK31.4 cents per ordinary share (FY2016/2017: a final dividend
of HK27.1 cents per ordinary share and a special dividend of
HK4.2 cents per ordinary share) at the Annual General Meeting
to be held on 3rd September 2018. Together with the interim
dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share (FY2016/2017: an
interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share), this brings
the total dividend for FY2017/2018 to HK35.2 cents per ordinary
share (FY2016/2017 total dividend: HK35.1 cents per ordinary
share).

A Vision For Sustainable Growth

Over the years, the Group has maintained a clear vision: to provide
high-quality, great tasting and nutritious food and beverages to
our customers. Our strategy of “Sustainable Growth” has enabled
us to gradually expand our core business and consistently develop
innovative new products tomeetever evolving consumer demands
in existing markets. More importantly, the Group has integrated
sustainability in its operations to ensure our products portfolio
offering, resources use and operating policies progressively
increase contribution in these areas.

HPEREEERATNN=Z—t =ZF-N\
PMRFEEBRENEER  TEEHERNBE
BB RIDERY -t L Hfbih BRI
REBANOEREE -

MR RR-T—R /2 —tHHEELEL
EMERERRINKZIEER ([HELEMNS
H]) M—RElE  AEBRABR21%EE
#6,465,000,000 7 * HREEEREETEH
8215 18% MY FHIE © AN A TR AEIS B A FE(R =T
10 14% %= 7% # 586,000,000 TT °

ENFEEPBRRRBRAXBEREY  ES
EER-FE-NFAAZRETHRREFRE
FEBRERBRESREERIL4EM (ZF
—R/ZE-LHREE  RPREEREBER
27 1B R SRR EBREBER 4.2781L) - ER
FHRESREBERISEW (ZT—K =%
—tHBEE  FHRESREER38EW)
2 /R \BREFEREARKEDS
BREBIR 3528 (ZB—KR/ZEB—LWHF
EREAME  SREBERKR35.184) -

HAFEERVES
FEE-HERETNWESEW  AEFRHEEE
XRELELENRRERRR  [UHEER]K
BAEBRMELS HRZOEB R TERERIHN
HER LDERATSLIHEENEEES
R -FEENR  ARECETHFERRNESR
BMAREKzF  BRERES  EREARE
EHRREYRBELSNE ©
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Performing Across Geographies

Mainland China delivered particularly strong performance during
the year, with revenue increased 39% to HK$3,700 million. Given
this acceleration, the Group expects more moderate growth in
FY2018/2019.

Net of the North American divestiture under Hong Kong
Operation, revenue grew 2% to HK$2,159 million. Investment
in the business is laying a firm foundation for continued future
growth.

In Australia and New Zealand, the Group continued to grow its
business, with revenue up 6%. VITASOY retained its market
leadership position in plant milk in Australia.

In Singapore, revenue increased by 3% to HK$104 million,
maintaining its market leadership position in the tofu business.

The Group’s joint venture in the Philippines has delivered an
encouraging business performance after the first few months of
operation.

The Year Ahead

We will continue our efforts to grow sustainably and invest in
our brands, organisation and infrastructure to protect our long
term intended position. As the markets become more crowded
and competitive, Vitasoy Group stay committed to focus on
sustainable growth and continuous strengthening of its brand
equities and organisational capabilities.

8 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #th i EIFR EEEH R A 7
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Appreciation and Welcome

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO retired as our Non-executive Director on
1st October 2017. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express
my gratitude to Ms. Lo for her valuable guidance and contributions
to Vitasoy Group during the past years.

| also wish to take this opportunity to welcome our new Board
members again. Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG, Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
and Ms. May LO, who have joined the Board since 24th June 2017,
and Mr. Eugene LYE who has joined us as Executive Director since
1st October 2017. | am confident that with the support of new
Board members, Vitasoy Group will be able to achieve innovation,
sustainability and growth.

I would like to express my gratitude to the Board, the management
team and our staff for their commitment and enthusiasm, as well
as our shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners
for their ongoing support.

Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman
15th June 2018

BREAZIER-ZE—tFT+A-RRESHEH
TES - AANERRESERBELINBESF
HEMDEEFRFLH 2 BEERERERMRRH
RATEUREBRBOHEINESSHE - &
SFEL BRAXRERBEZZIER-ZE
—tFERAZTHAEMAESES  MBHLELE
BR=ZE—tF+A-—HMAESSEEHTE
B ANRE  BENESERENMA - £
MEERUIERAFN  THFEEREBERSE

=

FANERRVBHESS EHEBRRENLET
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Group Chief
Executive
Officer’s
Report/
Business
Review

EEI1THER
#ﬁt’:/ el

The Vitasoy Group has achieved accelerated

growth ahead of our original plan, with all
operating subsidiaries having registered
revenue growth in FY2017/2018.
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARMRE FEKOE

The Group accelerated its performance in FY2017/2018 ahead
of its original target whilst staying focused on its “Sustainable
Growth” strategy which emphasises scale growth that is
sustainable for the business results, the organisation and our
contribution to the environment. Excluding the one-off gain of the
divestiture of North American Mainstream and SAN SUI business
in FY2016/2017 (the “North American divestiture”), the Group
recorded an increase in revenue of 21%, primarily driven by
Mainland China, solid results in other operations and favourable
currency appreciation. Net of the North American divestiture,
profits from operation increased by 24%, mainly driven by high
sales volume in the context of high capacity utilisation.

Preparing the business for the future, the Group continues
to increase investments in brand equity to enhance Vitasoy’s
brand awareness, trial and market position across all operating
geographies. We are also securing the appropriate capital
expenditures to support growth, and have announced a new
plant in Changping Town of Dongguan City located in Guangdong
Province of Mainland China, as well as a comprehensive
2-year investment program in Hong Kong to upgrade logistic
and production capability. Further investments in digitisation
are driving improved efficiencies across departments and
geographies, better synchronisation with suppliers and customers,
and stronger data analysis for more agile actioninthe marketplace.

As for our corporate positioning of Tasty, Plant-based Sustainable
Nutrition, we have increased attention and intensity on our
sustainability strategy and have accelerated progress in
FY2017/2018 so that we are already ahead of our original
KPIs on portfolio and resources which we had originally set for
FY2020/2021. We will reset and broaden these goals during
FY2018/2019 to ensure we accelerate our positive nutrition,
environmental and community contribution. The details are
included in our fourth Sustainability Annual Report.

The Operating Environment

Going forward, our growth must be supported by appropriate
investments in brand equity and infrastructure as we scale up the
Company in the context for more competitive markets. Whilst
our markets see increased proliferation, fragmentation, and
price competition, we also see sustained interest in high quality
health and nutrition and we are confident of our expertise and
competitive advantage evolved over the years.

Rising price of raw materials will increase pressure on margins,
which we will need to offset via economies of scale, innovation in
portfolio and operating efficiencies.

FEER-Z—t —E2-\BRFEBRER

BRAMEREAEEBREANER - BFHE
EXR[URHEER ] R ZERBAFEEHE
A ASRBRERENERME I ERTEEN
BEIER - R RRZB—R/ 22— tHH
FEHELEMEREB RILKMEET (TH
EAEMNBE]) M- EWRE AREHES
21%WARER - TEZHERM - HMEBHNR
REEREEHENBNEZHATE © AR
HELEMNER  KEBEFIBR24% TEFR
AEEFNBERSHESBLUEM -

RBRARARER  AEEEEMNEREREE
B URARGHENEELEBENRBENSE
E - AREREED RS - HMATSREE
MEAFZEEUPEKER  FHCEMESD
BNiEREREm % FREZNEE  LEE
BETHAEMFNGESREER - BYWRRERE
FARL o BINBIB L FENREETRABRPIR
HWENMER  REEREERETFRED K MEH
BoWeEn » SARKE AT S LEHEBEN
FE21TE -

EREMREK - EYRSBENEEERZE
EENL BRPR=Z2—t =2 \PHF
B EMEEWIRATAFERRREKE  ER
SHRMR > FEEKBB-T-F “F=—HK
FERENEREERERBRRRERZ - BM
BR-ZFB-N\/ ZE-NABRFEERT LLR
RZZEEE BREMEMRELE BRRE
BLIEFHETRER - BEFBHEREMANED
DAFEBRRFEREA

RERIR

RERR - BEERZE LD TRRUEN BN
mEHRT  RMASAEBEERERMEERE
BRERIGEFER - BEMSRE - 28R
ERLFASZER RAEBREBEHELERE
REBTHFERSED  HURMHUESZER
BMNERNMBNFFEZRARED -

R RER LIRS /BARIBFED - BRER
bt BMEAZBEREASHARRELE - AIH
AR AR R BRI A LR
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE FEKOE

Financial Highlights

The financial position of the Group remains healthy. Key financial
indicators including revenue, gross profit margin and return on
capital employed all reflect the solid position of the business. The
following table presents the Group’s key financial highlights for
the years ended 31st March 2018 and 31st March 2017:

Revenue ON

Revenue (excluding the one-off N
gain of the North American (R ELEMNBEN —RM
divestiture) W)

Gross Profit EF

Gross Profit (excluding the E7
one-off gain of the North (MR ELEMBER — R
American divestiture) W)

EBITDA (Earnings Before RETREWA - BERA -
Interest Income, FE® - E - BHEER
Finance Costs, Income Tax, RFEEZ A REEI B
Depreciation, (TEBITDA])

Amortisation and Share of

1,063
1,063

MBERE
REBNWTEMRTRISER - TEHKEE H
FEERA - EFENERBRE  HRMHEE
BWEKMR - TREJAEFEHZ-_T—N\F
=A=t-—-HAR=ZE—+tFE=A=+—HILEE
ZEEMBERHE

Year ended 31 st March
BE=A=1+—-HLEFE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —B—tF
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) Change
(BEEET) (BEEET) =]

6,465 5,406 +20%
6,465 5,360 +21%
3,420 2,873 +19%
3,420 2,863 +19%

Losses of Joint Venture) 1,083 -2%
EBITDA (excluding the one-off EBITDA

gain of the North American (NBRE S EMEBN —R M

divestiture) I a) 896 +19%
Profit Attributable to KN T RESEE AELRR

Equity Shareholders of the

Company 586 618 -5%
Profit Attributable to AR BRERSE AEEER

Equity Shareholders of the (MBREELEMNBERN —R T

Company (excluding the W)

one-off gain of the North

American divestiture) 586 516 +14%
Basic Earnings per Share (HK BREARZEF (B(L)

cents) 55.5 58.9 -6%
Basic Earnings per Share (HK EREAREF (Bl)

cents) (excluding the one-off (PR EAL ENBIEM — M

gain of the North American a)

divestiture) 55.5 491 +13%
Gearing ratio BELL=E 1% 8% -7% points

BoE

ROCE (Return on capital =B 35% 39% -4% points

employed) BoH

12 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7




Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE FEKOE

Revenue

For the year ended 31st March 2018, the Group’s revenue
increased by 20% to HK$6,465 million (FY2016/2017: HK$5,406
million), and increased by 21% when excluding the one-off gain
of the North American divestiture. Mainland China and overseas
subsidiaries have been positively improved by appreciation of
local currencies after translation into Hong Kong Dollars.

Mainland China: +39% (+35% in local currency)

The Mainland China business achieved exceptional performance
during the year. The Group’s “Go Deep Go Wide” strategy has
delivered robust growth in all geographical regions, also aided by
acceleration of our e-commerce sales.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports):

On par with previous year (+2% net of the North American
divestiture)

Product innovation on both brands VITASOY and VITA sustained
our highly developed Hong Kong business, which registered
moderate growth after taking into account of the net of the North
American divestiture.

Australia and New Zealand: +6% (+2% in local currency)
The Group continued to grow its business in Australia and New
Zealand behind an integrated marketing campaign and new
product offering.

Singapore: +3% (On par with last year in local currency)
In Singapore, the Group maintained its market leadership in

tofu. It continues to grow its premium VITASOY brand tofu and
innovation of products.

WA

BE-ZE2-—N\F=ZA=+—HBLEFE &A&EH
B UL A 32 10 20% = 38 #5 6,465,000,000 T (=&
—R/ZE- LW BEE  B% 5406000000
T) o AT REELEMNBEMN R R -
Al3EMN21% - BRI A EEITE BB EAENR
A FERAREINEATNBASE2RE -

HERH : +39% (LB & ¥t E +35%)
FR > PEAMERRERE - XEBRIFIT
HNIEREFE|EBRRBIT 22BN MEEFE
BHEMRER  FIEHEMSTREAY) -

BEBRE (B8 BFIRHO) : BEFRR
FEE (g ot R H &L ZMETRRR +2%)

N7 EERNANBMERRREBR
RANTBER  BRTRHELENEER - &
BEBEERNER

BONR IR - +6% (U EHEWTHE +2%)
FEEZEBEATSEETERNERNEDL
SERRERMN R BT

F - +3% (U EM E M EXRE K F
HE)
AEBEI RN TR E RS TS EE
fi - MR IS S T B R AN EG WSS
ERE o
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE FEKOE

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year FY2017/2018 was HK$3,420
million, representing an increase of 19% over the previous year
(FY2016/2017: HK$2,873 million), driven by increase in sales
volume.

Gross profit margin sustained at 53% in FY2017/2018
(FY2016/2017: 53%). Although commodity prices particularly
sugar, milk powder and paper carton were unfavourable to us,
improved manufacturing efficiency resulting from increased sales
volume enabled us to maintain our gross margin level.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased by 17% to HK$2,625 million
(FY2016/2017: HK$2,250 million), due to enhanced advertising
and promotion activities, higher staff related and logistics
expenses.

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses increased by 16% to
HK$1,729 million (FY2016/2017: HK$1,492 million), mainly due
to increased investment in enhancing consumer communication
and our brand equity. Logistics expenses were higher as a result
of increased sales volume. As we gradually expanded our business
in Mainland China, we have increased our scale of sales team and
therefore increased staff cost and commission expenses.

Administrative expenses increased by 15% to HK$559 million
(FY2016/2017: HK$488 million), reflecting salary inflationary
adjustments; enhanced organisational capacity and capabilities,
and higher professional fee for properly planning and executing
our digitisation initiatives.

Other operating expenses were HK$337 million, versus HK$270
million for the previous year. The increment included partial
impairment of goodwill in Singapore business as we expected the
growth rate for the business to be lower than our initial plan under
intensified market condition.

14 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE FEKOE

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Income, Finance
Costs, Income Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
and Share of Losses of Joint Venture)

EBITDA for the year was HK$1,063 million, decreased by 2%
year-on-year. Excluding the one-off gain of the North American
divestiture, EBITDA increased by 19%, mainly driven by higher
gross profit.

The EBITDA to revenue margin for the year was 16%.

Profit From Operations

Profit from operations decreased by 3% to HK$822 million.
Excluding the one-off gain of the North American divestiture,
profit from operations increased by 24%, mainly contributed by
higher gross profit.

Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation decreased by 5% to HK$803 million
(FY2016/2017: HK$844 million). Excluding the one-off gain of
the North American divestiture, profit before taxation increased
by 22%.

Taxation

Income tax charged for the year was HK$161 million (FY2016/
2017: HK$190 million) with an effective tax rate of 20%. The
effective tax rate net of North American divestiture was 16% last
year and the increase was in line with the increase in operating
profit in Mainland China.

Non-controlling Interests

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests increased to
HK$56 million (FY2016/2017: HK$35 million), reflecting the
increase in net profits of certain non-wholly-owned subsidiaries.
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AIZF ([EBITDA])

F A WEBITDA & 3 % 1,063,000,000 7T » 1% £
T 2% ° fiif R et R H &L EMBBEA — KUK
% BIEBITDA EFH 19% @ EigHnEEHRRER
EAFTER

FRMEBITDALIEERIEZEE 16% ©

il

K& HERT B 3% £ 8 # 822,000,000 7T © fiff T
TR HELENBEN — RN BIEEET
1N 24% - BRI EBHNEFRIG AR

RR%E A28

BB AT s R T Bk 5% 2 78 ¥ 803,000,000 7T (=
TR/ ZE-LHMHREE : %% 844,000,000
T o AT REELEMNBEMN R MERE -
BIBRFLADRFI £ F 22% ©

HIE

FRETHNE TS5 A& % 161,000,000 T (=
TR/ ZE-LHMHREE : %% 190,000,000
7)) BEREE20% - T RHEEEEMNS
B AENEEBIRE 16%  HIBREEDE A
FEERFIR IR — B -

FEERER

3F 1% IR #E %5 FE {5 5% R 45 hn £ 7B % 56,000,000
T(ZE-—R/ZZE—LtHBREE: B
35,000,000 7T) * RMETFTHREZEMBE L TN
FIIE N o

Annual Report 2017/2018 FE &

15



16 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efth 3B &£

Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE FEKOE

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$586 million, representing a decrease of 5% compared to
previous year (FY2016/2017: HK$618 million). Excluding the
one-off gain of the North American divestiture, profit attributable
to equity shareholders increased by 14%.

Financial Position

We finance our operations and capital expenditure primarily
through internally generated cash as well as banking facilities
provided by our principal bankers.

As at 31st March 2018, our cash and bank deposits amounted
to HK$986 million (31st March 2017: HK$853 million). 39%,
35% and 23% of our cash and bank deposits were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (HKD), Renminbi (RMB) and United States
dollars (USD), respectively (31st March 2017: 66%, 24% and
7%). As at 31st March 2018, the Group had a net cash balance of
HK$958 million (31st March 2017: HK$644 million). Available
banking facilities amounted to HK$941 million (31st March 2017:
HK$931 million) to facilitate future cash flow needs.

The Group’s borrowing (including obligations under finance
leases) amounted to HK$28 million with all denominated in
Australian dollars (AUD) (31st March 2017: HK$209 million,
with HK$200 million denominated in Hong Kong dollars (HKD)
and HK$9 million denominated in AUD). Fixed rate borrowings
amounted to HK$0.9 million, with an effective interest rate of
7.5% for obligations under finance leases.

The gearing ratio (total borrowings/total equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company) decreased to 1% (31st
March 2017: 8%) as the Group repaid most of the borrowings by
its internally generated cash.

The Group’s return on capital employed (ROCE) (EBITDA/average
non-current debt and equity) for the year was 35% (FY2016/2017:
39%). The decrease in ROCE was mainly due to the non-recurring
gain from the North American divestiture in previous year.
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Capital expenditure incurred during the year increased to HK$428
million (FY2016/2017: HK$197 million), which was mainly spent
on acquisition of new production lines and upgrading of existing
production machineries in both Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Assets with a carrying value of HK$3 million (31st March 2017:
HK$65 million) were pledged under certain loans and lease
arrangements.

Non-financial Key Performance Indicators

The Group publishes various non-financial key performance
indicators (KPIs) in the “Sustainability Report 2017/2018”, which
will be released in July 2018 and dispatched to shareholders
together with this Annual Report. Our KPIs focus on two main
vectors of action: i) product portfolio enhancements in plant-
based nutrition and reduction of fat and sugar content, and ii)
resources management (water, fuel, electricity) and internal and
external environmental policies.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s overall financial management policy focuses on
controlling and managing risks, covering transactions being
directly related to the underlying businesses of the Group. For
synergy, efficiency and control, the Group operates a central cash
and treasury management system for all subsidiaries. Borrowings
are normally taken out in local currencies by the operating
subsidiaries to fund their investments and partially mitigate the
foreign currency risks.

The financial risks faced by the Group were mainly connected
with uncertainties in interest rate and exchange rate movements.
At the close of FY2017/2018, the Group entered into foreign
exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency risks for the
receipt of royalty and dividend income in Australian dollars from
our Australian operation.
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SETHRARBRE FEKOE

Potential Risk and Uncertainties

During the year, the Group Internal Audit and Risk Management
Department implemented a phased enhancement plan to further
improvetheGroup’sinternalcontrolandriskmanagementsystems.
The plan aims to embed a risk management process into the day-
to-day operations of the Group. Through the risk management
process facilitated by Group Risk Management, business entities
and functional units effectively anticipate potential risks by
evaluating their impacts and likelihood according to six clusters:
reputation, strategy, market, liquidity, credit and operation. After
consolidation and verification, the Enterprise Risk Management
Executive Committee (“ERM Executive Committee”) comprising
of senior management of the Company, evaluates and prioritises
key risks, and ensures that appropriate control measures are in
place or in progress. A quarterly group risk report is provided for
discussion with the ERM Executive Committee; and significant
and emerging risks, as well as the associated control measures,
are communicated with the Audit Committee. Subsequent to
the roll-out at the Group and Company level in Hong Kong in
FY2016/2017, the framework was rolled out to all subsidiaries
during FY2017/2018. Details of the new risk management process
are covered in the Risk Management section of the Corporate
Governance Report in this Annual Report.
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Review of Operations
Mainland China

“Go Deep Go Wide” strategy delivers accelerated growth in
sales and profit

S AC)
Bl A it
[ERERE | FB BB HERBFIRRBE

2018 2017
—EBE-N\F Z—ZT—+tF
2018 2017 % Change Group Contribution %
—E-N\F Z—Z—+tHF BHotEH hAEEERBEILL
(HK$ million) (B¥EER)
Revenue from external REIEREE Z WA
customers 3,700 2,666 +39 49
Profit from operations il 542 317 +71 40
(RMB million) (AREBEER)
Revenue from external REIEEEZBA
customers 3,118.7 2,318.7 +35
Profit from operations KRR 457 276 +66
Vitasoy China accelerated growth across all regions and the HHPPETERERBREFEERETHESA

e-commerce channel. During FY2017/2018, Vitasoy China
achieved 39% growth in revenue and 71% improvement in profit

from operations.

The main drivers of growth were favourable margins and
expansion of sales volume, in addition to continuous improvement
in efficiency. Our previous investments in enhancing brand equity
on both brands, VITASOY and VITA, contributed to the overall
result.

With accelerating revenue resetting a stronger base for the
future, the Group has announced the development of our
new production facility in Changping Town, Dongguan City of
Guangdong Province. This program is progressing smoothly, and
production is expected to commence by April 2021.
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Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports)

Stable business, investing for future development

BERE (8 RFMXRHEA)

RERERE  REARZE

2018 2017
—B-N\F CZEB—iHF

2018 2017 % Change Group Contribution %
—BE-NFE CZEZ—tHF FHIHLEH HEEEERBESL

(HK$ million) (B¥EET)
Revenue from external REIEREE ZWA

customers 2,168 - 40
Profit from operations Py 352 381 -8 48
Revenue from external REINEREE ZWA

customers (net of North (FetREELE

American divestiture) INZERE) 2,122 +2 39
Profit from operations KRR (RFT R

(net of North American EdEMNEE)

divestiture) 384 -8 48

Revenue from Hong Kong Operation were flat. Net of the
North American divestiture, they increased by 2%. Profit from
operations decreased by 8% mainly due to the investment made
as part of the Group’s 2-year program to upgrade production and
logistics infrastructure.

VITASOY maintained its dominant market share in the plant-
based category, riding on the strong performance of our core
and innovative products. We continued to expand our portfolio
by introducing new plant milk category VITASOY CALCI-PLUS
Almond Milk and VITASOY CALCI-PLUS Coconut Milk. This
year we have also introduced an upgraded, more concentrated
version of our VITASOY CALCI-PLUS Plant-Sterol Soy Milk to
accommodate increasing demand towards our premium and
healthy products.

In August 2017, Macau business was severely impacted by
Typhoon Hato. Nevertheless, the business turned around and
delivered strong set of results, leveraging increased number of
tourists visiting Macau.

The export business also performed well as a result of expansion
in outlet coverage and attractive in-store executions.
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Australia and New Zealand

Solid improvement in performance and brand equity

L&
EEREEpEEEETER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
2018 2017 % Change Group Contribution %
—E-N\F CZZ—tF FHILEH hAEEEERBE S
(HK$ million) (B¥EET
Revenue from external REIEEE WA
customers 472 9
Profit from operation il 87 11
(AUD million) (BrTHEET)
Revenue from external REIEREE WA
customers 81 +2
Profit from operation R R 14.96 +5

The Australia and New Zealand business delivered 6% revenue
growth, while profit from operation increased by 9%, mainly
driven by increased sales in the supermarket channel.

During the year, the Australian business launched a new master
brand communication campaign with refreshed and unified
packaging across the entire product portfolio. The initiative
has been well received by the public and is helping maintain the
Group’s leadership position in the plant milk segment.

In FY2017/2018, the Australian business launched the new
Almond Milky and Coconut Milky product ranges, complementing
the hugely successful SOY MILKY range that was introduced to
the market in the early 2000s.
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Singapore

Continued market leadership in tofu and increasing
beverage market share

¥

15 TR 5 B9 BB (7 I HE A BRGR T 5 HY
1B

2018 2017
—B-N\F ZEB—iHF
2018 2017 % Change Group Contribution %
—E-NF ZE—tF BILEH HEEEERBESL
(HK$ million) (B¥EET)
Revenue from external REIEREE ZWA
customers 100.4 2
Profit from operation Py 11.52 1
(SGD million) (HTEETT)
Revenue from external REINMEREEZWA
customers 18 -
Profit from operation Pl 2.06 -38

Revenue from Vitasoy Singapore business maintained last year’s
level in local currency. Although competitors promoted with
deep discounting across the supermarket and convenience store
channels, we were able to sustain our revenue with the assistance
of well-established brand equity and effective communication
programs without discounting deeply.

Vitasoy Singapore maintained its market leadership in tofu
business despite changing consumer preference and competition
from cheaper imported tofu. Our imported beverage business
experienced some revenue softness but grew its market share in
supermarket sales.

We continued our innovation of new products for both tofu
and tea which is essential for us to maintain leadership position
and drive our business growth. For tofu, during the year we
launched VITASOY Chawanmushi, UNICURD Beancurd 500g
and UNICURD food service egg tofu. For tea, we have introduced
VITA Low Sugar Green Tea and VITA Low Sugar Jasmine Tea.

In order to scale up the business, Vitasoy Singapore increased
investment in advertising and promotion, infrastructure and
people which impacted profit from operation for the year,
resulting in a decrease of 36% versus FY2016/2017.
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Business Outlook

In the new fiscal year 2018/2019, we expect a more moderate
growth as we will be cycling an accelerated growth performance
of the just finished fiscal year 2017/2018, coupled with increased
investments in brand equities, organisation and infrastructure to
continue supporting our scale up behind our “Sustainable Growth”
strategy.

Mainland China

The Group expects Vitasoy China to gradually increase its growth
contribution. Our “Go Deep Go Wide” strategy has been effective
and therefore we plan to diligently pursue this balanced growth
going forward.

In the face of growing soya milk and plant based beverages’
increased competition and fragmentation, future efforts will
concentrate on building brand equity, improving our execution,
strengthening our organisation and securing the appropriate
investments to support our expansion.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports)

Vitasoy Hong Kong will continue to focus on increasing its very
high per capita consumption and market leadership across
segments. The Group has also embarked a 2-year investment
program to improve production capability and efficiency.

Australia and New Zealand

We anticipate competition in the plant milk category to intensify
with simultaneous price deflation on slowing segments and
selective revenue growth opportunities in innovation. We will
leverage our brand equity and portfolio innovation to drive scale
without deterioration in revenue per case.

Singapore

We will focus on maintaining our market leadership in tofu by
enhancing our premium VITASQY brand and relevant innovation,
whilst evolving the model for the beverage business.

The Philippines

The Group’s joint venture with Universal Robina Corporation has
justcommenced and has operated effectively inits first few months
of operation. The soy market is ripe for growth in the Philippines.
We will continue to build brand awareness to progressively scale
up our operations and provide meaningful contribution to our
Group results.
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Conclusion

Our Vitasoy's strategy of “Sustainable Growth” has delivered an
acceleration of growth during FY2017/2018, with very strong
revenue and profit performance in what is now our biggest
market, Mainland China. Although the operating environment in
our chosen markets continues to intensify, we are confident the
Group is well positioned to scale up by delivering our vision of
producing high quality, tasty and nutritious plant-based products.

As always, the Management Team and | most sincerely thank our
Executive Chairman and Board of Directors for their guidance and
invaluable insight, as well as our business partners and employees
for their commitment, professional work and meaningful
contribution during the year.

Roberto Guidetti
Group Chief Executive Officer
15 June 2018
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Awards and Recognitions

VeSS
Major Awards of Vitasoy International HMDBEIREBERATGR-F
Holdings Limited from 1st April 2017tothe —tFMA—HAZEXRFHRAHL
Date of this Annual Report RN X EHRIE

Hong Kong

B

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited

IR EEARA R

The “10 years Plus Caring Company” Logo from the Hong Kong Council of Social Services
BERBHSRBEHS AR [10F Plus B RREIR | Z35

“Diamond Enterprise Winner” in the “Quality Food Traceability Scheme 2017” from GS1 Hong Kong
BERBERFEBHSER [EERREREERME 22017 W [EARDHEE |

“LinkedIn Evolving Employer Award 2017 - Silver” from LinkedIn
BRIEBRMEE [ BRESEELZ 2017 - $REE ]

“International Award” in the “DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards 2017” from DHL and South China
Morning Post
EDHLRFMERREMRA (2017 FDOHL/ BERREBE £ | BHEE NEIMEERRE]

“Manpower Developer” in the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme” from the Employees Retraining
Board
EEEBEIFENN [ERBA A EEE | PEEHA AT BE]

Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet Limited
HEMRMREERARREBEREBRAA

Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet Limited were awarded the “Caring Company” Logo from
the Hong Kong Council of Social Services
HMXHREERAGAREBERERAGESBHLSREHSEE (AR REE 25

Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet Limited were awarded “Green Partner Appreciation
Certificate” in the “Green Monday” Programme
HMRBEERATREBERBRARLE [BETEREG S 0 2% AR

Hong Kong Gourmet Limited was awarded “Friendly Employment Award” and “Outstanding Inclusive Team
Award” in the Talent-Wise Employment Charter and Inclusive Organisations Recognition Scheme from the
Labour and Welfare Bureau, the Rehabilitation Advisory Committee, the Hong Kong Joint Council for People
with Disabilities and the HK Council of Social Service

BEEERAERARESIREFNRE REZHAZES BEERBHEREBLSRBHSELN (BreE - B2y
B) RERMBBEI TSP ERE [ REEAR | [ L L mERE ]
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Awards and Recognitions
ERES

Corporateft 2

Mainland China
B A

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company Limited
SEYIMEAE (E) RREHAERAT

“EcoPartner” and “EcoPioneer 3 Years +” in the “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2016”
from the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Bank of China Hong Kong
EEBIXAERPBREBERN [PREBLERRELANE2016] PEETA [RREGEHBMH] RE
[ [3F+2H] RREEERE ]

“Quality and Safety System Award” from Guangming New District Food and Drug Management Bureau,
Shenzhen

RERNIABFTERMMEREERRE [EENLZ2RAR ]

“Caring Company in Guangming District” from Guangming New District Working Committee and Guangming
Volunteers Association

REXAHBTFZEEERAPRIBESEEFA [KARSEB LXK

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited
MM (BhL) BRAQFE

“EcoPartner” in the “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2016” by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries and Bank of China Hong Kong

EEBIXAERDERTBERN [PREBLEERRALKAR2016] FEEHD [REGLBA]

“Advanced Safety Organisation of the Year” by Shixi Administration for Work Safety
KEMAREDUTA [FERRKESN]

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited
#My (L38) BRAF

“2016 Model Safety Organisation in Shanghai City” from Shanghai Municipality on Comprehensive Treatment
of Public Security Commission

KEDEMHERLRAREREZESETH [2016FE L8H R E N

Gold Award in the “Technology and Innovation Award 2017”, Progress Award in the “Development
Award 2017” and Best Award in the “Efficiency Award 2017” from the Working Committee of Zhongshan
Administration in Songjiang District and Zhongshan Administration of the People’s Government Office in
Songjiang District
BEMNIBFILHEIFZEERIVIBARBNRILETEHNSEMEE [2017FERLIE%E ]| - [2017F
ERRESR | K [2017FEREMELE ]

Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited
#fEs (FOF) BRAR

Recognition as “The Practice and Training Base for University Students in Wuhan City” from the Wuhan
Municipal Human Resources and Social Security Bureau

HBERETANERNESRERRZNTA [RETAZBEEEETIEM |

The “Best Employer Award 2017” in the “Best Employer Award in China” by Zhaopin.com

7 (20179 EFERERET | BEHBERERE [EREIREE]

“Excellent Organisation in Safe Production” from the People’s Government of Wuhan Municipality

RERNETARBAREDTS [REEEEFEN
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Singapore

g

Vitasoy International Singapore Pte Ltd.

“Food Safety Platinum Award” recognition from Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority of Singapore (AVA) because
of gaining “A” grade in the “Food Safety Excellence Scheme” for 20 consecutive years
BE0FRIIMERERARBNZE/AVAN [RYZ2 M E | BUSPETR  BERE [BRYZE
=k

Brand & &

VITASOY
302/

“Food Innovation Award” from Hong Kong Food Council

RETERMESSRE [ARRAIEKE]

VITASOY Black Soyabean Milk Launch Event was awarded the “Best Product Launch Event” in “The Marketing
Events Awards 2017” organised by Marketing Magazine

BMIDETNERBMIEE (Marketing Magazine) B [TIHEHEER2017| RS [REEMEM
EE ] R
“Outstanding Category Performance Award” in the “18th Favourite Brands Awards 2017” organised by
Wellcome

EERBAMGER 2 [2017FF18/E8BH SRR | PEMEE [ HERER]
“Touch Brands 2017” Award from East Touch Magazine
¥ (RTouch) ¥FEMEE [ Touchmh®2017] RI1E

“China CSR Award 2017” from JIEMIAN.COM
HERMBERETR2017FE [HEHEBREDLE ]

“The Most Favourite Milk Brand by Millions of Shenzhen Citizens 2018” recognized by Shenzhen Evening
News, Shenzhen ZAKER, and the panel of judges of the Millions of Shenzhen Citizens
LERYIBRER - RYIZAKER T BETRAFERZZA [208R)EETRESENIRGEM-E]

“Top 10 Supermarket Brands Award” in the “Super Brands Award 2017” organised by PARKNnSHOP
EEEBAMSENZ [BEmBEAE2017] PEES [T RKBEmE] 2—

VITASOY CALCI PLUS

IR E
“Outstanding Category Performance Award” in the “18th Favourite Brands Awards 2017” organised by
Wellcome
HERBAMGER 2 (2017 18/8BH SRR | PEME [ HEREER

“Superior Brands Award” in the “Super Brands Award 2017” organised by PARKnSHOP
EAREBAMS I [BEmEAE2017] PEES [E88HmAE
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VITA
F 3
VLT
31 eSS

“Top 10 Favourite Brands” in the “18th Favourite Brands Awards 2017” organised by Wellcome
EERBAMG TRz (20171888 SRR | PERD [TAEMmER] 2—

“Best Branded Entertainment Project Award” in the “iResearch Marketing Awards” organised by iResearch
Group
EHEBERY [F+-BeRENR| PERY [RERRTHRAR
“Branded Entertainment Bronze Award” organised by Shanghai International Advertising Festival
S BB EEEMEE [1RETEHIRLR ]
“Top 10 Supermarket Brands Award” in the “Super Brands Award 2017” organised by PARKNSHOP
EEEBATS TR [BEmEAE2017] vERA [T ABERE] 2—
“One Stage for All” Promotion
[— @R - RFEFHL | SE

“Interactive Creative - Offline APP Category (Silver)” in the “China Advertising Great Wall Awards 2017”
organised by China Advertising Association
EPEESHEEMN2 [2017FFEIESREAE | 7ES [EBHAIER - BRAPPE (RiE) |

“Excellence in Digital Marketing (Gold)” and “Excellence in Innovation (Silver)” in the “Marketing Excellence
Awards” organised by Marketing Magazine

£ {Marketing Magazine) B [BEHESMALR | PEMEE [HRERBEHE (£8) | R [REAH (R
®) |

“Cross-Platform Augmented Reality/Virtual Reality (Silver)” in “2017 ONE SHOW Greater China Awards”
organised by The One Club

#£The One ClubEjftz [2017 ONE SHOWHZERISHR | M [BFoEHERER/IEBRE (R
%) |

“Beverage - Non-Alcohol and Non-Carbonated (Silver)” in “Effie Awards Greater China” organised by China
Advertising Association

EHEERSEHEEPR 2 [ KPERIUIFER | PERE [0 - B KK IFRBE (RE) |

The following awards in the “Kam Fan Awards” organised by The Association of Accredited Advertising
Agencies of Hong Kong (HK4As):

EEEBEERHE (HK4As) itz [ £MES AR | FEMEEE T RIE ¢

- “Social Single - Influencer/Talent (Silver)”

-[B-HREE -SREMH/EA (RER) |

- “Mobile Single - Technology (Silver)”

-[EB—F# - B (R%E) J

- “Mobile Single - Apps (Silver)”

-[EB—F# - ERAEX (BF]) J
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- “Promo & Activation Single - Use of Product and Package Design (Bronze)”
-[E-—EERRE-ERREERXRTER (8351) |

- “Promo & Activation Single - Use of Mobile Marketing and Technology (Bronze)”
-[BE-—SERME - FREFERZIER (§82%) |

- “Media Single - Best Use of Mobile Devices (Bronze)”

-[EB—KEE - RERBHREEA (%) |

- “Direct Single - Use of Technology (Bronze)”

-[EB—ENEH - BHEA (%) |

- “Web Platform Single - Web Service/Apps (Bronze)”
-[B—REFE-@FLERKEERREN (§582) |

- “Promo & Activation Single - Use of Digital Platform (Merit)”
-[E—EERME - BBETFEER (BER) |

- “Media Single - Best Use of Technology (Merit)”

-[E—HE - RERRER (BEX)

- “Direct Single - Use of Mobile (Bronze)”

-[E—EWEHE-FHER (BE%) |
VITA No Sugar Tea
i fth AR S

“Superior Brands Award” in the “Super Brands Award 2017” organised by PARKnSHOP
EREBAMS IR [BEmEAE2017] PEES [E88HmAE ]

“Not Overdone” Promotion

[BEEBX] EF
“Best Event - Consumer”, “Best Use of Social Media” in “The Marketing Events Awards 2017” organised by
Marketing Magazine
£ (Marketing Magazine) #y [Ii5EHEE2017] REER [REEEETH] BR [RELRERE
BRI &

“Excellence in Print Marketing (Gold)” in “Marketing Excellence Awards” organised by Marketing Magazine
1£ (Marketing Magazine) By [MiHEHEIM AR | PES [REHREHE (1) |

“Beverage - Non-Alcohol and Non-Carbonated (Bronze)” in “Effie Awards Greater China” organised by China
Advertising Association

EHEESHEENH [KRPEBRIGEER | A [0 - B IFERBE (%) |

“Superior Brands Award” in the “Super Brands Award 2017” organised by PARKnSHOP
EEEBAMSENZ [BEmBEAE2017] PEER [ZEEBHmE ]

VITAHK Style
B R

“Touch Brands 2017” from East Touch Magazine
&¥E (FRTouch) ¥FEMEE [ Touchmh®2017] RI1E
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Corporate Governance Report
BEERRE

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is firmly
committed to a high level of corporate governance and adherence
to the governance principles and practices emphasising
transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness. These principles and practices are reviewed and revised
regularly as appropriate to reflect the ever changing regulatory
requirements and corporate governance development. The
Board of Directors (the “Board”) believes that the high standards
of corporate governance is the essential core for sustaining
Vitasoy Group’s long term performance and value creation for our
shareholders, the investing public and the other stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March 2018,
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Board of Directors

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees to
manage and oversee the specified affairs of the Company. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management power of the
Company to the Executive Directors and Senior Management of
the Company. However, full delegation is not allowed for some
specific matters under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the
Listing Rules, the CG Code or other regulatory requirements, and
the final decisions on those specific matters are required to be
taken by the whole board. A defined schedule of matters reserved
for Board decisions has been adopted by the Board as follows:

Long-term Strategic Plan
and Annual Budget

REIREEREIR
Approval of EEEE
Financial Reports

HUERI B E

Appointment
and Removal of
External Auditors
ZERBERINE
2 il
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Matters reserved for

the Board Decisions
AREEERFHAEZEE

HMDMEREEBRATE ([ARF]) BFaK
FHEEESR URWETIEAEAE  BY
BB - BEEQAF2ERRARER - A2
AEMEBEERRRIREITZERARER -
URRT S ESNEERERCEERRRE - &
E2HE  SRENEXEHEMDEBRRE
RERE  URAERR - DRREERHEME
EREBEMS DT IRRNERTE

TEERER
AKAAREBE=ZE-N\E=ZA=+—HLEEE
—HETERBMAREMERATAESLHR
Al (T EMHRAN]) M+ sz EERTA
(Me#EE~r ) P2FRIMES -

Exg
EFSREARNAEBCEREETHF  YEK
VAEzZEEREERERRNAFTEEHE 2
B ESERZALRAZHTESKSEER
ABEEEEARQNRAAESHE - Al RES
B (ARSI - EWRA - BEERFRIREA
REBRAE  BIRBEFRTAFEEET
ABE WEAHRRZBESSHEHBFEHRLR
E-EFECRANTRRCSEER  JHEAR
EEEEHREZSEA

Codes and Policies of Corporate Governance Practices
EEABRTRRBE
Significant Merger, Acquisition and Divestiture
BEAREBOERMHE
Significant Investment and Joint Venture Formation
EARERBIEGE QT
Notifiable and Connected Transactions
AT RIREERS
Provision of Significant Guarantee or Indemnity

BUEXERIERRE Y,

Corporate Governance
Practices and Significant
Financial Transactions
CEERERREKR
g ]

Appointment of Director,
Group Chief Executive
Officer and Company
Secretary, and approval of
Share Option Plans
ZEES  SETBESR
ANEWE WA
AR e
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The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to creating
value for our shareholders. The Boardisresponsible for developing
the strategic directions for the Company and continuous
monitoring of the performance of the general management of
the Company. Strategic planning is one of the Board’s important
functions for aligning mission and vision and a lot of focus and
attention have been devoted to such a plan. Strategic planning
horizons are generally three years. The Board has approved the
Three Year Strategic Plan for the fiscal years up to 2020/2021
in September of 2017 and has always been taking a proactive
role in reviewing and updating the Strategic Plans periodically
in response to changes in the macro economic and competitive
business environment.

ESENEUSRENEEEAEARBEIAR
DNAABRRAEEEZFdH - EESEEHFTE
NEZRBEMLE  THEERARARRERE
R - T RBRECHAESSERED M
SNEEREE  ESSEMFBIERBEHET
KRB - RERE-—REE=F - ESBFCR
—E—tFEAAMEBE-EE "2
BEEILL2=FKKRE X -HERERBLE
RHFUEBRE TR BREHBIK
EHTREERE o

Three Year Strategic Plan =&KX HEiR 2

Vision, OGSM,
Glidepath
E%Wiﬂfﬂgg Formulation Approval Implementation Review
REGETE . \ RN N
| = =
Board Composition EESHEK
Dr. the Hon.

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO

BUHBITESF

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI

BUHBITESE

£E

BUHHITEE

S L

BUHBITESF

B [B= | b- [ - | - Mg

Sir David Kwok-po LI

Mr.Jan P.S. ERLUND

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO

ERESLE S BERLLT
Executive Chairman B . . Non-executive Director
B Independent Non-executive Director HHTEE

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO

doh s | s BER L
xecutive Director and Group Chief . 5 . X
Executive Officer Indf{oende?_t Non-executive Director Non—z?iecut:ve Director
B EE BUHHITEE HHITEE
Mr. Anthony John
Mr. Eugene LYE . v Ms. May LO
Liddell NIGHTINGALE =
L St e BEELT
Executive Director B . . Non-executive Director
HTEE Independent Non-executive Director HHTEE

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG

Independent Non-executive Director

Annual Report 2017/2018 FE R &
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The designation, position and brief biographical information of
each Director, together with the relationship amongst each other,
Senior Management or Substantial or Controlling Shareholder
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section
in this Annual Report. In addition, a list containing the names of
the Directors and their roles and functions is published on the
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company at www.vitasoy.com.

The Independent Non-executive Directors almost represent half
of the Board which exceeds the Listing Rules requirement for one-
third.

Board Composition
EEEAK

3EDs
ZRHTES
(27%)

5 INEDs
G4 VA

(46%)

3NEDs
ZEFITES
(27%)

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors
and Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of the Board
functions.
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FUTES

BESE 2 BA - BA R EE LRI ESRE
BEEEAS  TBRRJERKRR ZEARET
REAFHRESRSEEERAS] —6 - I
BIESHERREz2ABRBREZIRETIE
REBBAEXZMAMRADTE ([BFT]) Bk

7R B4 U5 www.vitasoy.com °

BYFHITESLESTRARBEL 22—
BRETRAKE=S2—HER -

. Independent Non-executive
Directors (INED)
BUFHITESE

Non-executive Directors (NED)

FUTES

. Executive Directors (ED)
HITES

RAREREZEUFATESRE LHRAE
BIBRMHES N B UM B BFRRAE - K
NARBBRUFYPTESHERBIAL -

B (BRBIFITESRHFATES) 95
FEZMES 2 EAR MEREXRTE &
ESSEUBREESREITHBIAE -
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JJ:%E/EI:‘F

Analysis of Directors’ skill, knowledge and experience

- HIRE R &R D

BEE 2 REE

. General Management
E2de =]

. Accounting, Audit, Finance and
Risk Management

i i UBERERER
. Legal

EE
. Marketing

ISR
. Food Technology

BmEHE

IT/Technical
BB A

* 7 out of 11 are/were directors of local and/or overseas
listed companies

FUIBRESES TREEER SEAKMR HEMEH
AREEES

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in June 2013. The Board Diversity Policy
has been published on the Company’s website.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Board
appointment hasbeen,and will continueto be,made based on merit
as well as complementing and expanding the skills, knowledge
and experience of the Board as a whole, taking into account
experience, professional qualification, cultural, age, gender and
any other factors that the Board might consider relevant. The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee has established the
measurable objectives for achieving age and gender diversity
for the year of 2019/2020 which has been subsequently revised
in June 2017. As at the year ended 31st March 2018, progress in
achieving the objectives are:

EEEREZ L
BEEEN-ZT-ZF ARMKESERES T
X ETHIESEREZTCHENURE
HETNEBRAE - EBERESTLEED
FZRARBHY -

AARABESENES b 2ER  URA/A
REEEERRAERE EZCZABAREY
BEEBRRBEACHBEURESHERMNEES
SERBIHER ABRERAEL  WEEER
BAZBALS SXEK ULES - F& -
MAREMEMEETSRAEEZEZEL &
MRiEEZEEGEHETR =S - =2=F
FEERFRRMEAIZTCNAFERE  HiE
R-Z—tFRAGELHBT - RBE-Z—N
FZA=ZT—HLEEFER  EFZEEECEE
M
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Gender 4 Bl

Female representation during the year of 2017/2018 was 182% RZ-Z—+ /—FE—N\EE » MR KRED
which has achieved the target of “not less than 18%” set for the  18.2% » EX AT —h, —E_FEEF
year of 2019/2020. B[P 18% | 2B

(According to available statistics, female representation on boards of ~ (#R1Z AT 2 #55F &1E - LMK L EH
Hong Kong listed companies is 13%. The average number of female ~— L H A GJEEE > 13% o FHHE/R LH A A
directors per listed company is 1.) HE—ELMESE )

Age FiR

Average age of the board members during the year of 2017/2018 RZ=Z—+ ZZE-)\FE  EBEHEN
was 63 which has achieved the target of “60-65”set for the year P F @B 63% @ EHA-T—H,/=—Z=

of 2019/2020. ZEEEI (602 65m ] 2BHE -
Gender Age Group
4 7l FiRAE R

71-80 Years old
71-808%

61-70 Years old
61-705%

.%
.jz

51-60 Years old
51-605%

41-50 Yearsold
41-507%

Ethnicity
Bk

Chinese

Ey

Non-Chinese

FEH

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company
for the period from 1st October 2017 to 30th September 2018.
RIE—+tF+A—RBEZZE-NFAA=ZTHILLEE  FXRABERRAAEERITHAEREEERITHASEERE -
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Changes in Directors’ Information during the year ended 31st REZ=E-\F=ZA=+—HLEFERHER
March 2018 and up to the date of this Annual Report are set out FHROPILECEZTERNSBHIOT :
below:

Appointment of Independent Non-executive BYKHITESZ2ZEE

Director

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG EETEEL
- was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of - EEFAARARBIIEHITEE o
the Company.

Appointment of Non-executive Director FHMITESZEMRE

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO BERLE

- was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company. - BZERERRRIPITES
Appointment of Non-executive Director FHMITESZEMRE

Ms. May LO BHXZL

- was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company. - BZERERRRIPTES
Appointment of Executive Director HITESZEE

Mr. Eugene LYE Bl et

- was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company. - BZERERARBITES ©
Retirement of Non-executive Director FHITESZRME

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO BRELT

- retired as a Non-executive Director of the Company; and - BREAQBIHTEEZ K
- ceased to be a member of the Remuneration and Nomination - BHEARATHMRIEZEZEERE

Committee of the Company.

Changes in Major Appointments and Other FEZARHEMEERE22H

Directorships

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE BREHESE

- ceased to be a non-official member of the Commission on - BIEBEXKBREESSIFEHKE |
Strategic Development in Hong Kong;

- ceased to be a Hong Kong representative to the Asia Pacific - BMELR AL SAE (APEC) B ERHIESS
Economic Cooperation (APEC) Business Advisory Council and EBRERREBEBAPECE 5 HEKME/NE

chairman of The Hong Kong APEC Trade Policy Study Group; FE R
and
- was appointed as a member of The Chief Executive’s Councilof - EZEATHEEAIFR KK RER
Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development. 5 4=1)
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG EEFEL
- was appointed as the chairman of Vocational Training Council. - BEEABEINEBEIRE o
Changes in Directors’ Fees EEHez2H
There was a 3.8% increase in basic directors’ fees for FY2017/ A_F—+ —E- \BREEZERESR
2018. B8N 3.8% ©
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JJ:%E/H#

Executive Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer

Of‘flcer are clearly separate and defined

The roles of the Executive Chairman and Group Chief Executive
Officer of the Company have been clearly defined. Mr. Winston
Yau-lai LO serves as the Executive Chairman and is responsible
for providing leadership in the Board to set strategies to achieve
the Group’s goals. With the support from the Group Chief
Executive Officer and the Company Secretary, the Executive
Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly informed
of issues arising at Board meetings and provided with adequate
and accurate information in a timely manner. The Executive
Chairman promotes a culture of openness and encourages
Directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board’s
affairs so as to contribute to the Board’s functions and encourages
Directors with different views to voice their opinions. The Board,
under the leadership of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, has adopted a
formal corporate governance policy, with adherence to various
best practices and procedures. We have also established various
communication platforms to maintain an on-going dialogue with
our shareholders and the other stakeholders so as to allow them
to engage actively with the Company.

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, the Group Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the overall strategic planning, business
development and general management of all the Group’s
operations. The Group Chief Executive Officer is primarily
accountable to keep the Board apprised of the Company’s
business and financial performance, position and prospects by
providing Directors with a monthly management update.

EARQH

HBITEEREETHRAR

The roles and responsibilities of Executive Chairman and Group Chief Executive

TEFRERTRARZACRBECFEEI RAE

ARBZBTERREBITHRAR 2 ACEEE
RE - BEREEEREHTER  EEEEES
EHERBUERAEEZBEE - ERETHA
BERAAMEBHT UTEELBRREZEES
EEMRANSTESEER LRHZSE® I
ERERHEARERZEN - %ﬂ’fiﬁ?&@ﬁﬁ
B HBES2EREBHSHESS
=% HESSCREFEHER HﬂvsﬂﬁhhT
FBIRMBcEBERESR - %%éﬁ?éﬁ%gﬁiz
BAET EﬁéMIEEﬁZJ/L\%a/nIBZ% o I 38
ZHRKEERKERF - RATEE :‘L%ﬂﬂzﬁLm
B BRREHEMSOESERSBE  BMHM
BBIRABBAR DT EF -

THRBEESAEAEMEAEEEK
?éﬁa%ﬂl%%ﬁ% EBBRRABEETE - KH
THRARTFEZAESANEEEERGEHM 2EE
BHE REFSTHALAZEBRUBER
B RRRAIR ©
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Board Proceedings

The Board met five timesinfiscal year of 2017/2018 to discuss and
approve the overall business strategies; to review and monitor the
financial and operating performance of the Group and its business
units respectively; and to consider and approve the strategic plan,
annual budget, the financial reports and corporate governance
related policies and practices for the Group.

EEEERF

EFEN Tt —Z-\HBFEALES
BR o STRRAEREEERE  BERRERR
SERSERENCHBEREERR  UEER
EMAEECRERE FERE - UEHRER
HEECEESHEBEZBIRRER ©

2017 Board Meeting —E—tLFEEE S5

June « Approved Annual Results « Approved Appointment - Reviewed Operation
VAN HEFEEE of Independent Non- performance
executive Director and EREBEEUNRR
Non-executive Directors
HEZEBILIFHITE
RFHITES
September - Approved Strategic Plan - Approved Appointmentof - Reviewed Operation
LA HEERIE RS Executive Director performance
BEREHTE EREEBEVNRE
November « Approved InterimResults ~ « Reviewed Operation
+—A #AERIZES performance
EREEBUNRR

-

2018 Board Meeting —FE—/\GEEEE

January - Reviewed Operation

—A performance
BREBENNRER

March . Approved FY2018/2019 . Reviewed Operation

=B Budget performance
HE—Z-N=Z— BEREESENHRE
MBRFEERE

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
in relation to the Company. There are established procedures for
Directors to seek independent professional advice for them to
discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at
the Company’s expenses.

During the year, Directors have made active participation in the
Board meetings, Board Committees meetings and the Annual
General Meeting.

FEESEYTEEMERIEESERARQT 2R
EHEER - AR A AR ERFRESTES
MBERT  BETEBEREAMARBLERE
2R BRARQAFRM -

TR ERURBSHESEER
SERBRBEAE -

CEEXZEE
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Board Committees

The Board has established a Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, an Audit Committee and an Executive Committee
with specific terms of reference.

Board of Directors

EEg

EEREE
EFERTCAIFHRIEEEEE  BRER
ERYTERR  SEHEZHREDE -

Remuneration and
Nomination Committee

FHRIEEEES

EREEE

(all non-executive directors, 4 out of 5 members
are Independent Non-executive Directors)
(2B BHHITEE  5EHKEEF
IERBVHBITESE)

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Audit Committee

(all Independent Non-executive Directors)

(2EBEI BB HHITESE)

Executive Committee

HITEES

(Executive Directors and
Group Senior Directors)

(BITEEREESRALE)

FHNIREEES

Membership K&

FAFAFAFA M

Mr. Anthony Mr.JanP.S. Dr. the Hon. Sir
John Liddell ERLUND David Kwok-po LI
NIGHTINGALE i (Chairman)
REESLE ZTEERLT
(X&)

Terms of reference of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of
independent professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible to consider and approve the remuneration packages
of Executive Directors and Senior Management of the Group,
including salaries, benefits in kind and bonuses; bonus schemes
and other long-termincentive schemes, including share option and
other plans. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee also
reviews the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge, experience, gender and age) of the Board;
Director’s time commitment; policies in relation to nomination
of Director and Board diversity. The Committee would identify
and determine the measurable objective/s for achieving board
diversity and monitor any progress made in achieving such
measurable objective/s. The Committee also recommends to
the Board on appointment or reappointment of and succession
planning for Director and Group Chief Executive Officer.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee held one meeting FWRREBZEEEN 22—t T N\GHF
in fiscal year of 2017/2018. Each member’s attendance record EREIT-REZE SRERFAHEEZEZRL
during the year is shown on page 46 of this Annual Report. SRYIEN AR ERE 468 o

Summary of work done during and for the fiscal EFEFRARB=-Z—t TN

year of 2017/2018 MERFEEMEZTERSE

Reviewed, discussed and approved the remuneration package
of Senior Management including the Executive Directors and
key executives of the Group by reference to the individuals’ job
responsibilities and performances, industry benchmarks and
prevailing market conditions;

Approved the discretionary bonuses and the grant of share
options, having given due consideration to both the Group’s
financial performance and the individuals’ performances
during the year in accordance with the performance-based
compensation policy recommended by an independent
consultant;

Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval
the letters of appointment of the Executive Chairman, one
Independent Non-executive Director, three Non-executive
Directors and two Executive Directors;

Reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the mix
of skills, knowledge, professional qualification and experience
of the Directors) of the Board;

Nominated one Executive Director for approval by the Board;

Reviewed and updated the Board Succession Plan and its Road
Map;

Reviewed the measurable objectives for achieving Board
diversity;

Reviewed Director’s time commitment to perform his/her
duties;

Assessed and confirmed the independence of all Independent
Non-executive Directors; and

Made recommendation to the Board for Directors’ Fees for
fiscal year of 2017/2018.
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Audit Committee

Membership K&

BEREEE

/A A A A

Dr. the Hon. Sir Mr. Paul Jeremy

David Kwok-po LI BROUGH 4
THEST (Chairman)
(£FE)

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
the advice of independent professional firms, if necessary, to
discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the External Auditors and their audit fees; meeting with the
External Auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the audit;
reviewing the interim financial report and annual financial
statements before they are submitted to the Board; discussing
problems and reservations arising from the interim review and
final audit, and any other matters the External Auditors may wish
to discuss, and reviewing the External Auditors’ management
letter and management’s response; reviewing the internal audit
programs and to ensure co-ordination between the Internal and
External Auditors, assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems which cover all
material financial, operational and compliance controls, and
ensuring that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Group; conducting
an annual review of the adequacy of staffing of the financial
reporting functions; reviewing arrangements the employees of
the Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters; ensuring proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of those matters and for
appropriate follow up action; and acting as the key representative
body for overseeing the Company’s relations with the External
Auditors.
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The Board has delegated the risk management responsibilities
to the Audit Committee to oversee and review the adequacy and
effectiveness of relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management procedures that have beenin place.

The Board discharges the corporate governance responsibilities
through delegation to the Audit Committee the responsibilities
of developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and Senior Management;
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to Directors and employees; and reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee met three times in fiscal year of 2017/2018.

Each member’s attendance record during the year is shown on
page 46 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the fiscal

year of 2017/2018

- Reviewed the 2017/2018 preliminary
announcement; interim financial report; preliminary annual
results announcement and annual financial statements with

interim results

management and External Auditors, and recommended their
adoption by the Board;

- Reviewed with the Internal Auditor the Company’s internal
control systems and the periodic audit reports prepared by the
Internal Auditor and approved the 2017/2018 audit plan;

- Reviewed the amendments to Whistleblowing Policy and made
recommendations to the Board for approval,

- Met with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior to the
commencement of the audit work;

- Reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the
External Auditors;
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Summary of work done during and for the fiscal

year of 2017/2018

- Reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non-audit
services provided by the External Auditors, together with their
respective fees;

- Reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting, financial
reporting, risk management and internal audit functions,
and their training programs and budget; effectiveness of the
Group’s internal audit function and compliance with the CG
Code;

- Reviewed progress on the implementation of Enterprise Risk
Management;
- Reviewed the continuous

training and professional

development of Directors and Senior Management;

- Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

- Reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to Directors and employees;

- Reviewed the status of compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report; and

- Held private session with External Auditors in the absence of
Executive Directors and Senior Management.
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The Board has approved a Whistleblowing Policy in March 2012
to provide employees with a more consistent reporting channel
and guidance to report any serious misconduct or malpractice
internally. The Audit Committee has been delegated with
the overall responsibility for monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Whistleblowing Policy. During the year, the
Company has made a few amendments to the Whistleblowing
Policy to expand the range of whistleblowers to external parties
and to further improve the reporting channels for encouraging
fraud reporting. During the year, no incident of serious fraud or
misconduct was reported from employees that had a material
effect on the Company’s financial position and overall operations.
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The Board has adopted a Corporate Governance Policy to provide
a basic framework for developing the Company’s policies and
practices to ensure alignment of interests and expectations from
our shareholders, the investing public and other stakeholders.
The Corporate Governance Policy has been published on the
Company’s website.

The Audit Committee reviews regularly the corporate governance
structure and practices within the Company and monitors

compliance fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

Executive Committee

Membership K&

ESECHRMN—DEEEREE - REDFER
ERRRERAEELTERER  BREFS
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ERZEEEHRNARRA 2 EXERRERE
B WHEEFARZSHRER

HITEES

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI Mr. Winston
(Executive Director and Yau-lai LO
Group CEO) (Executive Chairman)
EESEE EREBEE
(HITEEE (HITERE)
SETHAR)

The Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to deal with
certain operational matters of the Group.

Attendance records of the Directors at the Board Meetings,
Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meetings, Audit
Committee Meetings, Annual General Meeting and General
Meeting during the fiscal year of 2017/2018 are as follows:

2017

BM G
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BM Board Meeting EE2E3%
RN Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meeting HEiRIEREES S
AC Audit Committee Meeting B ZESEH
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GM General Meeting BRRAE

LA +5 +—A +=53
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Mr. Chris Kin-shing LAU
(Group Chief
Financial Officer)
2lRm L
(REEEMHEE)
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Independent Non-executive
Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI

Mr. JanP.S.ERLUND ®@

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE ®
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH ®

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG @
(appointed on 24th June 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO'®
(retired on 1t October 2017)

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO'®

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
(appointed on 24th June 2017)

Ms.May LO
(appointed on 24th June 2017)

Executive Directors
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (Executive Chairman)
Mr.Roberto GUIDETTI

Mr.Eugene LYE
(appointed on 1st October 2017)

Average Attendance of the Board Members

Group Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Chris Kin-shing LAU

Group Director, Internal Audit and Risk
Management

Mr. Terence Chiu-kit CHOW

External Auditors
KPMG
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(a)  Chairman of the Board

(b)  Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

(c) Chairman of the Audit Committee

(d)  Chairman of the Annual General Meeting

(e)  Chairman of the General Meeting

(f) Attendance by invitation

(g) Directors were unable to attend certain meetings due to health
reasons, ad hoc commitments and other unforeseen circumstances

The Company acknowledges the Annual General Meeting is
one of the important forums to engage our shareholders. In
the 2017 Annual General Meeting, all Directors, including
Executive Chairman, the Chairman of the Board Committees
and the External Auditors attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions.

During the year under review, the Executive Chairman also
met with the Non-executive Directors without the presence of
Executive Directors and Senior Management.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of

Directors

Theappointmentofanew Directorismadeontherecommendation
by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the Company
or by shareholders in a general meeting. Shareholders may
propose a candidate for election as Director in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Director
Nomination Policy. The nomination procedures by shareholders
are published on the website of the Company. Any Director who
is appointed by the Board shall retire at the next General Meeting.

Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s Articles
of Association, all the non-executive (including Independent
Non-executive) Directors of the Company are appointed for
a specific term of not more than three years under their letters
of appointment. Pursuant to the Company’s current Articles of
Association, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least every three years and one-third (or the number nearest to
but not exceeding one-third) of Directors shall retire from office
every year at the Company’s Annual General Meeting.
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Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction programs are arranged for any newly appointed
Directors on the general business of the Company. On
appointment, new Directors will also be given an induction
program kit advising them of their responsibilities and duties as
Directors under various regulatory requirements and the Board
procedures, including the Terms of Reference of the Board
Committees. Directors are provided with “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for
Directors” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Directors as guidelines
on the general principles of duties of directors.

During the year, induction programs had been organised for four
newly appointed Directors, namely, Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG,
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO, Ms. May LO and Mr. Eugene LYE, in the
headquarters office of the Company. During the induction session,
each Director took part in a plant tour and met with the Executive
Directors and Senior Management and has been acquainted with
the vision, strategic direction and operation of the Company.
The Company Secretary has provided to each newly appointed
Director an induction program kit immediately subsequent to his/
her directorship appointment. The induction program kit mainly
covers the Company’s corporate governance framework, policies
and guidelines and the current year’s meetings schedule and
routine agenda items.

The Company also arranges continuous professional development
program to Directors at the expense of the Company. The
Company Secretary regularly provides to Directors information
about the enrollment of external training courses and seminars as
well as legal alerts and articles which are relevant for Directors
to keep up-to-date on any legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance requirements and with professional practices in
a dynamic business world. The program would help refresh
Directors’ knowledge and skills in relation to their performance
of the roles, functions and duties of directors of a listed company.

48 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

EERERGESERRE

RARBEMNHFZEESZHRERT  NER
DA ZEBHR - HEESTERE ORISR
HER  UERETHRESETRAREERKE
EERF (BESESZESCHEHE) T2
BEERBE - 1 ESTERAQTEMET
B [EEEMES I REBESZETRZ[E
=5l FRESEE-—RRAMZIES] -

FRARFACANUHERESE 2HRE
SFEL - BEAEE  BHEZEIREFL
£E REQADZHRERABGNE - REN
L BRESTESEREYHYTESRSRE
EEAEEH  #MATARAZER  BBS
HREE - NEBZRERESE  RARECH
O ZHEEESRHAMEENER - BEEAEX
ERFTEREADAMNDEERER - BERIE
5 URAFENSZRF[RRERZEZSE -

ARABNRESZHHFEEXRRERE  AFE
RBEARRXN - RAREEHNOESRETH
SNEIEFIRERMNEZHMEBER  BRTFREHE
EREMNTIY - ERHESHEZERIAA

MEXEY - BEREABESRMMTEOR
REge tmMBET LT ARNESHERETIZA
e BRErREES-



Corporate Governance Report

FENNC

JJ:%E/EI-’F

During the year, the Company Secretary has organised an annual
in-house training program for Directors, covering the topics for
“China (and HK) Outlook: Opportunities & Risks” and “Vitasoy
Digitisation Strategy”.
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In September 2017, the Company has organised for the Directors
a visit to our plant in Foshan, Guangdong Province, Mainland
China. Directors had toured around the production lines and
other ancillary facilities to understand production process of
our products, processes at work and most importantly, the
manufacturing capabilities of the plant. They also met with local
management team to develop a deeper understanding of the
current business performance, strategy and challenges. Directors
had also visited markets in different sale channels so as to allow
them to amass knowledge about the local market in which we sell
in terms of competitive edges and challenges.
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The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to Senior Management in this
highly competitive consumer product market. Senior Management
is encouraged to participate in various CPD programs at the

expense of the Company.

All Directors and Senior Management have provided to the
Company Secretary their training records for the fiscal year of
2017/2018 which have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The average training hours of the Directors were over 50 hours
duringthe year. The average training hours of Senior Management

were over 100.

Directors’ Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2017/2018 - by topic
EEN -2t /- \BBRFEESMZ
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Senior Management’s Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Senior Management in
FY2017/2018 - by topic
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Responsibilities of Directors

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial Statements for
FY2017/2018 are prepared on a going-concern basis. All the new
accounting standards and policies adopted by the Company have
been thoroughly discussed and approved at the Audit Committee
before adoption by the Board.

The Group has adopted itsown Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. A similar code has also been
adopted by the Group for the specified group of employees who
may possess or have access to price sensitive information. Specific
enquiries were made of all Directors and the specified group of
employees, and all Directors and the specified group of employees
have confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in
the Code for the year ended 31st March 2018.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they
have provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during the fiscal year of 2017/2018. Directors have
also disclosed to the Company their interests as director and
other office in other public companies and organisation in a timely
manner, and have regularly reported to the Company Secretary
on any subsequent changes.

Evaluation of the Board and the Executive
Chairman

The Board believes that evaluation of the Board and the Executive
Chairman is an essential requirement of good corporate
governance and has already adopted the Recommended Best
Practice for regular Board Evaluation under the CG Code as early
in the fiscal year of 2011/2012.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to review the Board
effectiveness and to identify areas for improvements. The
Executive Chairman has also been evaluated on whether he has
adequately and effectively performed his roles and fulfilled his
responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board. Such evaluation is
usually conducted once a year.
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A formal evaluation of the Board and the Executive Chairman
was conducted for the fiscal year of 2017/2018. During the
evaluation process, questionnaire was used for collecting opinions
from all the Directors. Completed evaluation forms were sent to
the Company Secretary on a confidential basis. The Company
Secretary has then prepared an analysis of the overall evaluation
results for review and discussion in the Board meeting.

Board Meetings Board Composition

and Procedures and Structure
EEEE EEEHEK
RiERF REEE

. Corporate
Evaluation

of the Board
EEE 2T

Strategic Direction
Governance

and Planning

R R AR E

Practices
TEERER

Risk Management
and Internal Control Sustainability Focus
EERE AEEM BRI
REpEEEE

All Directors have actively participated in the whole evaluation
process. The evaluation results showed that the Board has
performed particularly well in the areas of “Board meetings and

procedures” and “Corporate Governance practices”.

5 2 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

RIB—+ /22— \BEREE  ARAEEHRE
BERIITEREET —RERTZ - RITZBRE
B ARRERABELANEZEEERESR -
HZ AR RBURBERXER T ARME - 2
ANEBLHERILERETON  A2XRN
ExgeR L EHRW -

Personal
Attributes
BARE

Leadership
EERES

Relationship
with Board and
Group CEO
EHESEREE
THBEER 2 BAR

Encourage
Open Debate
Evaluation SRS
of Executive
Chairman Develop Good
Strategic Planning W= Faseyr-Swiy 4 Corporate
and Decision Making Governance Practices
IR BRERY
LEERER

Succession Develop
Environmental and

Plannin
g Social Sustainability

s E BRBERTEN
AIFHEM

2RESHRBSERETLBRE - FRERE
o EEERNESEERNEFIRIEEER
FRITENRELE RS -



Corporate Governance Report
BEERRE

Overall weighted average scores in six evaluation criteria

NEFFZEA BB NEFIIT R

Board Meetings and Procedures

EZEEERER

Corporate Governance Practices
DEERESR

Strategic Direction and Planning
EHE B REE

Board Composition and Structure
EEEERRER

Risk Management and Internal Control
TR K AR E

Sustainability Focus

AEMERTE

A% 2E A

Evaluation criteria

aq
A

Weighted average score

Pl RSP

The Executive Chairmanhas adequately and effectively performed
his roles and fulfilled his responsibilities as the Chairman of the
Board. No major areas of concerns were found in the evaluation
results. Directors have proposed a few constructive and valuable
recommendations for continuous improvement of the Board’s
performance in the areas of board composition and mix of skill
and expertise; board meeting materials, strategic direction and
planning, and frequency of sustainability reporting. The Executive
Chairman as the leader of the evaluation process has provided the
responses and actions to be taken to further improve the Board
performance as summarized from the Board evaluation results.
Such responses and actions have also been discussed amongst the
Directors during the Board meeting.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
has been appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the
Board and the Board Committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, shareholders and Senior
Management.
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The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject
to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to both the
Executive Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer.
The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate
governance developments and compliance and facilitating the
professional development programme and induction programme
of Directors. All members of the Board have access to the advice
and service of the Company Secretary.

During the year, the Company Secretary undertook over 25
hours of external CPD training courses to keep abreast of latest
legislative and regulatory changes and to refresh her skills and
knowledge.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. To achieve this, the Board ensures
that there is an effective framework of risk governance and
ongoing risk management process to promote long-term success
of the Company.

TheBoardisentrusted withthe overall responsibility onanongoing
basis for ensuring that appropriate and effective risk management
and internal controls are maintained to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement of information. Main
features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:

Internal Control

The Company has had in place an internal control system, which is
developed based on the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) components for internal
controls, to manage and mitigate rather than to eliminate business
risks. The key underlying components of effective internal control
system are illustrated as below:
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Assessing risks and reviewing the effectiveness of internal
controls is a continuing process in the Company. Our internal
control system is designed to give reasonable assurance that:

. Assets are prudently safeguarded;

Business activities are conducted in an effective and efficient
manner;

Financial reporting is accurate, timely and complete; and
Laws and regulations relevant to the business are complied.

Under the Company’s internal control system, management is
charged with the responsibility to design and implement the
internal controls while the Board and the Audit Committee

oversee the effectiveness of the internal control system that have
been putin place.
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Internal Audit

Group Internal Audit (a team under Group Internal Audit and Risk
Management Department) plays a critical role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company.

Group Internal Audit act as an independent role to perform
reviews over the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control and risk management systems. It also assesses the
risks inherent in particular business or functional areas, including
fraud or corruption, and conducts reviews or audits to provide
reasonable assurance that adequate governance and controls are
in place to address such risks.

Group Internal Audit operates independently from all
departments, divisions and executives of the Company. The
Group Director, Internal Audit and Risk Management reports
functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to
Executive Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer. The
approved Internal Audit Charter granted Group Internal Audit
with the authority of unrestricted access to all aspects of the
Company’s activities and internal controls. This helps Group
Internal Audit to provide an independent and objective assurance
to the Audit Committee on whether the control environments

within the Company are adequate.

Group Internal Audit carries out independent review of key
business processes and controls in accordance with its annual
audit plan reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
The annual audit plan is prepared using a risk assessment
methodology and taking into account the Company structure,
organisational change, overall materiality of each business unit,
management’s concern, nature and complexity of operation and
operating environment. The risk assessment methodology assists
in identifying business risks and determining audit frequencies.
Group Internal Audit schedules its resources focusing on high risk
areas.

The scope of work performed by Group Internal Audit includes
review of entity wide controls, business process control review,
project based operational audit review, compliance review and
information technology system review. In particular, business
process review focuses on financial reporting controls and
control testing would be performed on assessing the operating
effectiveness. Business process review is performed on a
continuous basis and aim to cover all major operations of the
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Company and its subsidiaries on a cyclical basis. Project based
operation audit review focuses on specific areas with high
perceived risks and management concerns. Group Internal Audit
also conducts special review, investigations, consulting and
advisory services related to corporate governance and controls as
required by management or the Audit Committee.

Results of audit reviews are compiled in internal audit reports
and sent to Senior Management for process improvement and
rectification on a timely basis. Remediation actions have been
developed collaboratively by the management and operational
teamstorectify the control weaknesses identified. All critical audit
findings and control weaknesses are summarised and presented
to the Audit Committee for their knowledge and/or attention.

Risk Management

Risk management framework with effective governance structure
and management process are in place. Such framework enables
the Company to adopt a proactive and structured approach to
identify and manage risks across the Company with ongoing
monitoring and oversight.

Our risk management framework is illustrated as below:
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Risk Governance Structure
The risk governance structure consists of three layers of roles and
responsibilities as explained below:

Layer Roles and Responsibilities BE BERBE
Oversight Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board ~ E:3 RERESSCEREZEE
. Oversee the Company’s risk management and  BEEEA AR ZEREERA
internal control on an ongoing basis EBESIZ
. Oversee those risks that warrant the - ERFZERFE IR SRR
Committee’s attention and supervise risk WEEBRRESEREF  UERSE
management process as part of good corporate R ¥EER
governance
Group Internal Audit SERAIES
. Conduct independent review on the - HEKREERAIBEZERS 2K
effectiveness of risk management and internal METBLER  WOEXEE
control systems and provide risk assurance to SRERERRE
the Audit Committee
Risk Enterprise Risk Management Executive Il TERBERHITEEEREH

Monitoring & ~ Committee & Country CEOs EBR 1THAER
Review g . : . B il | mmr Rz EEAR e
- Design, implement and monitor the risk . REt BlEREERBREERA
management and internal control system EBESIE R A

« Provide assurance to the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems

Group Risk Management

- Anindependent teamunder Group Internal Audit
and Risk Management to support the Audit
Committee and Enterprise Risk Management
Executive Committee

. Develop and implement risk management
frameworks, policies, tools and methodologies
with all subsidiaries

« Monitor status of risk and communicate
with the Executive Committee and the Audit
Committee on an ongoing basis
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Risk & Control
Ownership

Department Heads & Individual Employee

- Ownership of managing risks, executing control
activities and identifying new risks in daily
operation
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Risk Management Process

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily operations,
financial activities, compliance, strategy development and
business planning, investment decision and external factors. The
processes are as follows:

1.  Identify Risk: Potential risks and threats that are related to
different business processes and relevant to the Company’s
objectives will be anticipated and identified by all individual
staff.Risks are groupedintosixclusters (including reputation,
strategy, market, liquidity, credit and operation) to facilitate
the assessment appropriately.

2. Evaluate Risk: Each identified risk is evaluated on the basis
of impact and likelihood consistent with the risk appetite
set by the Board. The risk impact and likelihood will be
rated according to the historical records, statistical analyses
and relevant experiences, specialist and expert judgments
by management. Group Risk Management facilitates the
evaluation process including the summary discussion in the
Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee and the
Audit Committee.

3.  Mitigate and Control: A delegated management is assigned
to each risk as risk owner to fully respond to each risk. Risk
management strategies and corresponding control owners
are identified by risk owner to deploy appropriate control
activities. We pay a close attention to the current status of
risk. Key Risk Indicators with defined thresholds, related
incidents and audit result are monitored to regulate the
current status of identified risks. Group Risk Management
is responsible to work with risk owners on status tracking.
When there is a change on the current status of risk, the
corresponding owner will coordinate mitigation plan with
action details, responsible person and timeline to address
the status change.

4.  Escalate and Report: To support the oversight of the Board
on the effectiveness of Vitasoy’s risk management, risk
reporting requirement was approved by the Board of
Directors under risk management framework. Quarterly
risk report is provided to the Enterprise Risk Management
Executive Committee summarizing the results of
risk monitoring, mitigation plans and the current risk
management implementation progress. Subsequent to their
review and comment, a quarterly group risk report will be
issued to the Audit Committee.
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In the coming year, we will gradually enhance the execution
process to better address the change of current status of risk.
GRC (Governance, Risk and Compliance) software will be
implemented to support our risk management process and the
interaction process between Group Risk Management, staff and
top executives from anticipating to managing risks carried in all
subsidiaries at various geographical locations.

Risk Management Activities

. Verification of ISO 31000 Risk Management
To enhance the overall maturity of risk management
development, we engaged Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency (“‘HKQAA”) for verification services based on I1SO
31000:2009 Risk Management guideline. The verification
onentire execution of Vitasoy Risk Management Framework
was completed and passed during FY2017/2018.

. Risk Management Trainings
This year, training workshops were organized by Group Risk
Management for senior management and targeted staff to
enrich risk awareness and risk mitigation capabilities. On the
other hand, the bi-monthly publications of Vitasoy News in
Hong Kong and China are utilized as communication channel
with general staff to cultivate risk awareness.

. Implementing Risk Management Framework to All
Entities
This year, the risk management framework has been roll-out
to all subsidiaries including our overseas operations. In the
coming year, the new risk management process will be much
integrated in key projects and strategic development.

Review of Risk Management and Internal

Controls Effectiveness

Group Internal Audit has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system, including those of its operating companies. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the findings and impartial opinion
of Group Internal Audit on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.
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The Board, with confirmation from management, considered the
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate for the year ended 31st March 2018. No significant
areas of concern that might affect the financial, operational
and compliance issues and risk management functions of the
Company were identified. The scope of this review also covered
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions and their training and budget.

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules and Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the overriding principle that inside
informationshould beannouncedassoonasreasonably practicable
after such information comes to our attention unless it falls
within any of the Safe Harbours provisions under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. The Company has had a system in place
with established policies and procedures for complying with the
Inside Information disclosure requirements under the regulatory
regime. The Board has adopted a Disclosure Compliance Policy
on 27th November 2012 which has further been updated on 2nd
September 2016. The Policy has been formulated by reference to
the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission. The purpose of the Policy is
to provide Directors and employees with guidelines on assessing,
reporting and disseminating inside information, maintaining
confidentiality and abiding shares dealing restrictions. The
Company has included in its code of conduct and staff handbook
a strict prohibition on the unauthorised disclosure or use of
confidential and inside information.

External Auditors

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of the
Company by shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting.
An amount of HK$5.6 million (2016/2017: HK$5.1 million) was
charged for the fiscal year of 2017/2018 for statutory audits for
the Company and subsidiaries. The amount for the other non-audit
services provided by KPMG for the Company and subsidiaries
during the year was HK$19.4 million (2016/2017: HK$5.6
million). The non-audit services mainly comprised assessment and
planning of digitisation project and tax advisory services.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect to the
2017/2018 financial statements are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 91 to 97.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to convene General
Meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), shareholders representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings are entitled to send a request to the Company to
convene a general meeting. Such request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at the meeting. A request may be sent to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in hard
copy form or in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must also
be authenticated by the person or persons making it.

Procedures for Shareholders to request circulation
of statement at General Meeting

Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or at least 50 shareholders, who
have a relevant right to vote, can request the Company in writing
to circulate to the shareholders a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at that meeting or other business to be
dealt with at that meeting. A request may be sent to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s registered office in hard copy form
or in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must identify the
statement to be circulated. It must be authenticated by the person
or persons making it and be received by the Company at least 7
days before such meeting.

Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as a
Director at General Meeting

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, if a shareholder
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the shareholder should
deposit a written notice of nomination which shall be given to the
Company within the 7-day period commencing the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period as may
be determined and announced by the Directors from time to time)
and in no event ending no later than seven days prior to the date
appointed for such meeting. The procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director are also published on
the Company’s website.
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Constitutional Document

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s Articles of
Association. A copy of the Articles of Association of the Company
is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Communications with Shareholders and

Investors

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable for
ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard, timely
communication with our shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal
and timely access to the Company’sinformation. The Shareholders
Communication Policy is posted on the Company’s website.

We maintain a corporate website (www.vitasoy.com) to keep
our shareholders and the investing public posted of our share
price information, latest business developments, final and interim
results announcements, financial reports, public announcements,
corporate governance policies and practices and other relevant
shareholder information.

The Company views its Annual General Meeting as one of the
important platforms to communicate with its shareholders. All
Directors and Senior Management make an effort to attend the
Annual General Meeting. At the 2017 Annual General Meeting,
the Chairman of the Board briefed shareholders the business
review and the outlook of the Group and answered questions
raised by shareholders. The chairman of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and the chairman of the Audit Committee
were also present to answer questions raised by shareholders. The
Company’s External Auditors attended the 2017 Annual General
Meeting to address questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditors’ independence.

Separate resolutions inrespect of each substantial issue, including
the appointment and re-election of Directors were proposed by
the Chairman at the Annual General Meeting and were voted
on by poll. The detailed procedures of conducting a poll were
explained by the Chairman at the commencement of the Annual
General Meeting to ensure that shareholders were familiar with
such procedures. An independent scrutineer was appointed to
count the votes and the poll results were posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same day following
the Annual General Meeting.
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We manage investor relations systematically as a key part of
our operations. We maintain regular bilateral, open and regular
communications with existing and potential investors to ensure
that the investment community has a balanced and updated
view of the performance of the Company and relevant business
development. As such, the Company developed and adopted a
formal Investor Relations Policy as the guidelines for conducting
investor relations activities. We have established a dedicated
contact ir@vitasoy.com for shareholders, fund managers, analysts
and the media for a two-way communications with the related
stakeholders. We keep our investors abreast on the Group’s latest
developments and strategies through direct communications
including result announcement events, group and individual
face-to-face meetings, telephone conferences and email
correspondences with shareholders and investors. All bilateral
meetings are attended by at least two designated representatives
of the Company, while always taking reference of applicable
regulatory requirements and internal guidelines concerning
fair disclosure of information without offering advantage to any
particular investor or financial analyst. We shall also leverage
media platform to update our latest corporate development.
In addition, we are proactive in responding to general enquiries
raised by theinvesting public, individual and institutional investors
and analysts. In order to keep updated with the latest market
practices on investor relations, the delegated persons engaged
in investor relations activities often attend industry seminars or
training sessions on various topics.

—F-LTRNES AW
THE 2017 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Directors and Senior

Management
EENREEEEAE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (SBS, BSc, MSc), aged 77, is the
Executive Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lo was appointed
a Director of the Company in 1972. Mr. Lo graduated
from the University of lllinois with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Food Science and gained his Master of Science
degree in Food Science from Cornell University. Mr.
Lo is an Honorary Court Member of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and life member
of Cornell University Council. Mr. Lo is a director of Ping
Ping Investment Company Limited. He is also a director
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was a member of The
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years. He is the father of Ms. May Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company), the brother
of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive Director
of the Company), Mr. Kai-tun Lo and Ms. Irene Chan
(the substantial shareholders of the Company) and the
relative of Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company) and Mr. Eugene Lye (an
Executive Director of the Company).

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (GBM, GBS, OBE, JP,
MA Cantab. (Economics & Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon.
DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh
Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong
Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie), Hon.
DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB,
FBCS, CITP, FCIArb, Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne,
Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity,
The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon,
Commandeur dans |'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur),
aged 79, was appointed a Director of the Company in
1994. Sir David is the chairman and chief executive
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He is a member of the
Council of the Treasury Markets Association. Sir David
is a director of Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited.
He is also an independent non-executive director
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of Guangdong Investment Limited, The Hong Kong
and China Gas Company Limited, The Hongkong and
Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited and San Miguel
Brewery Hong Kong Limited, all being companies listed
in Hong Kong. Sir David is founding chairman of The
Friends of Cambridge University in Hong Kong Limited,
chairman of the Advisory Board of The Salvation Army,
Hong Kong and Macau Command and chairman of the
Executive Committee of St. James’ Settlement. He was
a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from
1985 to 2012. He was an independent non-executive
director of SCMP Group Limited (now known as Great
Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited). Save as disclosed,
he has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.

Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND, aged 79, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2006. He graduated with a Master
degree in Law from the University of Aarhus and studied
at the Nordic Institute for Maritime Law, the University
of Oslo. Mr. Erlund was admitted to the Danish Bar in
1968 and was admitted to the Supreme Court in 1976.
Mr. Erlund is now a partner in Copenhagen Chambers
focusing on Danish and international arbitration. He was
apartner of Gorrissen Federspiel Kierkegaard, a law firm
in Copenhagen, Denmark. He was the president of the
Danish Bar and Law Association, president of the Danish
Maritime Law Association and chairman of the Maritime
and Transport Committee of the International Bar
Association. Mr. Erlund was the chairman of the board of
directors of The East Asiatic Company Ltd. A/S and Dansk
Skovselskab A/S, deputy chairman of ERRIA A/S and a
member of the board of directors of PSA International
Pte. Ltd., all being companies listed overseas. Save as
disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE (CMG, SBS,
JP), aged 70, was appointed a Director of the Company
in 2015. Mr. Nightingale graduated from Peterhouse
College, University of Cambridge with a degree in
Classics. Mr. Nightingale was Managing Director of
the Jardine Matheson Group (“Jardine Group”) from
2006 to 2012. He joined Jardine Group in 1969 and
was appointed a director in 1994. Mr. Nightingale is
currently a non-executive director of Jardine Matheson
Holdings Limited and of other Jardine Group companies.
Theseinclude Dairy Farm, Hongkong Land, Jardine Cycle
& Carriage, Jardine Strategic and Mandarin Oriental.
Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited has astandard listing
on the London Stock Exchange as its primary listing,
with secondary listings in Bermuda and Singapore. Mr.
Nightingaleis also anon-executive director of Prudential
plc, a company with primary listings on stock exchanges
in London and Hong Kong and with secondary listings
on stock exchanges in Singapore and New York (ADRs).
He is also the non-executive director of Schindler
Holding Limited and Shui On Land Limited, companies
listed in Hong Kong or overseas, and the UK-ASEAN
Business Council. Mr. Nightingale is a commissioner
of PT Astra International Tbk. He is a member of The
Chief Executive’s Council of Advisors on Innovation
and Strategic Development, a council member of the
Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, the chairman of
The Sailors Home and Missions to Seamen in Hong Kong
and the chairman of the Friends of Uppingham School
Limited. Mr. Nightingale is the former chairman of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and was
appointed as a Hong Kong, China’s representative to the
Asia Pacific Economic Cooperation Business Advisory
Council from 2005 to 2017. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies in
the last three years.
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Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH, aged 61, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 2016. Mr. Brough graduated
from Nottingham Trent Business SchoolwithaBachelor’s
degree (Honours) in Business Studies. Mr. Brough is the
chairman of Noble Group Limited, an independent non-
executive director of GL Limited (both companies listed
on the Singapore Stock Exchange), an independent non-
executive director of Habib Bank Zurich (Hong Kong)
Limited, a Hong Kong restricted licence bank and an
independent non-executive director of The Executive
Centre Limited. Mr. Brough was an executive director
and chief restructuring officer of China Fisheries Group
Limited (listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange) until
30th June 2016. Mr. Brough joined KPMG Hong Kongin
1983 and held appointments as its Head of Consulting
in 1995 and as Head of Financial Advisory Services in
1997. In 1999, he was appointed the Asia Pacific Head
of KPMG’s Financial Advisory Services business and a
member of its global advisory steering group. He held
the position of Regional Senior Partner of KPMG Hong
Kong from April 2009 before retiring in March 2012.
Mr. Brough is a member of the General Committee of
The Hong Kong Club, a director of the Hong Kong Club
Foundation Limited, and a director of Sailability Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Brough is also a director of Blue
Willow Limited, a private limited company. Mr. Brough
is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and anassociate
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
Save as disclosed, he has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.
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Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG (GBS, BBS, JP), aged 65, was
appointed a Director of the Company in June 2017. Dr.
Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the
University of Warwick, United Kingdom and Doctor of
Business Administration Degree from City University of
Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor
by the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in
December 2015. He was awarded an Honorary Doctor
of Business Administration by the Lingnan University in
2015, an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and
an Honorary Doctorate Degree by the University of
Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia in 2006. He was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal and Gold
Bauhinia Star (GBS) Medal by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government on 1st July 2011
and 1st July 2017 respectively. He was also appointed as
Justice of Peace by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government on 1st July 2005 and won the Hong
Kong Young Industrialists Award in 1997. In November
2014, he was further awarded the Industrialist of the
Year. Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement
of industry and was the Chairman of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries until 5th July 2013. In addition,
Dr. Chung holds positions on a number of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government advisory
committees and is also an active member of many social
committees and associations. He has been appointed
as chairman of Vocational Training Council since 1st
January 2018. Dr. Chung is a co-founder and currently
a non-executive director of Techtronic Industries
Company Limited. Dr. Chung s also an independent non-
executive director of TK Group (Holdings) Limited and
Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited, all being companies
listed in Hong Kong. Dr. Chung retired as independent
non-executive director of Kin Yat Holdings Limited and
KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited effective 25th August
2014 and 27th August 2015 respectively. Save as
disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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Non-executive Director

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 70, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 1993. Ms. Lo received a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Oberlin College, Ohio
in the United States and undertook graduate studies
in Urban and Regional Planning at the University of
Toronto in Canada. Ms. Lo joined the Group in 1980
and was the President of Vitasoy USA Group until 2001.
Ms. Lo was the president of the Soyfoods Association of
North America which represents more than 30 soyfoods
companies covering the US and Canada. She does not
hold/has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies currently and in the past three years. She
is the sister of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (an Executive
Chairman of the Company), Mr. Kai-tun Lo and Ms. Irene
Chan (the substantial shareholders of the Company) and
the relative of Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Ms. May Lo (a Non-executive
Directors of the Company) and Mr. Eugene Lye (an
Executive Director of the Company).

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO, aged 56, was appointed a
Director of the Company in June 2017, Mr. Lo holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic Engineering & Physics
from the Loughborough University of Technology, a
Master’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University
of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics
from the University of London and an Honorary Fellow
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lo is
an executive director and the chief executive officer
of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is the chairman
and a trustee of Lo Kwee Seong Foundation (a newly
set up charitable trust to replace the previous K.S. Lo
Foundation) being a substantial shareholder of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
Save as disclosed, he has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years. Mr.
Lo is the relative of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (an Executive
Chairman of the Company), Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company), Ms. May Lo
(a Non-executive Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene
Lye (an Executive Director of the Company), Ms. Irene
Chan and Mr. Kai-tun Lo (the substantial shareholders of
the Company).
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Ms. May LO, aged 43, was appointed a Director of the
Company in June 2017. Ms. Lo holds a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from MIT Sloan School
of Management and a Bachelor of Science degree
from Cornell University. She has worked in finance in
various roles, including, as a fund manager for a global
asset management company and has had experience
investing in publicly listed companies. She does not
hold/has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies currently and in the past three years. Ms. Lo
is the daughter of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (the Executive
Chairman of the Company), the relative of Ms. Yvonne
Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive Director of the Company),
Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a Non-executive Director of the
Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an Executive Director of
the Company), Ms. Irene Chan and Mr. Kai-tun Lo (the
substantial shareholders of the Company).

Executive Director

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, aged 55, was appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company on 1st April 2014.
Mr. Guidetti is currently the Group Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Guidetti graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics at the Bologna University in Bologna,
Italy in 1987 and further obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration at Centro Universitario di
Organizzazione Aziendale in Altavilla Vicentina, Italy
in 1988. Mr. Guidetti completed a Harvard Business
School Executive Education program in July 2017. Mr.
Guidetti is responsible for the overall strategic planning,
business development and general management of all
the Group’s operations. Mr. Guidetti joined the Group
as the Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st April 2013
and has fully assumed the roles and responsibilities of
the former Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st August
2013. He has 29 years of proven track record in general
management, strategic/business planning, marketing/
commercial leadership, product innovation and new
business development. He has matured his professional
expertise in two of the largest global fast moving
consumer goods organisations and across local, regional
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and global roles in Europe and Asia. He has spent the
last 18 years in this field in Greater China. Mr. Guidetti
is a director of Ariston Thermo Group, a private limited
company incorporated in ltaly. He does not hold/has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies
currently and in the last three years.

Mr. Eugene LYE, aged 48, was appointed a Director
of the Company in October 2017. Mr. Lye is currently
the President and Chief Executive Officer of Vitasoy
USA Inc., a wholly owned-subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Lye holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from
the University of Toronto and a MBA from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lye is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s
import business of the Group’s products for sales
in North America. He joined the Group in 2002 and
has been closely involved in all aspects of the North
American business for over 15 years. During his time at
Vitasoy USA Inc., Mr. Lye has held management positions
in sales and marketing in the Mainstream Channel, and
has had oversight responsibilities for both the research
& development and quality control departments as well
as serving as the Senior Vice President of the Asian
Channel. He does not hold/has not held any directorship
in other listed public companies currently and in the past
threeyears. Mr. Lye is the relative of Mr. Winston Yau-lai
Lo (an Executive Chairman of the Company), Ms. Yvonne
Mo-ling Lo, Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo and Ms. May Lo (the
Non-executive Directors of the Company), Ms. Irene
Chan and Mr. Kai-tun Lo (the substantial shareholders of
the Company).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Group Senior Directors

Mr. Chris Kin-shing LAU, aged 55, Group Chief Financial Officer.
Mr. Lau is responsible for the strategic planning, financial
management and control, accounting, corporate finance, investor
relations and corporate services of the Group. Mr. Lau joined the
Group in April 2016. He has 30 years of solid finance management
experience gained in multinationals in Asia Pacific, Greater China
and the US. He also brings a wealth of experience to this role
with managing start-ups, post-merger/acquisition integration,
business process improvement and Enterprise Resource Planning
system implementation in addition to Treasury, Tax and Credit
management. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Economics
from the Australian National University and a Graduate Diploma
in Computing Studies from the University of Canberra. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of CPA Australia.

Mr. Frank Changbo SI, aged 48, Group Senior Director,
Manufacturing and Project Management. Mr. Si is responsible for
the formulation of the Group’s manufacturing and project policy
and strategy as well as the management and support of plant
capital expenditure project and manufacturing performance. He
joined the Group in 2012. He has extensive experience in different
multi-national companies focus on quality, manufacturing and
project management.

Dr. Joanna Shwu-Pyng Tzeng CHEN, aged 59, Group Senior
Director, Research, Development and Quality. Dr. Chen is
responsible for developing, leading and executing research
and development and quality strategies to meet the business
needs of local and overseas markets. She plays a strategic role
in driving global product direction and innovation while assuring
compliance, safety, sustainability and quality excellence. Dr. Chen
joined the Group in 2010. With Advanced Food Science education
training, she joined company with diversified working experiences
with prominent multinational companies in the United States,
Greater China and Asia Pacific region. Her expertise covers
technical management and commercialisation in areas across
food ingredient, food product research and development/
manufacturing, regulatory compliance and quality assurance.
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Mainland China

Mr. Eric Ting-yi ZHONG, aged 43, Chief Executive Officer,
Mainland China Operation. Mr. Zhong is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. He joined the Group in February 2018. Mr.
Zhong has over 20 years of full management experience covering
different roles across different fast moving consumer goods
(FMCG) categories, and has worked with many multinational
companies in Mainland China.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)

Ms. Dorcas Shing-suet LAU, aged 48, Chief Executive Officer,
Hong Kong Operation. Ms. Lau is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong, Macau and various export markets. She joined the
Group in March 2017 and has 25 years of proven track record
in Customer Development, Marketing, General Management,
and most recently in Digital and eCommerce in one of the largest
global fast moving consumer goods company across Hong Kong,
Taiwan, Mainland China and North Asia markets. In 2012, she
was awarded Women To Watch by Advertising Age’s in Mainland
China.

Australia and New Zealand

Mr. Christopher John GILLARD, aged 46, General Manager of
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. Mr. Gillard is responsible
for the general management and development of the Group’s
operation in Australia and New Zealand. He joined the Group in
November 2014. He has extensive experience across the Asia-
Pacific fast moving consumer goods industry. Based in and a
native of Melbourne, he returned from almost a decade living and
working in Greater China. He has a strong track record in Sales,
Marketing and General Management.

Singapore

Mr. Christopher Llioyd MARCHANT, aged 39, General Manager
of Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as
Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Ltd.), the Group’s tofu manufacturing
company in Singapore. Mr. Marchant is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s operation
in Singapore. He joined the Singapore operation in September
2016 after spending 4 years heading up the Vitasoy Australia and
New Zealand Sales team. Mr. Marchant has extensive experience
across the fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) industry in Asia
Pacific, and is very familiar with the Singapore market having
spent 14 years in the city state, where he both started his career
and completed his secondary education.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2018.

Principal Place of Business

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at No. 1 Kin Wong
Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year is set out in
note 3 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Group Chief Executive
Officer’s Report/Business Review set out on pages 10 to 24 of this
Annual Report. The environmental, employees, customers and
suppliers matters that have a significant impact on the Group, are
provided in the “Sustainability Report 2017/2018” to be sent out
together with this Annual Report. These discussions form part of
this Report of the Directors.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31st March 2018, the percentage of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than
30%.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases attributable
to the major suppliers during the financial year is as follows:

FEEFRMER
RNEBE_E-N\E=ZA=+—RHLEE K&£EF
BAREFEREE2EEFHDN30% ©

ST AR BT 4 B 7 S AR
WA -

Percentage of the Group’s total Purchases

EAEERBREE L

The largest supplier 22%
BRAMER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 36%

BRAHERES

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares)
had any interest in these major suppliers.

Recommended Dividend

An interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share (2017:
an interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share) was paid
on 28th December 2017. The Directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK31.4 cents per ordinary share
(2017: a final dividend of HK27.1 cents per ordinary share and a
special dividend of HK4.2 cents per ordinary share) in respect of
the year ended 31st March 2018.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$617,000 (2017: HK$180,000).

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group, as at 31st March 2018 are
set out in note 21 to the financial statements.
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26(c) to the financial statements.
Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
Annual Report are set out on page 2.

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company and Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
and Ms. May LO were appointed as the Non-executive Directors
of the Company with effect from 24th June 2017.

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO retired as a Non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 1st October 2017.

Mr. Eugene LYE was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1st October 2017.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI, Mr. Jan P. S.
ERLUND and Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE retire
from the board by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company
orany of its subsidiaries whichis not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under the same terms for
rotational retirement as other Directors, pursuant to the Articles
of Association of the Company.
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Directors of Subsidiaries

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
during the financial year and up to the date of this Annual Report
can be found in the Company’s website at www.vitasoy.com under
“Investor Relations/ Corporate Governance/ Board of Directors/
Directors of Subsidiaries”.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
The Directors of the Company who held office at 31st March
2018 had the following interests in the shares of the Company
and subsidiaries (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in the register of
Directors’ interests and short positions required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO:

(1) Interestsinissued shares

MEBARZES
REAVHEEARBERAFR2BBEARE
EffEARZESHFABTEREALAT R
(www.vitasoy.com) [ R EEBER TEESR &
28 WEBARES | ET AHERM -

EERKRMD - HEROREEE
ZREmERIRR

(RS RPEHEH) F32RREEE2ES
RERARBREMTHFAN - R-F-NF=4
S+ -BEMZALAESREAREARAR
MEAT (TR (RERMEHH)) 2ZROE
BT

(1) REB|ITRO2ERE

Number of ordinary shares

Family
interests

Personal
interests

{8 AR

eV S

TZERHE
Trusts and
similar
interests

* % of total
issued shares
BT

IR 48
ZBEDH

Total number
of shares held

(B2

REER  ISROAR

Mr. Winston Yau-laiLO (i), (iv) 61,583,800 28,702,500 72,678,300 162,964,600 15.39%
BEREEE

Dr. the Hon. Sir David 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.57%

Kwok-po LI

ZEERL

Mr. Jan P.S.ERLUND 150,000 - - 150,000 0.01%
JanP.S.ERLUND &4

Ms. Yvonne Mo-lingLO (i), (iv) - - 93,022,750 93,022,750 8.79%
BERRuL

Mr. Peter Tak-shingLO (i), (iv) 9,198,000 = 121,657,000 130,855,000 12.36%
BREAKE

Ms. May LO 2,074,000 - - 2,074,000 0.20%
BHELL

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 3,958,000 - - 3,958,000 0.37%
BEEELE

Mr. Eugene LYE 442,313 - - 442,313 0.04%

Bkt

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares
of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,058,871,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st
March 2018.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
(Continued)

(1) Interestsinissued shares (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is deemed to be interested in 28,702,500
shares through interests of his wife.

(ii) Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 3,016,300 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust, 4,890,150 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Separate Property Trust and 12,438,000 shares held by Lo/
Higashida Joint Trust. Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is a beneficiary of such
three trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

(iii)  Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is interested in 48,978,700 shares held by two
discretionary family trusts. Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is a beneficiary
of such two trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
shares.

(iv)  Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO and Mr. Peter
Tak-shing LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank of
East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee
for the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation, a newly set up charitable trust to
replace the previous K.S. Lo Foundation. Each of them is a trustee of the
Lo Kwee Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to be interested in
such shares.

(2) Interestsin underlying shares

Certain Directors of the Company have been granted options
under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are
set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company
or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies.
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Equity-linked Agreements
Share option scheme

(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th September 2002

On 4th September 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) under which the
Directors might, at their discretion, grant options to employees
and Directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. The 2002 Share
Option Scheme was valid for 10 years ended 3rd September 2012.
The purpose of this scheme was to provide incentives and rewards
to employees for their contribution to the Group. The principal
terms of this scheme were as follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

- The options were exercisable for a period to be notified
by the Directors to each option holder, such period not to
exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

- There was no minimum period which an option must be held
before it could be exercised during the vesting period, but
the Directors were empowered to impose at their discretion
any such minimum period at the date of offer.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of
the scheme.

- The maximum aggregate number of shares over which
options could be granted to any one participant, when added
to the number of shares issued or issuable to that participant
under the share option scheme must not exceed 25% of the
maximum aggregate number of shares for the time being
issued and issuable under the share option scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th September 2002
(Continued)

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible Director or employee for a period
of 28 days from the date of offer or such longer or shorter
period as the Directors might in their discretion determine.
An eligible Director or employee had to pay HK$10 on
acceptance of the option as a consideration.

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
any one participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of grant.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated by shareholders
of the Company at annual general meeting on 28th August 2012.
Outstanding share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to such termination shall continue to be valid, and
subject to the vesting schedule, exercisable in accordance with
the 2002 Share Option Scheme. As at 31st March 2018, there
were 4,782,000 outstanding options to be exercised under the
2002 Share Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012

On 28th August 2012, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
2012 Share Option Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions which the Directors, executives and employees of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”)
have made or will make to the Group. It will provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with a view to motivating the Eligible Participants to
exceltheir performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining an ongoing
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.
The Board may at its discretion grant options to any Director,
executive or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The principal terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, which must be a business day; and (b) the average
of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

- The period within which the options must be exercised
would be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This
period must expire no later than 10 years from the relevant
date of grant.

- There was no minimum period for which an option must
be held nor a performance target which must be achieved
before it could be exercised during the vesting period, but
the Board may determine at its sole discretion any such
terms on the grant of an option.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of
the scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012
(Continued)

- The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes for the time being of
the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such number of
shares as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible participant for a period of 28 days
from the date of offer or such longer or shorter period as the
Directors might in their discretion determine. An eligible
participant had to pay HK$10 on acceptance of the option as
a consideration.

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
any one eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at
the date of grant.

During the year, 3,182,000 options were granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. The total number of ordinary shares
available forissue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme as at 31st
March 2018 was 77,248,950 shares, which represented 7.30% of
the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at 31st March 2018.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012
(Continued)

At 31st March 2018, the Directors and employees of the
Company had the following interests in options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of the Company (market value per share at 31st
March 2018 was HK$20.20) in consideration of HK$10 for each
grant under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share
Option Scheme of the Company. As at 31st March 2018, the total
grant date fair value of unexercised vested options and unvested
options, measured in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(g)(iv) to the financial statements, amounted to
HK$20,491,000 and HK$26,805,000 respectively. The options
are unlisted. Once vested, each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. Assuming that
all the options outstanding as at 31st March 2018 are exercised,
the Company will receive proceeds of HK$237,351,000.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued) R EH = @

Share option scheme (Continued) RIS E (@)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012 (2) R-ZZE—Z-FNAZ-+NAH#EZBER
(Continued) e (E)

The Directors of the Company individually and other employees RAFERFER AR ARAEERAEEZ
of the Group in aggregate had the following personal interests in HiEEERBE-_SE_FERETEIR_-Z
options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share ——FBRETEURBARQATEBER 2 BIRE
Option Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company FERBEZEAREZNT :

during the year and at the end of the year:

Number of
options Number of Number of Number of Number of * Market * Market
Price per outstanding options options options options value value
Period during share on atthe granted exercised forfeited outstanding per share at per share on
Date of which options exercise beginning of during the during the during the atthe end date of grant exercise
Participants grant are exercisable of options the year year year year of the year of options of options
fiiERE ER EAR B i
KA BATEZ L i Enfiz Ehiglz AT BlREZR Bl
Bk REAH BREAEH SRER EREsR ERESA EREZA EREA EREZA ZBRHE gihE
HKS HKS$ HK$
i i i3
Directors
£
Mr.Winston Yau-laiLO ~ 8/9/2011  8/9/2012t0 27/9/2021 6.358 1740000 = = = 1,740,000 5470
BRERE 31/8/2012  31/8/2013t0 2 30/8/2022 6400 2822000 - - - 2822000 6.700
99/2013  9/9/2014t0 £ 8/9/2023 9.370 1704000 - - - 1,704,000 9950
10/9/2014  10/9/2015t0 2 9/9/2024 10080 1792000 = = = 1,792,000 989
14/9/2015  14/9/2016t0 % 13/9/2025 13600 1,588,000 - - - 1,588,000 11520
692016 6/9/2017t0 £5/9/2026 14792 1420000 - - - 1420000 15.280
Mr.Roberto GUIDETTI €2/4/2013  2/4/2015t0 2 1/4/2023 9.090 1,000000 = 1,000,000) = = 8750 16910
BEELE 28/6/2013  28/6/2014t0 2 27/6/2023 9.370 1438000 - (1,438,000 - - 9.180 18015
272014 27/201560E1/7/2024 10080 1576000 - (1,176,000 - 400000 9890 20350
26/6/2015  26/6/2016t0 2 25/6/2025 13600 1414000 = (144000) = 1270000 13620 20350
24162016 24/6/2017t0 2 23/6/2026 14792 1278000 - - 1278000 13960 -
26/6/2017  26/6/2018t0 2 25/6/2027 1629 - 1254000 - - 1254000 16200
Eligible employees 9/6/2010  9/6/2011t0 £ 8/6/2020 6022 352000 - (88,000) (264,000) - 5870 15.360
working under 15/6/2011  15/6/2012t0 % 14/6/2021 6424 888,000 - (568,000 (320,000) - 6.180 15440
employment contracts  22/6/2012  22/6/2013t0 £ 21/6/2022 6.274 378000 = (158,000 = 220000 6.130 15921
REERSNIE 28/6/2013  28/6/2014t0 2 27/6/2023 9370 1584000 - (1,203,000 (143,000 238000 9.180 16.164
ZREREE 272014 27/2015t0 2 1/7/2024 10.080 1494000 - (735,000 (453000) 306,000 989 17748
26/6/2015  26/6/2016t0 Z25/6/2025 13600 2,084,000 = (449,000) (655,000) 980,000 13620 16539
24162016 24/6/2017t0 2 23/6/2026 14792 2,156,000 - (221000) (791,000 1,144000 13960 17791
2302007 2/3/2019t0 £ 1/3/2027 15440 326000 - - 326,000 15460 -
26/6/2017  26/6/2018t0 2 25/6/2027 1629 = 1928000 = (150,000) 1,778,000 16200

27,034,000 3182,000 (7,180,000) (2,776,000) 20,260000
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012
(Continued)

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the

names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

being the closing price or the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted or exercised, as applicable.

@ options granted to Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI was fully vested after two
years from the date of grant.

# options granted to an eligible employee was fully vested after two
years from the date of grant.

All options except for options granted on 2nd April 2013 and 2nd
March 2017, are exercisable progressively and the maximum
percentage of the options which may be exercised is determined
in stages as follows:

R EH S @
B RERE @)

(2) R=EBE—Z=-FNB=+NBH#HEZER
T (E)
RFESECEREUDABREEAZESE A

BET °

* BN D BB AR SR B IR A IR H SR 1T 68 B AT
—REA W ERIEF IR HE -

©  EFEEBALZBRMAEL0DWEAESEH
5 -

¢ BTAAREAZBREL R NWEAERS
5 -

AFTEZEBREHE (BR-ZZE-—=F0
AZARZZE-—LF=A-ARBZBREN)
TELSEN MEKRATEBREZBDLE
PRI -

Percentage of options granted

EEREREZEDL

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant

R AME —BERAR

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant

Kb BB mBF AR

On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant

R BB = BFRER

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

R AR NBERAR

25%

another % 25%

another % 25%

another % 25%

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the value per option is provided in note 1(qg)(iv) and note 24 to
the financial statements respectively.
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Report of the Directors

BEERE
Substantial Shareholders’ and Other FTERRREMALTRARS KB
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in RO CERRRE

Shares and Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the R-ZZE-NF=ZA=+—H > AQAFACEHET
Company’s issued shares at 31st March 2018 amounting to 5% FHEEBITEER 5% L2 KA T B 81T
DERETEE LI ECESE

o

or more of the ordinary shares in issue. These interests are in grigs
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors. m °

Number of ordinary shares

EERYE
Trusts and
Personal Family Corporate similar ~ Total number of *% of total
Substantial shareholders interests interests interests interests shares held issued shares
HEE BT
EF R
ZRE BAER REER  FEROAY LA
Commonwealth Bank (i) - - 137,134,000 - 137,134,000 12.95%
of Australia
BNBRRT
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO (i), i) - - - 100,653,000 100,653,000 9.51%
ERgat
Ms. Irene CHAN (ifi 23,514,700 - - 72,678,300 96,193,000 9.08%
RERELT
Mr. Kai-tun LO (il 18,508,950 - - 72,678,300 91,187,250 8.61%
ERALE
Wasatch Advisors, Inc. (iv) - - 63,715,173 - 63715173 6.02%
Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund (v) 60,600,000 - - - 60,600,000 5.72%
Limited (“Arisaig’)
(T Arisaig] )
Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) (vi) - - 60,600,000 - 60,600,000 5.72%
Limited (“Arisaig Mauritius’)
(T Arisaig Mauritius ] )
Mr, Lindsay William Ernest (vii) - - 60,600,000 - 60,600,000 5.72%
COOPER % (“Cooper”)
(TCooper])

*

This percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares * HESLEDRERAAAR=_Z—N\F=A=+—H
of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,058,871,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st BET 2R #AE (B11,058,871,500 REZEAR) &
March 2018. o
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

These interests are held by Commonwealth Bank of Australia through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is interested in 27,974,700 shares held by
Swift Luck Development Limited which in turn holds such shares in
trust for Lo Myrna Trust.

Each of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO, Ms. Irene CHAN and Mr. Kai-tun
LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank of East Asia
(Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee for the Lo
Kwee Seong Foundation, a newly set up charitable trust to replace the
previous K.S. Lo Foundation. Each of them is a trustee of the Lo Kwee
Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
shares.

These interests are held by Wasatch Advisors, Inc. in the capacity of
investment manager.

These interests are held by Arisaig in the capacity of beneficial owner.

These interests are held by Arisaig Mauritius in the capacity of
investment manager of Arisaig. These interests are duplicated by the
interests disclosed in Note (v) above.

These interests represent Cooper’s interests through his indirect 33%
interest in Arisaig Mauritius. These interests are duplicated by the
interests disclosed in Notes (v) and (vi) above.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have
been notified to the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Remuneration for Senior Management
The emoluments of the Senior Management by bands are as
follows:

ARABERE
READDFEEZ DHEHURAADTEDS
B RAERA - AQT—ERS EHRA

REZARERE -

EERRE - RBHEN 2 ER

AR B HEEME R AERERFESHFRIE
ABET AR RAESHEFEARE 2R * &
BHEREHN -

SEEEAECZHE

rERE D 2EEEEABZHMEMT ¢

Number of individuals

A
Below HK$2,000,000 2
7B% 2,000,000 JTLA T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 5
78 2,000,001 7T £ B % 4,000,000 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 3
784,000,001 7T £ ¥ 6,000,000 7T
Employees and Human Resources Policy EBERADERBER

Details of the number and remuneration of employees, human
resources policy, development and learning of the Group’s
employees are set out in the “Sustainability Report 2017/2018”
to be sent out together with this Annual Report.

REBEZEBEHERFH - ADERBERNARE
BRERFIZHBFER=ZZ—t /=N
FUFERRERE | ZREKERAFR—F
Fih o
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout
this year.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained during
the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company in the normal course of business during the year ended
31stMarch 2018 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in note 29,
the Company confirms that it has reviewed the transactions which
are complied with the relevant requirements under the Listing
Rules (if applicable).

Employee Retirement Plans
Particulars of employee retirement plans of the Group are set out
in note 23 to the financial statements.

Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 221 and
222 of the Annual Report.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s

Report
B Z AN S

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 98 to 220, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31st March 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31st March 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Revenue recognition from sales to distributors and retailers

RRREDHENEZEBHSHRA

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 129 to 130.

ESHMEMBRRMEEIRE 129 F 130 EMNEFTEUR o
The Key Audit Matter

BAREFTSER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ET AR EZEE

The Group’s revenue is principally generated from sales

of food and beverages to a large number of distributors
and retailers.
BEEENVUAZTERRORZOHBENETEDRHERRAR

ah O

BAmn °

Revenue from sales to distributors and retailers is
recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the Group’s food and beverage products have
been transferred to the customers, which generally
occurs when the products are delivered to the location
designated by the customers.
REDHBNZEFHENRAZE EXENEREEAR
WHEEREZEERRAER O ERCEFHER  5—R
EERREERFIETHBRSAE -

There are alarge number of individual sales transactions
each year and trade terms can vary from customer
to customer both of which increase the risk of errors
arising in the recognition of revenue.
EXBEEFRERENERNHERS  BEBEFHNXZ %K
MR TER - SN T WARRHIREROER

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from sales to distributors and retailers
included the following:

B LA REEARE D HBNZEBHHENRANE
AREFEEUTRIE

- assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
over revenue recognition;

. MEEEEBERWARRNERRIIEGNRE - Bit
REBITHMMN

- inspecting sales contracts with distributors and
retailers, on a sample basis, to understand the
trade terms agreed with individual customers and
assessing the Group’s revenue recognition policies
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

- BREAEERTHESHEBNSZEDRITNEESE - XU
T HEERNEFNENRZHN  XBERITETE
BB ETE BSEEMNRAERBEER ;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB TR E

Key audit matters (continued)

The Key Audit Matter

RRFETSER

We identified the recognition of revenue from sales
to distributors and retailers as a key audit matter
because the revenue generated therefrom accounts
for the majority of the Group’s revenue and involves

large number of individual sales contracts and because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group which increases the risk of misstatement
of the timing and amount of revenue recognised by
management to achieve specific performance targets or
expectations.
BMIEREIRBDEBNSERHENBRA T RERE
2B IRAHEENBRAMGE EEBRANERED BYS
RAZEFIHESR  BFELEAKRAR BEXBMNHEF
—IEHERENER  SENTEEEABESTEERE
R FEHA T iR SR AU A RS BE A S RE AV LB ©

FARETEE ;)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMET AR EZEE

comparing, on a sample basis, sales transactions
recorded during the financial reporting period with
the corresponding goods delivery notes, which
contained evidence of acknowledgement of the
customers’ receipt of the goods, and assessing if
the related revenue was properly recognised in
accordance with the trade terms set out in the
respective sales contracts;

BREAREELBIKREHBARENHEER S HIgE
NWEEE  #EESEREFEIARIIEYHESR ¥
HIEERA RSB ERBEENEES R AEN RS K

AR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions recorded around the end of the
financial reporting period had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by inspecting the trade
terms agreed with the individual customers and the
delivery status of the relevant products;
REAREEFZBUEREREFAHEZR S FRRAR
HREERNRARE  FTEEM RS HE R B
HEERARZRECEEE N EHAREARER

identifying significant credit notes issued and sales
returns from the sales ledger subsequent to the
financial reporting period and by making enquiries
of management and inspecting relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the related revenue had
been accounted for in the appropriate financial
period in accordance with the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards; and

B RE RN EERBAI S AEZEANEREMN
SHEERR - WEBHABEEERSEMREZIF T
HHEBERAREEERRTEERNEENEE W
HEEER &k

inspecting significant manual adjustments to
revenue during the reporting period, enquiring of
management about the reasons for such adjustments
and comparing details of the adjustments with
relevant underlying documentation.
BEVEREANERAFMIENERFEHAE  ER
EBEAEREARNERR L ERFIFEARNIIE Y -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEEMRE

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the

consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

94 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEEMRE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEEMRE

R AT BT 4R S I I SRR AR IE
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of

the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEEMRE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of

the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resultingin this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Tai Cheong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15th June 2018
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Consolidated Statement

of Profit or Loss
mEBTmR

For the year ended 31st March 2018 BZ—ZE—N\F=A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2018 2017
—B-N\F — L
Note FffzE $000 F 7t $000 Tt
Revenue 3 6,464,525 5,406,090
WA
Cost of sales (3,044,767) (2,532,704)
SHERA
Gross profit 3,419,758 2,873,386
EF
Other income 4 27,829 34,638
Hb A
Net gain on disposal of assets and
liabilities classified as held for sale 19 - 189,595
HESEABFLHECEEREBBZFHRE
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (1,729,371) (1,491,517)
HE - HERDHEER
Administrative expenses (559,096) (487,795)
THER
Other operating expenses (336,872) (270,273)
HihiEE &R
Profit from operations 822,248 848,034
Pty
Finance costs 5(a) (1,700) (3,730)
BE R AN
Share of losses of joint venture (17,814) (627)
FrtEE AREE
Profit before taxation 5 802,734 843,677
BREE A S F
Income tax 6(a) (160,679) (190,383)
st
Profit for the year 642,055 653,294
REEEF
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEEmk

For the year ended 31st March 2018 BZ—ZE—N\F=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2018 2017
—B-N\F — L
Note ffi&E $'000 F 7T $'000 Tt
Attributable to:
TH AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company 585,774 618,372
ARG REFEA
Non-controlling interests 56,281 34,922
IR S
Profit for the year 642,055 653,294
A R A
Earnings per share 10
BRAEF
Basic 55.5 Cents 1ili 58.9 Cents 1l
HAR
Diluted 55.0 Cents 1lli 58.4 Cents 1l
o

The notes on pages 108 to 220 form part of these financial
statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note
26(b).

55 108 £ 220 B 2 MR I AN B # $Rak 2 —2B1D ©

BREAFERENTEMSTARAREREAZR
EFBEMNHEE 26(b) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBnkEM2EKE

For the year ended 31st March 2018 BZ—ZE—N\F=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2018 2017
—B-N\F — L
Note FfizE $'000 Tt $000 Tt
Profit for the year 642,055 653,294
KEERR
Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax) 9

rFEEHME2EKE (FRBE)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
HETEWEH > BEZBHE2EA
Remeasurement of employee retirement
benefit liabilities 6,095 8,579
EERKEANEBEZENTE
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
HEAREEN I BEESZ2EAE !

Exchange differences on translation of financial

statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong 145,272 (87,588)
EEEBLIMEEME A B 2 B iRk

MEEZERERE
Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve 5,685 (888)
REeREBEP | EPREFED
Total comprehensive income for the year 799,107 573,397
rEEZHWSAE
Attributable to:
TH AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company 730,802 543,723
RATRERE A
Non-controlling interests 68,305 29,674
FEIER AR
Total comprehensive income for the year 799,107 573,397
rEEZHWSAE

The notes on pages 108 to 220 form part of these financial %108 & 220 B 2 MzE D ANB 53Rz 2 — 015 ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position
e AR R

At 31stMarch2018 R=ZE—N\E=A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2018 2017
—EB—+F

—EB-N\F
Note ffitzf $000 ¥t $'000 F;t $000F $000F T

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment

Y% - BERRE

- Interests in leasehold land held for own

use under operating leases

- RIBEEHERAFERZAE L RS

- Investment properties

-REM=E

- Other property, plant and equipment

- HAb¥2E - BER&iE

Deposits for the acquisition of property,

plant and equipment
BEYX BERZEZE
Intangible assets
BEEE
Goodwill
e
Interest in joint venture
BENTZER
Deferred tax assets
ELBREE

Current assets

RBEE

Inventories

7E

Trade and other receivables
JE A B R B EL At FE LUK
Current tax recoverable

FE W3R B 1

Cash and bank deposits
RERIBITIF

11(a)

11(g)

12

13

15

25(b)

16

17

25(a)

18(a)

67,134

4,088

2,277,653

2,348,875

1,586

3,922

18,983

45,291

103,362

2,522,019

709,312

954,944

10,209

985,694

2,660,159

582,446
900,003
736

853,119

2,336,304

62,182

4,614

1,986,480

2,053,276

1,125

4,010

35,293

148

56,451

2,150,303
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
eI R

At 31stMarch2018 R=ZE—N\E=A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2018 2017

—B-N\F —B—tF
Note ffitzf $000 ¥t $'000 F;t $000F $000F T

Current liabilities

REBEE

Trade and other payables 20 1,863,772 1,466,904
SRR R AR

Bank loans 21 27,085 7,329
IRITER

Obligations under finance leases 22 921 1,221
RERE 2 &

Current tax payable 25(a) 31,265 37,781
PEASIR AR IR

1,923,043 1,513,235

Net current assets 737,116 823,069
ERBEE

Total assets less current liabilities 3,259,135 2,973,372
REERREBERS

Non-current liabilities

FRBEE

Bank loans 21 - 200,000
IRITER

Obligations under finance leases 22 - 909
RMERE 2 E®

Employee retirement benefit liabilities 23(b) 16,066 22,065
EERKERERE

Deferred tax liabilities 25(b) 73,923 60,692
EEMRIBEE

89,989 283,666

NET ASSETS 3,169,146 2,689,706
FEE

102 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
eI R

At 31stMarch2018 R=ZE—N\E=A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2018 2017

—B-N\F —B—tF
Note ffitzf $000 ¥t $'000 F;t $000F $000F T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

EXRR #E
Share capital 26(c) 857,335 774,246

[N
Reserves 2,052,422 1,697,123
f#E
Total equity attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company 2,909,757 2,471,369
EARIRERE ABLERERE
Non-controlling interests 259,389 218,337
R R

TOTAL EQUITY 3,169,146 2,689,706

“E-N\FAATEREESSHELRER

o

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
15th June 2018.

E i

Winston Yau-lai LO Roberto GUIDETTI
Director Director

EF EFE

The notes on pages 108 to 220 form part of these financial % 108 £ 220 B 2 MIFE IR B iRk 2 — 3047 ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity
mEEREEKR

For the year ended 31st March 2018 BZ—ZE—N\F=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ADAREEEARE
Share-based Non-
Share Capital Surplus Other General Hedging  Exchange compensation  Retained controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests

RAER
Re  Erif  EBRE  AMBRE 0 -RBE  HHBE  EXBRE  RERE  REE At FERER
(note 26(c)(i) (note 26(d)(i)) (note 26()(i)) (note 26(d)(ii)) (note 26(d)(iv)) (note 26(d)(v)) (note 26(c)(vi)
(B 26(c))) (R=E26(c)) (HiEE26(d)if) (BE26(d)ii) (Kt 261d)(iv)) (Bt 26(d)lv)) (K 26(d)(vi)
Noteffit  §000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fx  $000Fxm $000Fx  $000Fxm  $000Fm  $000Fkm  $000Fm  $000FT  $000FR

Balance at 1t April 2016 733722 46959 52818 (48,622) 2261 (217) (7,779) 3340 1389253 2199735 212128 2411863
H-3-A¥MA-REE

Changes in equity for the year:
REEVRERY

Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 618372 618372 34922 653294
RERHR

Other comprehensive income 9 - - - - - (888) (82,340) - 8,579 (74.649) (5,248) (79897)
Afp2 Ak

Total comprehensive income - - - - - (888) (82:340) - 626951 543723 29674 573,397
AYBEE

Transfer from retained profits
tosurplus reserve
BREENERZRHRRE
Transfer from capital reserve
toretained profits 26(d)(i) - (4,087) - - - - - - 4087
BEAREREZRERT
Shares issuied on exercise
of share options 26(c)(i) 40524 - - - - - - (5.994) - 34530 - 34530
ATEBREMEGRE
Equity settled share-based
transactions = = = = = = = 11739 - 1739 - 1,739
HRAARTER RS
Final dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 26(b)(ii - - - - - - - - (2784000 (278400) - (278400)
HEBRL-EE2RBRE
Iterim dividend declared in respect
of the current year 26(0)(i) - - - - - - - - (39.958) (39.958) - (39.958)
ERAEEZAHRE
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - - - (23,465) (23,465)
EFERERTERE

Balance at 31t March 2017 774246 42872 58459 (48622) 2261 (1105)  (90119) 3085 1696292 2471369 218337 2,689,706
H-B-tEZA=t-BEH

5641 = = = = = (5.641)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAENBBR

For the year ended 31st March 2018 BZ—ZE—N\F=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ADAREEEARE
Share-based Non-
Share Capital Surplus Other General Hedging  Exchange compensation  Retained controlling
capital reserve Teserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests

RHER

Re  EfGfE  EnRE  AMBRE 0 -RBE  H0BE  EXBRE  RRRE  REE At FERER
(note 26(c)(i) (note 26(d)(i)) (note 26()(i)) (note 26(d)(ii)) (note 26(d)(iv)) (note 26(d)(v)) (note 26(d)(vi)
(KEE260)))  (Hi=E261)0)  (B=E 26(e) i) (Hf=E 26(e) i) (Kt 261d)(iv)) (Bt 26(d)lv)) (K 26(d)vi)

Noteffit  §000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fx  $000Fxm $000Fx  $000Fxm  $000Fm  $000Fkm  $000Fm  $000FT  $000FR

Balance at 1t April 2017 T14.246 42812 58459 (48,622) 2261 (1,105 (90419) 37085 1696292 2471369 218337 2,689,706
R-%-tERA-RER

Changes in equity for the year:
REEVRERY

Profit for the year - - - - - - - 585,774 585,774 56,281 642,055
KREERA
Qther comprehensive income 9 - - - - - 5,685 133248

AftdEds

Total comprehensive income - - - - - 5,685 133248
PENELE

Transfer from retained profits

tosurplus reserve - - 11970 - - - -
RRERTIER 2 B0
Transfer from capital reserve

to retained profits 26(d)(i)
BEAREREZRERT
Shares issuied on exercise

of share options 26(c)(i) 83,089 - - - - - - (13.485) - 69,604 - 69,604
ATEBREMEGRE
Equity settled share-based

transactions - - - - - - - 8273 - 8273 = 8273
HRAARTER RS
Final dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 26(b)(ii - - - - - - - - (285831)  (285831) - (285831
HEBRL-EE2RBRE
Special dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 26b)(i) - - - - - - -
HEBRL-EE2RARE
Interim dividend declared in respect

of the current year 26(b)(i) - - - - - - -
EREEZAHRE
Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests - - - - - - - - - - (27253 (27253
WFERERTERE

Balance at 31t March 2018 857,335 38785 70429 (48622) 2261 4580 43129 31873 1909987 2909757 259389 3169146
R-%-NFzA=t-RER

609 145028 1204 157052

591869 730802 68305 799107

(11.970)

(4.087) = = = = =

4087

(44299) (44299 = (44299)

(40161)  (40.161) = (40,161)

The notes on pages 108 to 220 form part of these financial £ 108 £ 220 B Z Mg I ANB FE Rk 2 —EB1D o
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow

Statement
n\/T\ Iﬁ:ﬁ/)lbi%‘%

For the year ended 31st March 2018 BZ=%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

~\EZA=t+—HLLFE

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—EB—+F

Note ffitzf $000 ¥t $'000 F;t $000F $000F T

Operating activities

ReEEY

Cash generated from operations
REXBAERE

Tax paid

EHBiE

- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

- BB BREH

- Tax paid outside Hong Kong
- BHEBLUIIMEERIE

Net cash generated from operating activities

RETDMERSEHE

Investing activities

REZED

Payment for the purchase of other
property, plant and equipment

BEHMYXE BERZHEHE IR

Proceeds from sale of other property,
plant and equipment

HEHEMYZE - BERKERERIE

Government grants received for acquisition
of plant and equipment

W B R B B2 7% 18 2 B WUBURT /e B

Decrease in long-term bank deposits

RHESRITERORM S

Net cash inflow on disposal of assets and
liabilities classified as held for sale

HESEARELHEZEERAR
ZEERANFE

Investment in joint venture

REE QR ZIRE

Interest received

2UWFRE
Net cash (used in)/generated from

investing activities
RETEE (FiA) FERSFHE

18(b) 1,274,140

(53,726)

(154,874)

1,065,540

(421,142)

21,930

11(a) 10,913

19 =

(65,018)

9,859

(443,458)

1,069,628

(43,906)

(80,810)

944,912

(250,870)

1,016

4,021

1,406

338,226

(815)

5,314

98,298
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
n/-.r\ Iﬁﬁlllbié‘%

For the year ended 31st March 2018 BZ—ZE—N\F=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2018 2017
—2-N\F —B—+t%

Note ffitzf $000 ¥t $'000 F;t $000F $000F T

Financing activities

RESEE
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid 18(c) (1,244) (1,212)
S rEREEE 2 ERIBMG
Proceeds from new bank loans 18(c) 27,229 -
FTIBIRITE TS RIE
Repayment of bank loans 18(c) (207,461) (138,735)
BERITER
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid 18(c) (121) (201)
2 rEREEE 2 F 2B M0
Interest paid 18(c) (1,579) (5,544)
2RFE
Proceeds from shares issued on exercise

of share options 69,604 34,530

MATEBRAERITRM AERIE
Dividends paid to equity shareholders
of the Company (370,410) (316,850)
mAQ B RERFE ARERE
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (27,253) (23,465)
I IR R EE AR B
Net cash used in financing activities (511,235) (451,377)
RMETEARSTRE
Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 110,847 591,833
ReRREZEEBEMNER

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April 852,649 271,245
REA—HZzRERRESEEEH

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 21,689 (10,429)
EREEH s oE
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March 18(a) 985,185 852,649

R=ZA=t—HZRERAEFEHER

The notes on pages 108 to 220 form part of these financial £ 108 £ 220 B Z M I AB FE Rk 2 — EB1D o
statements.
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Notes to the Financial

Statements
B SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective termincludes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in a joint
venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that derivative
financial instruments are stated at fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out in note 1(t).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see
note 1(x)).

108 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #th i EIFR EEEH R A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. None
of these impact on the accounting policies of the Group. However,
additional disclosure has been included in note 18(c) to satisfy the
new disclosure requirements introduced by the amendments to
HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which require
entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

1 FESHEE @
(b) BMEHRZ2EEEE @)

EEERTRANE (BBYBHRELR) 28t
BREGFHELESTRRER  UREE -
B WARZHZHRESE 2 HE - A5 RRE
R o WEMATTRAABEBRREREATERMNEE
EREERBERASSEZZHAMBERFEL
HERBHUEEEBEBEEMRBERMRTHRE
HEERBBEZREESFELHE 2 E# - &
BRI BB BIRME B -

EEESTHENESEGTNEBRE - HES
FHEFT 2 BT RERE B - BRBITRESE
EEHET B AR - NAMRETHE M ARR
HEIREE - AIEEHREET 2R AR R
R o

FREERERA(EBUBRELED) KT
HE M B RRBEEATE 2 HE - R THE
ERRZEERRZABAR » HRME2 -

() EFFBEXZEH

BREFTMLAEEMG T ZERAEBEA S5
BERERZ(BEBYBRELL) BT - &%
BITHASESHBRRLELE - A BF
SB(EBEHEA BIRREREX KE
A& 2SI A ZHWBRE (ERERE
HIRE - EHBHRREAEEATEEREZTD
EEXZEEEE  BREASREZPINFRERE
g) - Mz 18(c) CHIMBIMREE R

REBWARKABEMREMNS BB ERERZ
AT RIS o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

Aninvestmentinasubsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controllinginterests inthe results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(n) or (o) depending on the nature of the
liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
adisposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(k)(ii)).

(e) Jointventure

Ajoint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and haverights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless itis classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale (see note 1(x)). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see notes 1(f) and (k)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

1 FESHEE @
(d) MEBATRIFERER @)

AEBTEHRAEFHEZMNBARESZZE )
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Joint venture (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in
an associate or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties held under operating leases are accounted
for as if they were held under a finance lease (see note 1(j)).
Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 50 years.

The useful life of investment properties is reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 1(u)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBABBI - LUBHEHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)):

Freehold land and buildings;

- Land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the land and
buildings cannot be measured separately at the inception
of the lease and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease (see note 1(j));

- Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease (see note 1(j)); and

- Other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Depreciationis calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

(i)  Freeholdland is not depreciated.

(i) Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 25 years.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iii) Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years.

(iv) Other plant and equipment:

Factory machinery and equipment 4 - 25 years
Fixtures, furniture and office equipment 3-12years
Motor vehicles 4 - 10years

No provision for depreciation is made for construction in progress
until such time when the assets are substantially completed and
ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (note 1(k)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

20 years
7 years

- Brand name
- Customer list

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

- Property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under afinance lease (see note 1(g)); and

- Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease,
is accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Leased assets (Continued)

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased assets, or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years, or where it is
likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 1(g) and note 1(h).

Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 1(k)(ii). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period.

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset.

Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an investment property
(see note 1(g)). Impairment losses are recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 1(k)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R SEBI - BN )
1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)  Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

- For investments in joint ventures accounted for under the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements (see
note 1(e)), the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 1(k)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 1(k)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

- For trade and other receivables carried at cost or amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of the assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment
ismade collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS SRR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwiill,
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may

have decreased:

interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases;

investment properties;

other property, plant and equipment;

intangible assets;

goodwill;

interest in joint venture; and

investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1
(k)
(ii)

(1

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assetsinthe unit (or group of units) on a pro ratabasis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Costiscalculated using thefirst-in, first-out method and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred

in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

(m) Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(k)
(i)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

(o) Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note 1(s)(i),
payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement
plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net
defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised in profit and loss
and allocated by function as part of “cost of sales”, “marketing,
selling and distribution expenses”, “administrative expenses” or
“other operating expenses”. Current service cost is measured as
the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current period. When
the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed,
the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised
as an expense in profit and loss at the earlier of when the plan
amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costsorterminationbenefitsarerecognised. Netinterest expense/
(income) for the period is determined by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset). The
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans
are recognised in other comprehensive income and reflected
immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Long service payments obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans that
are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The discount
rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligation. The obligation is calculated by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

(iv) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in share capital
for the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1

(r)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate toitems recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Currenttaxisthe expectedtaxpayableonthetaxableincome
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

(ii)

(iii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1

(r)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (Continued)
(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Income tax (Continued)
(v)  (Continued)
- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

()  Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
trade and other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the actual
rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have changed, had
the guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(s)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount currently carried
in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(t) Cashflow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency
risk of a committed future transaction, the effective portion of
any gains or losses on re-measurement of the derivative financial
instrument to fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If the hedginginstrument is anon-derivative monetary item, which
is permitted only for foreign currency risk, then the effective
portion of the foreign currency gains or losses on the hedging
instrument also are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any foreign currency gains or losses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Cash flow hedges (Continued)

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss reclassified from equity is to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset
or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of afinancial asset or afinancial liability, the associated
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability
assumed affects profit or loss (such as when interest income or
expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding
two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods during
which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity
until the transaction occurs and it is recognised in accordance with
the above policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected
to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss immediately.

(u) Revenue recognition

Revenueis measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’
premises or picked up by customers or when goods are shipped on
board/arrived the designated port which are taken to be the point
intime when the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of returns, rebates
and discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)  Service fees
Servicefeesarerecognised whentherelatedservicesare provided.
Service fees exclude value added tax or other sales taxes.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(v) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss, except those non-derivative monetary items used
to hedge foreign currency risk which are recognised in other
comprehensive income (see note 1(t)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items
that in substance form part of the net investment in an operation
outside Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified
to equity on consolidation.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing cost as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Non-current assets held for sale

Anon-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale
if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use
and the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed of
together as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above criteria
for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary
after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with the accounting policies before the classification.
Then, on initial classification as held for sale and until disposal, the
non-current assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to
this measurement policy so far as the financial statements of the
Group and the Company are concerned are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits and certain financial assets.
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be measured
in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in
profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for
sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

(y) Repair and maintenance expenditure
Repair and maintenance expenditure, including cost of overhaul,
is expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
(z) Related parties (2)
(a)  Aperson,or aclose member of that person’s family, is related (a)

to the Group if that person:
(i)  hascontrol or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b)
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Bothentities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) Theentityiscontrolled orjointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group.
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who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person BOEHZALTRFEEREZALIZE BB
in their dealings with the entity. BE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R SEBI - BN )
1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used todistribute the productsor
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
Notes 13, 23 and 24 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment assessment,
defined benefit retirement liabilities and the fair value of share
options granted. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. Under HKAS
36, these assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume, selling prices and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount. However, actual sales volumes, selling prices
and operating costs may be different from assumptions which may
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets
affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 11.

EARQH

1 FESHBEK @
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2 EETFIER A
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (see note 11) are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual values, if any. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives and the estimated residual
values, if any, of the assets at least annually in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based
onthe Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking
into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

(c) Impairment loss for doubtful debts

The Group maintains anallowance for doubtful debts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of the debtors to make required
payments. The Group estimates the future cash flows based on
the ageing of the trade receivables balance as disclosed in note 17,
debtors’ credit-worthiness and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of the debtors were to deteriorate, actual
write-offs would be higher than estimated.

(d) Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories as disclosed in note 16 with reference to
aged inventories analysis, expected future consumption and
management judgement. Based on these reviews, write down of
inventories will be made when the estimated net realisable value
of inventories decline below the carrying amount. However,
actual consumption may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation.

(e) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
benefits can be utilised, management’s judgements is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax
assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. Details
of the nature and carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are
disclosed in note 25(b).

2 EEHE R @

(b) % BERREBZFE

M - BENSE (RME11) 2 ERER
A RIBREE (W) BREZSZEE 257
ERFHUERETE - AREELBFERNE
E2 G ERFRR A REER (WF) - U
BEEEMNERABRCEZINEERHE - 7
EAFHRNSGEEDREAEBUEERLE
ELzERMEE LZRIRPBEZRIME
1t o B RERMAFTHEEREL - BIRRBBR
ZITEBASEAR -

() RERBEBR
AEERERARNEHATERMELGE
BHESRZRER AEEURRBESREZME
sTRARBEWARTEREE < Rl (MM 178E)
BERAZERRUEMERS H2EBMEL - it
HEBAZTBRREB(L  BEBIRETESR
fhat e

(d) HWREFE

FEESEFERRDON - BHAREAERE
BEEzHE HEEZREEETENREHN (R
M 16WE) - MEFEE AT R2BEFEKEE
REREE @ BIARSESRIEER 2 45 R MM
FEZEE AW BEREAENREMGTAHN
TR Mt fEEhz B AR &R

(e) ELERBEEE
EERIREE TR R B A B 1R % R H E B
EFEMER - ARZSELEFREERRRE A
BEfEE AR B B WUIE e SR 85 B 18 PSR BB T B
TERA  AUFTEEEEHE R RESRERS
B ATREME o AEE T EREERE 25
fisl R R FER BB A REFIEER H EE R WD - &
SRR CELEHIREE - BERBEEE 2
BN REEF BRI 25(b) %5 °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting

(a) Revenue
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale
of food and beverages.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of
returns, rebates and discounts.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are organised
by geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

- The Mainland China business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soya milk, tea, juice, etc. in Mainland
China;

- The Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)
mainly represents the manufacture and sale of soya milk,
tea, water, juice, tofu, etc. in Hong Kong, sale of beverages
in Macau, export of beverages from Hong Kong and the
operating of tuck shops and catering businesses;

- The Australia and New Zealand business mainly represents
the manufacture and sale of soya milk and other plant milk
products in Australia and sale of beverages in New Zealand;
and

- The Singapore business mainly represents the manufacture
and sale of soya related products in Singapore and sale of
soya related products in overseas.

All of the Group’s revenue is generated from the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interest in joint venture,
deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable, goodwill and
unallocated head office and corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade creditors and bills payable attributable to the
manufacture and sales activities of the individual segments, bank
loans and obligations under finance leases managed directly by the
segments and current liabilities with the exception of employee
retirement benefit liabilities, current tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and unallocated head office and corporate liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit from
operations”. To arrive at “profit from operations”, the Group’s
profit is further adjusted for (i) items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as share of losses of joint venture,
finance costs and unallocated head office and corporate expenses;
(ii) non-recurring income or expenditure from the operating
segments, such as gain/(loss) on disposal of assets and liabilities
classified as held for sale and (iii) goodwill impairment. Income tax
is not allocated to reporting segments. Inter-segment sales are

priced at cost plus a profit margin.

During the vyear, certain amendments and reclassifications
were made to the management reports presented to the senior
executive management in order to better reflect the composition
and performance of each segment. Prior year comparatives have
been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

3 WARDEHRE @
(b) DEHE @)
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B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continved) 3 WARZEEHE @0

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE @)
()  Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) HEFEE EERERE (&)

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as BEZ-N\ERZZE—tF=A=1+—HILEHF
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for B BERAEEESEBITHEREABRMZE
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment REERDHRBEI G2 ARSI ERETIM
performance for the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017 is T

set out below:

Mainland China Hong Kong Operation ~ Australia and New Zealand Singapore Total
hER BERE EHRHER ifik 5t

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
2B\ ZE-tF ZE-\F ZE-tF BN ZE-tF ZR-NE O ZE-tF ZR-\E ZE4R
$000Fx  $000fm $000Fm §000Fm  §000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000FR

Revenue from external customers 3700034 2666244 2158936 2167552 501,807 471894 103,748 100400 ~ 6464525 5406090
REMNEREZUA

Inter-segment revenue 66,128 85012 47406 64,307 899 346 2519 2004 | 116952 151669
AHERA

Reportable segment revenue 3766162 2751256 | 2206342 2231859 502706 472240 | 106267 102404 = 6581477 5557759
BREABZUA

Reportable segment profit from operations 542267 317,197 352,088 381,012 94639 87214 7333 11522 996,327 796,945
EREN D2 BEER

Interest income from bank deposits 2,758 765 6,963 4392 136 156 2 1 9,859 5314
RERZASRA

(961) (494) (745) (1,208) (2,024) ®

Finance costs (1,700) (3730)

EEGLS

Depreciation and amortisation for the year (140313 (129930) (93933) (95919 (12.313) (11,329) (4,185) (3552) ~ (250744)  (240722)
REEZINEREH
Reportable segment assets 2568086 2049409 © 2842352 2950858 406790 362806 69,119 57136 5886347 5420209
AREN R

Reportable segment iabilities 1498014 1304623 575619 721986 120176 105010 16279 11695 ~ 2211088 2143314
BREADLAR

Additions to non-current segment assets
during the year 27801 120586 122148 59,364 61,817 13405 6,692 4842 | 428258 198197
KEENB ERDINEE
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B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or
loss, assets and liabilities

3 WARDHHE @

(b) DEEHE (@)

(ii) HOHUA - Bis - EEREREZ

_32‘1‘,55

2018 2017
—EB-N\FE —E—+F
$'000 F 7t $000 Tt
Revenue
A
Reportable segment revenue 6,581,477 5,557,759
BREDEBZWA
Elimination of inter-segment revenue (116,952) (151,669)
2 EBREURA Z HgE
Consolidated revenue 6,464,525 5,406,090
mElA

Profit or loss

B

Reportable segment profit from operations

AHED KL R

Finance costs (note 5(a))

RE A (MiEE5(a))

Share of losses of joint venture

Frit &% AREE

Net gain on disposal of assets and liabilities classified
as held for sale (note 19)

HESEARELEZEEREBEZFNRE (& 19)

Recognition of impairment losses on goodwill (note 13)

BRABEZRERSE (i 13)

Unallocated head office and corporate expenses

RO BARREEER

996,327

(1,700)

(17,814)

(18,342)

(155,737)

796,945

(3,730)

(627)

189,595

(138,506)

Consolidated profit before taxation

ARE BB ER

802,734

843,677
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B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEHIE - LUBRE)
3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

3 WARDHHE @

(b) DEEHE (@)

(i) HOHUA - Bis - BEEREREZ

¥'J‘§E (&)

2018
—E-N\F
$'000 F 7T

2017

—E2—+F

$000 7t

Reportable segment assets 5,886,347 5,420,209
BAREDWBZEE
Elimination of inter-segment receivables (909,792) (1,030,931)
7 EB B UL R 2 i85
4,976,555 4,389,278
Interest in joint venture 45,291 148
EENT 2R
Deferred tax assets 103,362 56,451
EERIBEERE
Current tax recoverable 10,209 736
FEWIR BRF 1E
Goodwill 18,983 35,293
[EES
Unallocated head office and corporate assets 27,778 4,701
ATz B R REEESE
Consolldated total assets 5,182,178 4,486,607
iT A I W IQE
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
$'000 F 7t $000 Tt
Liabilities
a&E
Reportable segment liabilities 2,211,088 2,143,314
BAREIHBzEE
Elimination of inter-segment payables (344,300) (492,880)
7 B R E AT R e
1,866,788 1,650,434
Employee retirement benefit liabilities 16,066 22,065
EERNKENERE
Deferred tax liabilities 73,923 60,692
EERIEEE
Current tax payable 31,265 37,781
FEFIRHRFR 1E
Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities 24,990 25,929
FomMzBRARREEAR
Consolidated total liabilities 2,013,032 1,796,901
%'Zl— /A e ,\'FE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographic
location of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, deposits
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, goodwill and interest in joint venture (“specified non-
current assets”). The geographic location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property, plant and equipment and deposits for the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible
assets and goodwill and the location of operations, in the case of
interest in joint venture.

3 WARDEEHE @)

(b) DEFRE (@)

(iii) HEEF

T%ﬁﬂﬁ@$EH%¥ R RS IR

CBEYE BERREBZAE  BREE -
Piﬁﬁi&BAA“"EZEIEm (IMBEFRBDEE])

ZER - BE - MERRBRBENE BE
EkREzAIEMs BEFRRDEE 2 HEME

E*E?F%Z’QFZE‘WMEEEEE B EERE
SRRHEERE CEBAAEN  BREER
jZ*Eﬁnﬁﬁ— EUEEE S 97ipes:

Specified non-current assets

BEFRBEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —
$'000 T 7T $000 ¥t
Mainland China 1,526,578 1,305,970
FEIR s
Hong Kong Operation 541,409 522,593
BBEK
Australia and New Zealand 247,742 196,277
UM R e e
Singapore 57,637 68,864
N
Other country 45,291 148
HAbE R
2,418,657 2,093,852

The revenue from external customers and specified non-current
assets of the Group attributed to Hong Kong, the Group’s place
of domicile,amounted to $1,875,456,000 (2017: $1,859,082,000)
and $534,437,000 (2017: $516,296,000) respectively.

BE (REEMEM) EAREERBIIEERT 2
ARFEERSEIRREEED B A 1,875456,000
T (ZE—+%F : 1,859,082,0007T) & 534,437,000

7T (ZZF—+%F 1 516,2960007T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

4 Otherincome 4 HbmA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$’000 Tt $'000 Tt
Government grants (note) 3,570 7,917
BUREEY (FfEE)
Interest income 9,859 5314
FEWA
Rental income 3,667 3,406
HEWA
Scrap sales 1,019 1,637
Reversal of long outstanding other payables 2,441 1,970
REREEHMESRER
Sundry income 7,273 14,394
FEEWA
27,829 34,638
Note: st

Government grants mainly relate to value-added tax refunded and other BAHEZERZEARLNE ([HE]) BTREZE
financial assistance received from the government of the People’s Republic ERREEWER M5 ER - BIBERE K& EBRE
of China (“PRC”). Other government grants received in relation to the 2 EMBUTEB S AR E = 2 BRAIRR (MEE 11(a)) ©
acquisition of plant and equipment were netted off against the cost of the

related assets (note 11(a)).
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

5 Profit before taxation 5 BR¥ADGRF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRBADERT IR (T A) -

(a) Finance costs:

AR ¢

Interest on bank loans 1,579 5,544
RITERZFIE

Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 121 201
RMEHEEB MK ER

1,700 5,745

Less: interest expense capitalised into property,
plant and equipment* - (2,015)

W WERMERYE  BERRBZAEZH*

1,700 3,730

The borrowing costs had been capitalised at a rate of 1.43% per annum * BE_Z—tHF=A=+—HLEFE HWEKLH
for the year ended 31st March 2017. BERTIREE 1.43% 2 BRTE -

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF

$’000 Tt $000 F T

(b) Staff costs:
BIHA:

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 83,211 66,219
REMFRARGTEI 2 HR

Net expenses recognised in respect of:

DUTIEAZ2EERERFE

- retirement gratuities (note 23(c)(v)) 3,734 4,159
- BIRE (FEE23(c)(v))

- long service payments 616 579
- RERBE S

Total retirement costs 87,561 70,957
IR RER A

Equity settled share-based payment expenses (note 24) 8,273 11,739
DR ANRER &R (MEE24)

Salaries, wages and other benefits 1,297,844 1,173,232

e TERHMER

1,393,678 1,255,928

Annual Report 2017/2018 & E & 143



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

5 Profit before taxation (continued) 5 BR¥ADGEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRELADRFIS R (BT A) & (&)
(Continued)

2018 2017

—F-)N\F A
$000 ¥t $:000 F 7t

(c) Otheritems:
HipEg -

Amortisation of interests in leasehold land held

for own use under operating leases 1,585 1,520
RELEHEREEEAZEE T i 2 #H
Amortisation of intangible assets 379 367
B EE 2B
Depreciation
- Investment properties 526 526
-REYE
- Assets acquired under finance leases 263 254
-UmEREBACEE
- Other assets 247,991 238,055
- HihEE
Recognition of impairment losses
BRREREE
- Trade and other receivables 256 4,186
- YRR H U R
- Property, plant and equipment 13,625 1,631
-M% -  BMERRZE
- Goggidwill 18,342 -

Auditors’ remuneration
N &
- Audit services
- B
- Provision for the current year 5,580 5,075
- REEZRE
- (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior year (33) 146
-UEFEZ (SEEE) BETR
- Tax services 978 220
- B ARAE
- Other services 18,394 5,404
- H AR
Operating lease charges: minimum lease payments

HEREER  REEENR

- Hire of properties 111,618 101,419
- A=

- Hire of factory machinery and equipment 1,256 979
-HATIHmEE &S

- Contingent rent 930 780
- ARHEE

- Other assets 330 361
-HithEE

Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (7,117) 2,634
HEME MERSEZ () HIEFE

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss (514) 612

SNE (Was) BT

Net loss/(gain) on forward exchange contracts

not designated as hedging instruments 9 920 (124)
FIEEREPIAZERNNESH 2 FER (K&R)
Cost of inventories (note 16(b)) 3,048,655 2,536,157

FERA (FiEE 16(b)
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

6

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents:

6

(a)

mEBRBERZAER

REBRBERIBENT

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REABIE - EBFEHR

Provision for the year 40,282 51,941
FREE
Over-provision in respect of prior years (100) (13)
DHEFEzahEE
40,182 51,928

Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
REARIE - FEMUIIMEE
Provision for the year 158,500 103,465
FREE
Over-provision in respect of prior years (7,504) (1,987)
DHEFEZ e A

150,996 101,478
Deferred tax (30,499) 36,977
IEIEBIIE

160,679 190,383

Notes: FIEE -

(i

(i)

(iii)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2018 is calculated at
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance notes, the statutory income
tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries in Shenzhen, Foshan,
Shanghai, Wuhan and Dongguan is 25%.

In addition, the Group is subject to withholding tax at the applicable
rate of 5% on distribution of profits generated after 31st December
2007 from the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC.
Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in this regard based on
the expected dividends to be distributed from the foreign-invested
enterprises in the PRC in the foreseeable future in respect of the
profits generated after 31st December 2007.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and Mainland China
is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the
relevant tax jurisdictions.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

—E-N\EEBRESHBERRFERNZGTER
BaFLL16.5% (ZF—+F : 16.5%) ZFHERFTE ©

REMBTELEMERER  ERRERESIFE
B EARARR R il b RERR
ZME DR ZEEREHES 25% °

o AEBEARAKERRANSEEEUR 2R
TtE+Z A=t -RRELE ZEFEL 22 IKE
SHERABREGMNRNH - ARECSHEREFTE
HELENARRRRETUR=-ZEZLE+ A
=+ -RARELEZENDIKZREFIRELBIES
& o

HBRPENUIMEE 2B QT2 BIRBRE
SRR EERRE 2 RTERAREREH -
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

6 Income tax in the consolidated 6 HMEBRRZFBH @
statement of profit or loss (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEXHESTENLUERBE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FEZHER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —
$'000 T 7T $000 F T

Profit before taxation 802,734 843,677
BRBE AT A
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates

applicable to profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 186,902 212,089
REBEREBEREZEERBER ZFEHB R ERBA

Az BEMIA
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 14,897 2,519
AR 2 BiIE S &
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (3,611) (1,613)
FERBMAZHIERTE
Withholding tax of PRC subsidiaries 10,783 3,858
FEIE A R ZTAREMIA
Tax effect of current year’s tax losses not recognised - 1,790
AEERERZBBER 2B BEE
Tax effect of recognition of tax loss not previously recognised (24,415) (3,029)
BREAMAREIZBBEBZHETE
Tax effect of utilisation of temporary differences

not previously recognised - (8,055)
MEREAAREICEREE BT E
Net over-provision in respect of prior years (7,604) (2,000)
UEFEzefBEEE
Others (16,273) (15,176)
HAth
Actual tax expense 160,679 190,383
BERMEXH
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(BRBEHPAN  LUBEHE)

7 Emoluments of Directors 7 EBEZME

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIBEB CARMEH) 55 383(1) IR K (AT (HE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ESFRER) KA B2MEREEEME W
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation T

are as follows:

2018
—E-0\%
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors'  and benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments
-4 il B BB A
BEHe RENGR  RHZPL EE L5 Pt EREZAR
(note)
(Hzt)
$000Fx $000Fx  $000Fx  $000Fm  $000Frm  $000 Fr
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO 240 5,582 3,822 341 9,985 3,159 13,144
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 120 6,700 3,774 235 10,829 3,726 14,555
BEESLE
Mr. Eugene LYE (appointed on 1st October 2017) 60 2,001 = 55 2,116 = 2,116

Bhlgs (R=2-tE+A-BEZRE)

Non-executive Directors

*HTES

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO (retired on 1st October 2017) 68 - - - 68 = 68
BERELT (R=2—tETA-BER)

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO 136 - - - 136 - 136
BRRuL

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO (appointed on 24th June 2017) 92 - - - 92 - 92
BERLE (R tERA-THAEZE)

Ms.May LO (appointed on 24th June 2017) 92 - - - 92 - 92

BHXZL (R=B-tEAAZTREEZEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI 429 = = = 429 - 429
EE

Mr. Jan P.S.ERLUND 417 - - - 417 - 417
JanPS.ERLUND %4

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE 417 - - - 417 - 417
REELE

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH 442 = = = 442 - 442
Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG (appointed on 24th June 2017) 252 - - - 252 - 252

BTTET (R-F-tERAZTREEZA)

2,765 14,283 7,596 631 25275 6,885 32,160
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors (Continued) 7 EBEzZ2ME @

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIBEB CARMEH) 383N IR K (A F (HE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ESFRER) KA B2MEREEEME W
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation T (&)

are as follows: (Continued)

2017
—Z-t%
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme based
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments
e 2 Bis BIK U5
BESHe REWERN  BReRL HE Mt BRZAR
(note)
(Pt
$000Fx  $000Fx  $000Frm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000F T
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr.Winston Yau-lai LO 231 5041 3,702 328 9,302 4,106 13,408
BEREBEE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 116 7597 3616 226 11,555 3,582 15,137
BEELE
Non-executive Directors
FHTES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO 131 - - - 131 - 131
BREALL
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO 131 = = = 131 = 131
BRRLL
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI 413 = = = 413 = 413
TEERT
Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG
(retired on 2nd September 2016) 176 - - - 176 - 176
REELE
(R=Z-~"EAA-REM)
Mr. Jan P.S.ERLUND 414 - - - 414 - 414
JanPS.ERLUND %4
Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE 402 - - - 402 - 402
PERLE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
(appointed on 3rd September 2016) 238 - - - 238 - 238

Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4
(R=Z-~ENA=HEZH)

2252 12,638 7318 554 22,762 7,688 30,450

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the MaE . URGOAERZARIERERAT ZBRETE

Directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of RYIEScEREZGATER LEBREZE
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting ETIRIEMEE 1a)(iv) FTE A EER R D BT
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 1(q)(iv) ERCXSRAETTBERMT & MIRRZK
and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse R OREHBAFERTMABRENRATI AR
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments FEBACHERN BB SEETEZAZE -

are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and HWEBYEMN2FE (BFEERECEREZETE
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share BREREE) RESERE [BRETE] -BR
option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 24. Mz 24 P E o
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017:
two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2017:
three) individuals are as follows:

8 EEMEAL

AhEReMEALTH WME(ZE-—LF W
B) RES REZHERWE7HRE - HER
=F (Z2—tF  =8) AL zZBERRENT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
$'000 F 7t $000 Tt
Salaries and other emoluments 10,400 13,018
HeRkHEHMEE
Retirement scheme contributions 367 614
BIRETEIER
Discretionary bonuses 1,806 4,199
BB 2 TEAL
Share-based payments 1,695 4,029
LU0 BEE 2
14,268 21,860
The emoluments of the three (2017: three) individuals with the =R (ZE—t&F: =38) e AL ZBE

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

$4,000,001 to $4,500,000
4,000,001 7T = 4,500,000 TT
$4,500,001 to $5,000,000
4,500,001 7t Z 5,000,000 7T
$5,000,001 to $5,500,000
5,000,001 Jt £ 5,500,000 jt
$6,500,001 to $7,000,000
6,500,001 7t 7,000,000 7T
$9,500,001 to $10,000,000
9,500,001 7t & 10,000,000 jt

IFLLTAR

2018
—E-N\F

Number of
individuals

2017
—E—tF
Number of
individuals
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

9 Other comprehensive income 9 HttZEWEH
(a) Taxeffects relating to each component of (a) FRAHMEZEWEEIH 2B
other comprehensive income: 7

2018 2017
ZB-N\F “E—tF
Before- Net-of- Before- Tax Net-of-
tax Tax tax tax benefit/ tax

amount expense amount amount (expense) amount
HRBE BigRE HRBIE

BHAI 2% HEER £8  KEAeE (BA) x|
$000 Fx $000Fx $000Fx $000Fx $000FkT  $000F %

Exchange differences on translation of

financial statements of subsidiaries

outside Hong Kong 145,272 - 145,272 (87,588) - (87,588)
RBRERBEUIMERBARZ

BRERMEENELEE
Cash flow hedge: net movement in

the hedging reserve 6,308 (1,123) 5,685 (1,063) 175 (888)
RERELHH  HHREFLE
Remeasurement of employee retirement

benefit liabilities 7,303 (1,208) 6,095 10,140 (1,561) 8,579
EERNENEEZENHE

159,383 (2,331) 157,052 (78,511) (1,386) (79,897)

(b) Components of other comprehensive income: (b) HfbZmEUWz 23R4 :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$'000 T T $'000 F 7t
Cash flow hedges:
REeREEHH
Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging
instruments recognised during the year 21,385 (6,129)

FRBRZEIFTE AR ELRE 2B R H
Amounts transferred to initial carrying amount of
hedged items (14,577) 5,066
ERFHHPBEERYREEZ2SRHE
Net deferred tax (charged)/credited to other
comprehensive income (1,123) 175

REfZEEE GIER) /FHAZELER H T

Net movement in the hedging reserve during the
year recognised in other comprehensive income 5,685 (888)

F R AR E SR SRR R D
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

10 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$585,774,000 (2017: $618,372,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,055,541,000 ordinary shares (2017: 1,050,283,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

10 BREF

(a) BREXER
FRERBFDIRER D G RERE AELEF
585,774,000t ( = & — + % : 618,372,000
T RFRERTEBRZNELHEIRE
1,055,541,000 8% (== — £ & : 1,050,283,000
BREBR) 5T HEEWNT :

BER 2 EFIRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Number of shares Number of shares
RO RHEHE
'000 T A% '000 F Bz
Issued ordinary shares at 1st April 1,051,692 1,047,330
KRB —HBZEBTEBR
Effect of share options exercised 3,849 2,953
BIEERECTE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
at 31st March (note 10(b)) 1,055,541 1,050,283

R=ZB=1T—HZEBRZIEFIRE (E 10(b)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$585,774,000 (2017: $618,372,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,064,205,000 ordinary shares (2017: 1,059,023,000
ordinary shares) after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

at 31st March (note 10(a))
RZA=+—H2ZEBER2IMEFGRE (FEE 10(a))
Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares under

the Company’s share option scheme for nil consideration
BRERBAARZBEREFZUEBLIABTEBERZEE

(b) BREEER
FREERADIRER D G RERE AELEF
585,774,000t (=& — £ & : 618,372,000 7T)
RYFMEABTEEERA ERR 2 ZEMEL
FAR R 2 T B IR N RE T 39 IR 2 1,064,205,000 B%
(ZZ—+4% :1,059,023000 R LER) 5t& -
HEAEWOT :

BERZMEFIRY (#E)

2018
—E-N\F

2017

—E—+F
Number of shares
BROEE

'000 T A%

Number of shares
BHEE
'000 F A%

1,055,541 1,050,283

8,664 8,740

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted) at 31st March
R=ZA=+—HzEBR2IMEFHRE (#5)

1,064,205 1,059,023
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11 Property, plant and equipment 11 Y% - BERRE
(a) (a)
EES
Other property, plant and equipment leasehold
% - BERRE land held
Land and Factory Fixtures, for ownuse
buildings ~ machinery furniture under
held for and and office Motor  Construction [nvestment operating
ownuse  equipment  equipment vehicles inprogress Sub-total  properties leases
RELE
S 2B AR
BBz IEAE AR BRZER
THRET R BAZRE AE RBIR N RENE DbER fazt
$000Ffx  $000Ffm  $000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000F7m
Cost:
A
At 1st April 2016 852113 2317004 247273 129,090 351301 3896781 22698 77182 3996661
R=E- EMA-A
Exchange adjustments (27928) (70,289) (3581) (2,255) (17,514) (121,567) - (4446) (126,013)
EHRE
Additions 28523 71334 24794 14228 52495 197,374 - - 197374
AE
Transfer 113,960 191,559 34,088 - (339,607) - - - -
ER
Disposals (75) (27,559) (4.960) (6,958) - (39,552) - - (39,552)
HE
At 315t March 2017 966,593 2488049 297,614 134,105 46675 3933036 22698 72736 4028470
m%$§—t¢5ﬂ5+—ﬁ
Accumulated amortisation,
depreciation and impairment losses:
it MERBESE
At 1st April 2016 358606 1183103 169,576 71232 - 1782517 17558 9614 1809689
RZE-REMA-H
Exchange adjustments (9.250) (27,791) (1,934) (1,020) - (39,995) - (580) (40,575)
ExA%
Charge for the year 32,784 169,222 25,664 10639 - 238,309 526 1520 240,355
REEEHRNE
Recognition of impairment losses - 1426 - 205 - 1,631 - - 1,631
BRERR
Written back on disposals (68) (25,359) (3,976) (6,503) - (35,906) - - (35,906)
HERRE
At 31st March 2017 382072 1,300,601 189,330 74553 - 1946556 18,084 10554 1975194
RoE-tEZA=t-R
Net hook value:
BEFE:
At 31stMarch 2017 584521 1187448 108,284 59,552 46675 1986480 4614 62182 2053276
RZE-tE=B=t1-A
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 11 Y% - BERRE @

(@) (Continued) (a) @
EEN]
Other property, plant and equipment Jeasehold
EtbiE - BERRE land held
Land and Factory Fixtures, for own use
buildings  machinery fumiture under
held for and  andoffice Motor ~ Construction [nvestment operating
ownuse  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Sub-total  properties |eases
BELE
b2 £E. AEREE
BRz  IHH#E FRR BRZHE
THRET Rt BAERE HE Nt RENE DhER @t
$000Fx%  $000Fm  $000Fx  $000F% $000Fm  $000Fx  $000FmT  $000F%
Cost:
A
At 1st April 2017 966,593 2488049 297,614 134,105 46,675 3933036 22,698 72736 4028470
RZE-tEMmA-A
Exchange adjustments 59,756 147722 10,148 4,654 6,087 228,367 - 7,751 236,118
EHRE
Additions 4002 162,986 31984 15460 213417 427,849 - - 427,849
AE
Transfer - 85,065 12,226 - (97,291) - = = =
ER
Disposals (13,730) (57,205) (6,072) (8,337) - (85,344) - - (85,344)
HE
At 31st March 2018 1016621 2826617 345900 145,882 168888 4503908 22,698 80487 4,607,093
RZE-NE=B=1-A
Accumulated amortisation,

depreciation and impairment losses:

RirlE  FERAERR:

At Lt April 2017 382072 1,300,601 189,330 74553 - 1946556 18,084 10554 1975194
R=F-tEMmA-A

Exchange adjustments 19,147 62,676 4171 2357 - 88,351 - 1214 89,565
ExA%

Charge for the year 34,737 176,169 25772 11,576 - 248,254 526 1,585 250,365
AEERERAE

Recognition of impairment losses - 8424 5201 - - 13,625 - - 13,625
BRERR

Written back on disposals (5,828) (53,333) (4,590) (6,780) - (70,531) - - (70,531)
HERBE

At 31st March 2018 430128 1494537 219,884 81,706 - 2226255 18,610 13358 2258218

RZE-NE=A=t-H

Net book value:

REFE:

At 31st March 2018 586493 12332080 126016 64,176 168888 2,277,653 4,088 67134 2,348,875
RZE-N\EZA=t-A

Government grants of $10,913,000 (2017: $4,021,000) were FARFBEBFUEREBREERENRENBA
received from the PRC government in relation to the acquisition 8 10,913,000 T (=& —+tF : 4,021,000 7T)
of plant and equipment and were netted off against the cost of the ERMEEEE 2 AR ©

related assets during the year.
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 11 Y% - BERRE @
(b) The analysis of net book value of properties is (b) MEZREFEZDHFIT :

as follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\F —
$'000 T 7T $000 F T
In Hong Kong
BB
- medium-term leases 113,484 122,396
- RHEIFRA
Outside Hong Kong
BB UM E
- freehold 75,213 75,378
- KA
- long-term leases 10,673 10,289
- REIFEQ
- medium-term leases 458,345 443,249
- RHAME A
- short-term leases = 5
- IHHIFAA
657,715 651,317
Representing:
Rk -
Land and buildings held for own use 586,493 584,521
BEEERAZ L RIETF
Investment properties 4,088 4,614
REW*
Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating leases 67,134 62,182
RIFKEHERBIFERZEE L s
657,715 651,317
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment held under
finance leases

In addition to the leasehold land classified as being held under

finance leases, the Group holds factory machinery and equipment

under finance leases expiring from one to seven years. None of the

leases includes contingent rentals.

At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of the
factory machinery and equipment held under finance leases of the
Group amounted to $2,782,000 (2017: $3,005,000). The Group's
obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge
over the leased assets.

(d) Property, plant and equipment leased out
under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under an operating

lease. The leases runs for an initial period of three years, with an

option to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms

are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease are receivable as follows:

Within one year

— %

11 Y% -  BEKRE @

() NmEHERT2UX BER

&=
BIMFLBMERERE2EE TN AEEE
BR-ZLENHB2BEEE 6 THKS
KM - REEEYEAERRES -

RERB > AEEUMEHEFEZ TREER
RECREFEA2782000T (=B —t4F:
3,005,0007t) « NEBIRIERERE 2 BRI
HHEAZHEEEERCELRR -

(d) RELEHERL YR  BE

K&t
AEENSERERERENE - ZSHEDS
RE=F WAERREBEINHNARES  EE
FERRETENHE - ZSHETROFNA
ik

AEMBET TR CERER D RERZ B
RS ORI ¢

2018
—B-\f

2017
—E—+F
$°000 F 7t

$'000 Tt

918 918

(e) The fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties at 31st March 2018 is
$63,200,000 (2017: $61,400,000) which is estimated at their
open market value by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties (2017: same basis of valuation adopted).
The valuationwas carried out by anindependent firm of surveyors,
Roma Appraisals Limited, who have among their staff members of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of the properties being valued.

(e) REWMEZAAE

REVMER-E-N\EFE=ZA=+—HZ2REA
63,200,000 7T (=& — + F : 61,400,000 7T)
WNERSEALBYEZTHTER SRR AN
mBEEETHAT (22—t F  KEE—FE
HE) - HEDHBYAZMITESEEFEE

RABBET  AMHBERTBABMBS 2E
8 EFEENRzBER SN AFHERIIEE

o

#
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(e) The fair value of investment properties
(Continued)

The fair value measurement is categorised as a Level 3 valuation
under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available; and

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using
direct comparison approach with reference to the market price
of comparable properties and adjusted for building quality and
timing of the reference transaction. The significant unobservable
input in the fair value measurement is the property-specific
adjusting rate, which ranged from 0.94 to 1.05 (2017: 0.94 to
1.04). The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
property-specific adjusting rate.

(f) Property, plant and equipment pledged against
bank loans

The following items of property, plant and equipment are pledged

to secure certain bank loans or bank facilities granted to the

Group (note 21).

Net book value of pledged assets:

B EE 2 AREFE

Factory machinery and equipment

TR ek 1E

11 Y% - BEKRRE @
(e) REWEZDARE 8

N

NAEFERB(EBHBREED) £ 135
[AREFE|IREZ=ZRAABRESEAS
ZHREE BEAABHESEZERILZE
MTEEREMARBETBREMREEMEE
E

- B-RMGE: EERF-ReARE (DR
AERARBREEREENERTE ZRE
ARRE) FEZRAAE

- BIHGE ERE-RWARE (BIREE
EXFE-RoUBERARE) BXARER
EATUHEEMARBHEZROAE T
ABERARBAETSRIBEZWARE
54

- BZRMME: EREXTAUBRRAHE

FTBZARE-

REWMEZAARBENSEALBYEZTEFER
BEELRELEE  INSERZZ2EFTEERE
BEHFAZ - ARBEFEZEATAEHRE A
HEDENMEREE N F094E105(=F
—tF 094F104) c DAREFELEBRWE
REE R IEBRE -

(f) BBITERER 2R BER
&=

ATH%  BERRBEBC FER  WERE

EERER 2 E T RTERRRITEE (MiE21) -

2017
—E—tF

$000 F T

= 62,768
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(g) Deposits for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

As at 31st March 2018, the Group paid deposits totalling

$1,586,000 (2017: $1,125,000) to acquire property, plant and

equipment. The remaining amount of the consideration for the

acquisition is included in capital commitments (note 28(a)).

12 Intangible assets

11 Y% -  BEKRE @

(g) BEWX BMERKEBZAE

AZE—NEZA=+—R0 XEFABEY
¥ BERREBEBMEZATE£5$ 1,586,000t (=
F—+F:1,1250007%) - BEREZHT &5

STABAENSE (FfEE28(a) °

12 BLEE

Brand Customer
name list
Mg ETE BEFRE
$000 F 7t $000 Tt
Cost:
AR
At 1st April 2016 7,550 10,958 18,508
RIE—XRFWNAB—H
Exchange adjustments (259) - (259)
R TIEHELS
At 31st March 2017 7,291 10,958 18,249
K=ZB—tF=A=1-8
Accumulated amortisation:
Z5tEe
At 1st April 2016 3,020 10,958 13,978
RIE—XRFWNA—H
Exchange adjustments (106) - (106)
b H A%
Charge for the year 367 - 367
REEHE
At 31st March 2017 3,281 10,958 14,239
R=—Z—t&=A=+—H
Net book value:
BREFE -
At 31st March 2017 4,010 - 4,010

R-ZB—+tH=A=1+—H
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12 Intangible assets (continued) 12 BILEE @

Customer
list

EFRE
$'000 F 7t

Cost:
%N

At 1st April 2017 7,291 10,958
R=-ZF—tFWMB—H

Exchange adjustments 553 -
BEE 54 52

18,249

553

At 31st March 2018 7,844 10,958

18,802

Accumulated amortisation:

Rt

At 1st April 2017 3,281 10,958
R-ZE—tFWMA—H

Exchange adjustments 262 -
b 5 AR

Charge for the year 379 -
RNEE

14,239

262

379

At 31st March 2018 3,922 10,958

14,880

Net book value:

BRTHE FHE

At 31st March 2018 3,922 -
RZE—N\F=A=+—H

3,922

The amortisation charges for the year are included in “other AEFEEZHMEBRCTAGSE
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or EERIR -
loss.
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(RSEHIID - UEHEH )
13 Goodwiill 13 &

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF

$'000 Tt $000 7t

Cost:
AR

At 1st April 35,293 36,547
REA—H

Exchange adjustments 2,673 (1,254)
b 3%

At 31st March 37,966 35,293

Accumulated impairment losses:

RETRERR

At 1st April - -
REA—A

Impairment loss 18,342 -
WEEE

Exchange adjustments 641 -
PE 5 A

At 31st March 18,983 -

Carrying amount:

AREIE :

At 31st March 18,983 35,293
MR=A=+—8H
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13 Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating unit
containing goodwill

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire share capital in
Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd (“VIS”, formerly known as
Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Limited).

The recoverable amount of the VIS operation is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year
period are extrapolated using an annual growth rate of 3% (2017:
3%). The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the business in which the VIS operation operate.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation:

13 & @)
BEREZREEEENZBERS

% 2 A Uk B8 Vitasoy International Singapore Pte.
Ltd(TVIS] A& —R&Mm (RA) BRARE) 2
EEH/RATMELSE ©

VISEB 2 E B DIREEREEFEE
E o ZAtEEAREEBHEZ = FHMHESR
BHZRERERER - ZFHURZRESREA
EA3% (Z2—+F : 3%) 2FIBRREH - &
BRETEBVISEKAELEB 2 RETHE

SAEEREERRAZEZ/RAOT ¢

- Gross margin

- EFE

- Average annual sales growth rate for the three-year period
-REFHEzFEFHEERE

- Pre-tax discount rate

- BB AT IR Z

36.1% 34.8%
6.5% 13.4%
14.0% 14.0%

Management determined the budgeted gross margin and sales
growth rate based on past performance and its expectation
for market development. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

As the cash generating unit has been reduced to its recoverable
amount of $57,297,000, any adverse change in the assumptions
used in the calculation of recoverable amount would result in
further impairment losses.
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(BRBEHPAN  LUBEHE)
14 Subsidiaries 14 HEATE
The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of TREEAEEMBRARAZHE - REEFEH

the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise o REBRE2RHEAHALEBE -
stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(d) WEMBARHEAMNEE 1(d) rRE 2 Z1=E B
and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements. AR WHEAEEZMERRAGZETTE ©

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest activities
BEREERLLE
held by the held by a
MR, Company subsidiary
BRI BEBTR ¥/ NN M AR
¢ 3. BERAEFE BE BE
% %
Vitasoy USA Inc. United States Common stock: 100 - Sale of
of America US$32,841,222 soya related
EFEBERE EER products
32,841,222 5T (note 19)
HETHR
Convertible Em
series A (FFEE19)
preferred stock:
US$38,400,000
AR AR
BER :
38,400,000 = 7T
Shenzhen Vitasoy The PRC RMB80,000,000 85 - Manufacture
(Guang Ming) Foods and FE AR and sale of
Beverage Company 80,000,000 7t beverages
Limited (note (i) Y ER
FIIAEAD (EER) Rmerst HESm
BRAT (M (i)
Vitasoy (Dongguan) The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100 Manufacture
Company Limited (note (ii)) FE AR and sale of
#Mh (R3E) BRAR 2,000,000 T beverages
(R=E (i) *ER
HESm
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14 Subsidiaries (continued) 14 MEBA TR @
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest activities
HEEREERLLE
held by the held by a
MR Company subsidiary
AR 2EITR ¥ N/N] ME ]
MR BEBREFE BE BE
% %
Vitasoy (Foshan) Company The PRC RMB200,000,000 - 85 Manufacture
Limited (note (iii)) R AR and sale of
#efhgn (FhL) BRAR 200,000,000 J© beverages
(P=E (i) *ER
HERm
Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company The PRC HK$219,461,176 - 100 Manufacture
Limited (note (iv)) FE s and sale of
#fbyy (£8) BRAT 219,461,176 7t beverages
(3£ (iv) *ER
HEM@
Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company The PRC RMB170,000,000 - 100 Manufacture
Limited (note (v)) FE ARME and sale of
#Abys (FUFE) BRAE 170,000,000 T beverages
(MI=E (v) *ER
HESMm
Vitasoy Australia Products Australia V class shares: - 51 Manufacture
Pty. Ltd. (“VAP”) pE) A$8,925,000 and sale of
(T'VAP]) VER beverages
8,925,000% T *ER
HERm
N class shares:
A$8,575,000
N #8h% -
8,575,0008 T
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada Macau MOP100,000 100 - Distribution
#Eftgl OBRFY) BRAF BFY  ERP9¥ 100,000 7T of beverages
=1/
Produtos De Soja Hong Kong Macau MOP10,000 - 100 Dormant
(Macau) Limitada BP9 EP9% 10,000 7T iR
ABSm OBM) BRAFRE
Vitaland Services Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares 100 - Operation of
Hfh R it fRIE B PR A7) BB 300,000 A& i 2 tuck shops and

concessions
TRAK B 433 [\ A 32
KEBR/PNREL

ST 4
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14 Subsidiaries (continued) 14 MBATRE @
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest activities
HEREERLLE
held by the held by a
MR Company subsidiary
BRI BEBTR ¥/ NN M AR
=E 3. BERAEFE BE BE
% %
Hong Kong Gourmet Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100 Provision of
BEBERBRAT &8 2 IRER 12 catering
services
RUHBERR
The Hong Kong Soya Bean Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Property
Products Company, &8 2 PR 0 investment
Limited YIERE
BERERBRAT
Vitasoy (China) Holdings Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment
Limited &8 1Bz 17 holding
Hfs (FE) ERERAE REZER
Vitasoy Investment Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment
Holdings Limited &8 1 B% B2 19 holding
HEMIIREZERER AR REZER
Vita International Holdings Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Investment
Limited &8 2 R0 holding
HEHEFEBERAR REZER
Vitasoy International Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment
Investment Limited &8 1 B2 B2 17 holding
A TIBBRIRERR AT REZER
Vitasoy (China) Investments Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Investment
Company Limited 58 2 IRER 12 holding
ALY (PEL) REBRATA REZER
Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Malta  Ordinary shares: - 100 Sales of beverages
Limited SR HK$20,257 and exploitation
EER of intellectual
7B 20,257 7T rights of property
HEMMR
Deferred share: E R ERE
HK$7
RERD
BT T
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14 Subsidiaries (continued) 14 MEBA TR @
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest activities
BEERERILE
held by the held by a
SHMRL Company subsidiary
ALK B8TR ¥ /N Fff B 2 =
i B BERAFEE =2 BE
% %
Vitasoy Investment Singapore $$10,000 - 100 Investment
(Singapore) Pte. Limited Ny 10,000 3% 7t holding
REZER
Vitasoy International Singapore $$1,800,000 - 100 Manufacture
Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“VIS”) s 1,800,000 3% JT and sale of
(Formerly known as Unicurd soya related
Food Co. (Private) Limited) products
(Tvisl) YERHEE
(AIE#s—'m (FAA) SEEM
BRAR])
Vitasoy Distributors (Singapore) Singapore $$2,500,000 100 - Dormant
Pte. Ltd. Fhn3R 2,500,000 3% 7T TmEE
Notes: MieE
(i) Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company Limited (i) T (K8H) BRREARAERDIE (DRI
(“Shenzhen Vitasoy”) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established 1) BRPERIZHFIIEERERAT  KEHZE
inthe PRC and is to be operated up to year 2049. —EMAFIE -
(i) Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned (i)  #Mgh GR3E) BRATARPERK L ZEIINEK B
subsidiary established in the PRC and is to be operated up to year DA EERE T REFIL
2067.
(iii)  Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Foshan”) is a sino-foreign (i) #EAREE (fhL) BRAF ([ELgEMT]) BRFBE
equity joint venture established in the PRC and is to be operated up to R ZHIIEGERELNT KREPZE_EMNAFI -
year 2049.
(iv)  Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned (iv) #h (5F) BRATANRFERLZZINENSB
subsidiary established in the PRC and is to be operated up to year AR REHE_TBMNAFIE -
2045.

(v)  Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned subsidiary (v)  #t (RF) BRATANRFERILZZINENB
established in the PRC and is to be operated up to year 2064. AR RERE_TARMNEL -
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14 Subsidiaries (continued) 14 MBATRE @

The following table lists out the information relating to Shenzhen TREYCREEBERFERER ([ FIERE
Vitasoy, Vitasoy Foshan and VAP, the subsidiaries of the Group @) ZAREBWE QTR - L4
which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The MR VAP ZER - TX 2% 2B E R EIEE
summarised financial information presented below represents HEA N BIREMEERT 2 £ 58 -

the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Shenzhen Vitasoy Vitasoy Foshan
RN A5 EANE 2k

2018 2017 2018 2017
—2-N\FE 2t ZB-N\F F-tF
$000 Fx  $000Fx  $000Fx  $000 T

NCl percentage 15% 15% 15% 15% 49% 49%
FERERB DL

Current assets 191,333 107,601 186,971 131,925 158,917 166,669
RBEE

Non-current assets 181,566 182,800 581,433 561,370 247,742 196,277
FRBEE

Current liabilities (75,369) (42,997) (150,812) (103,607) (120,878) (105,240)
RBEE

Non-current liabilities - - (107,137) (219,130) (3,758) (1,293)
FRBER

Net assets 297,530 247,404 510,455 370,558 282,023 256,413
FEE

Carrying amount of NClI 44,630 37,111 76,568 55,584 138,191 125,642
FERER < REE

Revenue 647,549 469,157 1,141,831 767,265 502,706 472,240
LON

Profit for the year 92,875 42,172 146,691 68,074 41,522 37,520
REEHF

Total comprehensive income 92,875 42,172 146,691 68,074 41,782 37,748
2HIRGZEEE

Profit allocated to NCI 13,931 6,326 22,004 10,211 20,346 18,385
DERIFERER ZREF

Dividend paid to NCI 10,285 8,951 7,520 5,385 9,448 9,129
BEZEIE £5515'95

Cash flows generated

from operating activities 61,033 70,300 100,796 63,008 57,395 71,522
RETBREHERE
Cash flows generated

from/(used in) investing

activities 3,076 (4,437) (41,055) (22,073) (61,156) (13,506)
RETEFME (FiA)

Be&RE
Cash flows used in

financing activities (73,974) (57,598) (56,950) (37,761) (2,044) (51,731)
METEFARERE
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15 Interest in joint venture 15 REERT 2L

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is AEEREE QAR 2ER (ERARSENGS
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated SRR AALR) FBOT ¢

financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERERL®
Form of Place of Group's

Name of business incorporation effective Held by Held by a Principal

joint venture structure and business interest  the Company subsidiary activity

rEEZ NG HEAR

RENTER EBEBRA LA L R 3 3t B BERER o] 58 FEXH

% % %

Vitasoy -URC, Inc. Incorporated The Republic of 50 - 50 Sale of
(“VUR") i a the Philippines beverages
(TVUR]) (“the Philippines”) (note)

FEEHANE HEHMm
([3EEE]) (HtaE)
Note: VUR was established by the Company with a major branded MizE : VURHAQAFAE-RFEEETIEREEENRR
consumer food and beverage company in the Philippines, the other BAT (BZAELATAZE —BERESR) KL
investor to this joint venture, for sales of the Group’s plant-based LASEEEHEAEBUEYR S AE 28 -
beverages in the Philippines. VUR is mainly engaged in the sale of VUREEWRERREE
beverages.

VUR, the only joint venture in which the Group participates, is VUR(FREE—SEHEEAT) B—RBkELH
WIS RE ©

fm

an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not hEEE
available.
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(BRBETHAIN » UBYE)
15 Interest in joint venture (continued) 15 REERTIZER @)
Summarised financial information of VUR and a reconciliation to VURZ I ERMER EFE VKRR ZREHE

the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, are ZHERIFENOT
disclosed below:

2018 2017
=F-N\F — L

$’000 T $°000 F T

Gross amounts of VUR'’s

VUR Z &%

Current assets 122,185 1,549
RBEE

Non-current assets 15,396 -
FEREBEE

Current liabilities (46,999) (1,253)
RENEE

Equity 90,582 296
e

Included in the above assets and liabilities:

EfALMEEREE !
Cash and cash equivalents 111,980 1,549
HeRBEEEER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$'000 F 7t $000 Tt
Revenue 35,840 -
A
Loss from operations (35,628) (1,254)
KEEE

Reconciled to the Group’s interest in VUR

BAAREEN VUR 2 H R

Gross amounts of VUR's net assets 90,582 296
VURZ FEERE

Group effective interest 50% 50%
AEBERER

Group’s share of VUR’s net assets 45,291 148
REBEMMEVURFEE

Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements 45,291 148

REPBRERZREE
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16 Inventories 16 &
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEMBRRARP2EERRE :
financial position comprise:

2018 2017

—B-N\F —

$'000 Fit $000 F it

Raw materials 359,674 329,754
R

Finished goods 349,638 252,692
FURR

709,312 582,446

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) ERNEBERANBAABIZFES
recognised as an expense and included in profit BEommTE :

or loss is as follows:

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —E—tF

$000 Tt $000 Tt

Carrying amounts of inventories sold 3,040,805 2,530,493
EEFEZRAE

Write down of inventories 7,850 5,664

WRFE
3,048,655 2,536,157
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17 Trade and other receivables

17 FEWBRRR I E fth FE UK

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
$'000 Tt $'000 Tt
Trade debtors and bills receivable 727,465 677,129
BUWERR R BN EE
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note 17(b)) (1,022) (3,375)
A RERREME (FIEE17(b))
726,443 673,754
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 228,501 226,249
HEWR - BERFEFFIE
954,944 900,003

The amount of the Group’s other debtors, deposits and
prepayments expected to be recovered or charged as expense
after more than one year is $37,002,000 (2017: $37,634,000).
All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of allowance for
doubtful debts, is as follows:

AEBEFEHRER—FRNESIMRABFAI2H
W ~ & RFBFAFIEA 37,002,000 T (=
T — -t :37,6340007T) ° FiEHMEWRR
REMERKFERR—FAKEISER RS

(a) HEERZ AT

REHRE - EURRREREE (ERERER
BRI E AR N B R BRI RIRR
BEZRERANAT -

Within three months 704,686 648,675
=EAR
Three to six months 8,239 23,270
=&xfEAR
Over six months 13,518 1,809
ANEBUE

726,443 673,754

Trade receivables are due within one to three months from the
date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 27(a).

BRERFNREZEAHES —E=EARNEH - B
BEAKEEEBRZE - S BEHNME 27()
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17 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills
receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable

are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is

satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case

the impairment loss is written off against trade debtors and bills

receivable directly (see note 1(k)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year

is as follows:

17 FEWERR R HE W @)
(b) EWERFREWEE ZRE
BEREBMEAREZERE S VMY B
B Lk B 20 I U 2 0 (S (R R R

#% o BAWEZ ATREMEMSE - BRRESEERE
REEW RN RIS h s (RFEE 1k)(0) ©

RERBERFRAZEBHOT :

At 1st April

RIEA—H

Exchange adjustments

P AR

Impairment losses recognised
BRBEEE

Uncollectible amounts written off

ORL ClX:cpd 6

3,375 1,227
143 (34)
256 4,186

(2,752) (2,004)

At 31st March
R=B=+—H

1,022 3,375

At 31st March 2018, the Group’s trade debtors and bills receivable
of $1,022,000 (2017: $3,375,000) were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.
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17 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not
impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are

neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are

as follows:

17 BWERA R EMEWR @)
(c) WERBEZERRAKEKEE

0 28] 51| 25 5= B8 415 1F 2 IRUEL 2 FE U BRSR R B UL
FEZREDTWT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
$'000 F 7t $000 Tt
Neither past due nor impaired 643,415 557,823
RN ERE
Less than one month past due 66,819 106,488
mEOR—1EA
One to three months past due 13,096 8,398
B —Z=2=EAH
More than three months but less than twelve months past due 2,919 1,042
BHEB=EAELRT+=EA
More than twelve months past due 194 3
BHEEB T @A
Amounts past due 83,028 115,931
BHSEE
726,443 673,754

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivablesthat were past due but notimpairedrelatetoanumber
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

BB TR ERE 2 R
BRRECBZEFER -

19 R BT HA N SR HE R

BMEYEAECEURESEBIEFAR
REFFRASERZEFELERY - REBHE
KEp o ARNHEGEEEXYEEANEE  EEEMN
EREANZSEHELRERE  BERR/ES
BN AZBWE - AEELERZSERTE
EREEEF L
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18 Cash and bank deposits

(a) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

18 BERIRITER
(a) RERMVITEREIE

Cash at bank and in hand 338,602 258,387
RITEFREGERS
Bank deposits maturing within three months when placed 646,583 594,262
EREA=EARZRITFER
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement 985,185 852,649
FERERERAZRERESEHEIER
Bank deposits maturing after three months 509 470
GFREBB={A 2RITFER
Cash and bank deposits in the consolidated

statement of financial position 985,694 853,119
FEMBERRRAZRERBITER

At 31st March 2018, certain Renminbi and United States dollars RZE-NE=A=+—-H EFTUAR¥ER

bank balances totalling $307,125,000 (2017: $122,785,000)
were designated as a hedge against the foreign currency risk on
future purchase of raw materials. The gain on re-translation of
these bank balances at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period was included in other comprehensive income.
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18 Cash and bank deposits (continued) 18 RERBITER @
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIANEFEKLEEKFEERE
generated from operations: ZHER ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Note ffizE $°000 F 7t $'000 Tt
Profit before taxation 802,734 843,677
R AR
Adjustments for:
P
- Share of losses of joint venture 17,814 627
- EhEEATIEE
- Net gain on disposal of assets and liabilities held for sale 19 - (189,595)
- HEREHECEEREEZFHRE
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5(c) 248,254 238,309
-E - BERBEZITE
- Depreciation of investment properties 5(c) 526 526
-REWMEZINE
- Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
held for own use under operating leases 5(c) 1,585 1,520
- REBELEHEREEER2EE LR 2 #H
- Amortisation of intangible assets 5(c) 379 367
-BEEEZEH
- Recognition of impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment 5(c) 13,625 1,631
- BRME - BERREZRERE
- Recognition of impairment losses on goodwill 5(c) 18,342 -
- BREEBZREEE
- Interest on bank loans 5(a) 1,579 3,529
-RITERZAE
- Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 5(a) 121 201
- MEREEHE 2 MEE R
- Interest income 4 (9,859) (5,314)
- FIEWA
- Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 5(c) (7,117) 2,634

- HEME BERSEZ (WE) BIEFE
- Net loss/(gain) on forward exchange contracts not

designated as hedging instruments 5(c) 920 (124)
-FEEAEHIAZRIMNESHN 2 FEE ()
- Equity settled share-based payment expenses 5(b) 8,273 11,739
- URBAARER 2 E A
- Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 81 (214)
-EREE S ()

Changes in working capital:

EESSEE !

- Increase in inventories (74,432) (73,470)
- FEE M

- Increase in trade and other receivables (22,308) (46,258)
- FEWBRFR R EL A FE UG AN

- Increase in trade and other payables 272,319 275,670
- BT ERF R E A FE SRR 0

- Increase in employee retirement benefit liabilities 1,304 4,173

- EERAENEEEM

Cash generated from operations 1,274,140 1,069,628
REEKBES
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18 Cash and bank deposits (continued) 18 RERBITER @
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) METBEEZEEYIER

financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from THRAVNAKERETHEE2BEEE  EF
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. BRERERIREEE -@ETBEEZEE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which EERESREENIARREREBREEET 2
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the GEARERERANDEARETHRERE -
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from
financing activities.

Obligation
under finance
Bank loans leases Total

BMERE

BITER 2 &% et
$'000 ¥t $'000 ¥t $'000 Tt

(Note 21) (Note 22)

(FfaE21) (P aE 22)

At 1st April 2017 207,329 2,130 209,459
R-2—tFmA—§

Changes from financing cash flows:

MERSRELE .

Proceeds from new bank loans 27,229 - 27,229
FTIBIRITE RS FIE

Repayment of bank loans (207,461) - (207,461)

EERTER

Capital element of finance lease rentals paid - (1,244) (1,244)

EfmERERE 2 EARIBH

Interest paid (1,579) - (1,579)

EFIE

Interest element of finance lease rentals paid - (121) (121)

EfRERERE 2R S5

Total changes from financing cash flows (181,811) (1,365) (183,176)

mﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%iﬂ

Exchange adjustments (12) 35 23

fE R A%

Other changes:

Hih# 5 :

Finance costs (note 5(a)) 1,579 121 1,700

RE A (MiRE5(a))

At 31st March 2018 27,085 921 28,006

R-ZZB-N\F=ZA=1+—H
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19 Disposal group held for sale

The Group disposed of the majority of the assets and liabilities
of Vitasoy USA Inc. on 9th May 2016 at a consideration of
$398,900,000. All the assets and liabilities held for sale were
derecognised upon completion and a gain of $189,595,000 (note
3(b)(ii)) was recognised as “Other income - net gain on disposal
of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale” and the net
cash inflow on disposal of assets and liabilities held for sale was
$338,226,000 for the year ended 31st March 2017.

Vitasoy USA Inc. continues to import beverage products from
Hong Kong for sale in North America after the Disposal.

20 Trade and other payables

19 HEHEZHEAS
AEBRZZ—XFHA B HE Vitasoy USA
Inc. W ABHEERAE  KEAH 398,900,000
T REERAE  FERFLHECEEREE
ERIEBR BE-Z—tHFE=A=+—HILE
£+ 189,595,000 7t (HfizE 3(b)(ii)) Z Wz 2R
AIHMEA-BESBABFHECEERBE
ZFWhE] MEEBFHECEEREBZR
&M A HEAHI A 338,226,000 7T ©

AHESIEE » Vitasoy USA Inc. B R EBED
BRmERNIEENEE -

20 BNERARREAMEMSK

Trade creditors and bills payable 574,402 497,239
ENERRRENRE
Accrued expenses and other payables 1,289,189 969,047
FESTE AR HA B
Derivative financial instruments 181 618
PTEERIA

1,863,772 1,466,904

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year, except for customer deposits amounting to
$17,135,000 (2017: $15,864,000) which are expected to be
settled after more than one year.

AEERBRAERNBRRRAEMENSKER
—FREERE 1#17,135000T (ZF—tF:
15,864,000 t) 2 HFREAFEHNBB—F&
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20 Trade and other payables (continued)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
creditors and bills payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

EAE#EEI FEﬁEE &Eﬁm?ﬁ&ﬁf:ﬁﬂ/ﬁﬂzaﬁ
BT

2018 2017

—B-N\F — L

$'000 T 7T $'000 F 7t

Within three months 570,706 496,435

=@EAA

Three to six months 3,196 431
=&ZXfEA

Over six months 500 373
NEBUE

574,402 497,239

The Group’s general payment terms are one to two months from
the invoice date.

21 Bankloans

At 31st March 2018, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

FEEZ-RARBRABBRZRPETS —ZM
/A -

21 RITER
HW-ZE—NFE=ZA=+—0 HBATESREART
HiFREE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$'000 FJt $'000 Tt
Within one year or on demand 27,085 7,329
—FRIFIRER
After one year but within two years - 150,000
—FZERMERN
After two years but within five years - 50,000
MEREREFR
- 200,000
27,085 207,329
At 31st March 2017, bank loans totalling $7,329,000 were n= t F=A=+— 417,329,000 T
secured by charges over property, plant and equipment with net ZfE'( EX ORI EEE:%&{E 54 62,768,000 Tt 24

book value totalling $62,768,000 (note 11(f)). At 31st March
2018, no bank loans were secured by charges over property, plant
and equipment.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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21 Bank loans (continued) 21 RITER @

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the REEETRITEEENGHE TH KRG
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain financial ratios, as 2B WIHEE BB VERTHERER
are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial BRE - MEAKEERBERR  AERERE
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn BORIZEEHE AEBECHEREESTZE

down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group REZER AR EEEERDESRARZE
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further —SHBERKMEE27b) e RZE—NEFER=Z
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in —tHF=A=+—0  AEEHRERTMAEE

note 27(b). As at 31st March 2018 and 2017, none of the covenants REEE 2325 °
relating to the drawn down facilities had been breached.

22 Obligations under finance leases 22 MEHEZER
At 31st March 2018, the Group had obligations under finance R-ZE2E—-NF=ZA=+—H FxEERERER
leases repayable as follows: S/AEEBCERNT :
2017
=5
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BREHEE REHEE REHEE REHEE
NR2ZBRE RBE Rz RE S FRA%E
$’°000 7t $'000 Tt $'000 Tt $’000 Tt
Within one year 921 943 1,221 1,340
—FR
After one year but within two years - - 909 930
—FRERBMEA
After two years but within five years - - - -
MEEZERAFER
- - 909 930
921 943 2,130 2,270
Less: Total future interest expenses (22) (140)
W RRFEERREE
Present value of lease obligations 921 2,130
HEEKRE
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23 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates and participates in a number of defined
contribution and defined benefit retirement plans in and outside
Hong Kong.

(a) Defined contribution retirement plans

(i)  The Group operates a defined contribution retirement plan,
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited Staff Provident
Fund, which is available for all eligible staff employed by the
Group in Hong Kong and Macau before 1st August 2000.
The plan is funded by contributions from employees and the
Group, both of which contribute sums representing 5% -
7.5% of basic salaries. Forfeited contributions are credited
to members’ accounts in accordance with the rules of the
plan. The plan is administered by trustees with the assets
held separately from those of the Group. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s contributions after
ten completed membership years, or at an increasing scale
of between 50% to 90% after completion of five to nine
membership years.

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining
the defined contribution retirement plan are required
to join the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent corporate trustee. Under the MPF scheme,
the Group and the employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000.Contributionstothe MPF scheme vestimmediately.

(i) Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
central pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage
of employees’ remuneration to the central pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group with
respect to the central pension scheme is the associated
required contribution under the central pension scheme.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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23 EEERKER
AEBEEBREBUIIMIERIRZMZER

(a)
(i)

EHRARAERNBMATTE -

REMFRAKEE
AEERRER-ZZEZRFNR—B2ZA
EERRRMZRBCAREAERETR
N —IERERFORARET 8 (MM EPREE
BRAFABERES) - B ZETRA
BERAGEEZHN -BHHUARESEDE
FZ5%E7.5% ° RO REBT B2
BIBAGT BN B 20RF - ZETEIRHER
AEE FRBEETEAKEZEEDH
RiE - E2HEFERTFER EBETESR
REHEEHER MSEFEERTENFA
EAEZEREMTBDLAIBS0%ELEE
90% °

ZRNAEE I ES IR E HFOR ARG
B2 EBET  LARBEES CRFMLE
EETEWRG)) SMAEE 2@ RS
g ([abE A EEE]) - BHEAES
FER-RRAEMRIRAGE - BB
BETEAEE - REBFMEAEESEE
rEEREERBAZESEBENA (B
WA z&A LBR%A30,0007T) 2 5% @&t
B e EEBHE DA BEET BN 2 A

HEE -

TEWB AR ZEEHIRPREBRARYZ
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e zETEI AP RBRE M
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23 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(a) Defined contribution retirement plans
(Continued)

(iii) For employees in Australia, contributions are made by the
Groupto aregistered superannuationfundfor its employees,
at 9% of the employees’ salaries. The assets of the scheme
are held separately by an independent administered fund.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

(b) Defined benefit retirement plans

At 31st March 2018, the Group recognised employee retirement
benefit liabilities in respect of the following employee retirement
benefits:

23 EERMKER @
(a) REMFERMNETE @)

(i) BANAEEFTE AKEEREEFEZ
%E—RAHEEMRZEMERRES
A -FHEEHBYUEE2ESOHE
B B XN ZERNEES

(b) FEBAENKETE
R=B-N\F=A=+-H FEERTIES
ENERERESRIENEE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities

BERMKENAR

- retirement gratuities (note 23(c)(i)) 12,605 16,508
- RIKE (FIEE23(0)))
- long service payments (note 23(d)) 3,461 SI55Y
- REIRE € (M 23(d))
16,066 22,065
(c) Retirement gratuities (c) BiKE

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau, who have
completed a prescribed minimum period of service and joined the
Group before a specific date, are entitled to retirement gratuities
upon retirement age. The gratuity is based on the employee’s last
month’s salary and the number of years of service.

A funded defined benefit retirement plan, Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited Defined Benefit Scheme (“the Plan”), was
established for the retirement gratuities. The Planis administered
by an independent corporate trustee, with assets held separately
from those of the Group. The Plan is funded by contributions
from the Group in accordance with an independent actuary’s
recommendation.

AEBEEBRRMAZEEERBFEES—R
BEZREMRERNEERBZAMAREE
YERERRAFRISEINERARSE - SHERTE
BREMAAFRBBFEME

FEBERBRARERL —RE YR ERFIRMAKE
& - DB EEERARRERAEE ([
&) - ZEHEMBMEEETAEE  HEE
HEAKECEED TR - At B HAKEZR
BYREMZEZREREN -
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23 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was at 31st March
2018 and was prepared by independent professionally qualified
actuaries at Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit
method. The valuation indicates that the Group’s obligation under
this defined benefit retirement plan is 84% (2017: 79%) covered
by the plan assets held by the trustee.

(i)  The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

23 EERKERN @)

() EBHRE @
SHACBRREGENR=E—N\E=H
St AREREN B EEAERBEEMK
FRAEENEEEET - AREERRAEER
B R EAR KT BT ABT 2 ST EB84%
(ZB—tF : 79%) SEEABEZHBUEER
B o

() REERBRRRERZSENT :

Present value of wholly funded obligations
THEWEEZRE
Fair value of plan assets

SFEEEZARE

77,647 79,494

(65,042) (62,986)

Employee retirement benefit liabilities

BERKENEE

12,605 16,508

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate
this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months,
as the retirement benefit entitled by scheme members and future
contributions to the plan will also depend on staff turnover and
future changes in actuarial assumptions. The Group expects to
pay $2,980,000 in contributions to defined benefit retirement
plan during the year ending 31st March 2019 (2017: $160,000).
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M RS EROENEB - FREE - A
HRETEINEERER ZRMENR A& 258
HRTEEFEIRBRREERRARZEE
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JT) °



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

23 Employee retirement benefits (continued) 23 EEEKER @

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued) () BIAKE @)
(i)  Plan assets consist of the following: (i) FrEEEBETHSE

2018 2017

—B-N\F —
$°000 Tt $000 F T

Plan assets with quoted price in active market

REBTEHREZGFHEE

Equities
IxE
- Financial 14,148 12,577
- B
- Consumer discretionary 5,261 5,266
-FMFHEHEM
- Industrials 5,232 4,990
= JCES
- Consumer staples 3,366 1,704
- BEHES
- Other 18,338 19,250
- HAth

46,345 43,787
Bonds
(e
- Corporate bonds 4,781 6,077
- AEIfES
- Government-related bonds 6,544 5,752
- BT HEEES
- Treasury bonds 3,772 6,177
-BlfE

15,097 18,006
Money instruments 3,600 1,193
EWIA
Total quoted plan assets 65,042 62,986

EHREFHEERE
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23 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)
(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

(iii)

23 EERKER @)

() BIAKE @)

REBNEMEZRE

BT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$'000 F7 $000 ¥t
At 1st April 79,494 85,403
REMA—H
Remeasurement:
BHEE
- Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 4,194 147
- BAORSHRERN BB ZEEESE
- Actuarial gains arising from changes in
financial assumptions (1,025) (5,503)
- BB RERNE 2R E R a
Benefits paid by the Plan (9,608) (5,307)
Zat e NEA
Current service cost 3,351 3,824
BB R A
Interest cost 1,241 930
B R
At 31st March 77,647 79,494
K=BA=+—H

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is
8 years (2017: 9 years).

(iv) Movements in fair value of plan assets are as follows:

REBMNEEZMEFHHERASF (ZF—+¢

FI9F)o

(iv) FHEIBEZLDAEZEBNOT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$'000 F7 $000 Tt
At 1st April 62,986 63,271
REMA—H
Contributions paid to the Plan 2,914 192
mazatEfEH 2 AR
Benefits paid by the Plan (9,608) (5,307)
Zat BB F
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets (119) (91)
R EEEX N ZITHER
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 7,892 4,235
FTEIEEERR  TEEFSWA
Interest income 977 686
FIE WA
At 31st March 65,042 62,986
R=A=+—8
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23 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(v) Net income/expenses recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are as follows:

23 EERKER @)

() BIAKE @)

(v) REFEEEBERAM2EKBEREIZBRA

FSOFEMT -

2017
—E—tF
$000 Tt
Current service cost 3,351 3,824
A PR
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets 119 91
B BEEX(T2THER
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 264 244
AERMNEEFHEFAE
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss 3,734 4,159
RIBETER 258
Actuarial losses/(gains) 3,169 (5,356)
BEER (W)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (7,892) (4,235)
FFEIEERRR  TEEFEWRA
Total amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (4,723) (9,591)
REMEEREER 258
Total defined benefit income (989) (5,432)

SERNALA

The current service cost and the net interest on net defined
benefit liability are recognised in the following line items in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

REBNEBEFRZRERBEAANLFFNEZER

FEBRERPETHZEER

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
$'000 F 7t $000 F T
Cost of sales 689 787
SHERA
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses 1,009 1,172
HE - HERDHEH
Administrative expenses 1,555 1,666
THER
Other operating expenses 481 534
HihiR&E &R
3,734 4,159

Annual Report 2017/2018 EE R &



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

23 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)
(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis are

as follows:

23 EERKER @)

(c) EHKE @)
(vi) BABEBRRGBHESHTOT

Discount rate
RS
Future salary increases

RRF & BIE

1.90% 1.60%

4.0% per annum
BF4.0%

4.0% per annum
BF 4.0%

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit obligations
would have increased/(decreased) as a result of 0.5% change in
the significant actuarial assumptions:

UT 2B ERNEEEEABERK0.5%
gmLA (T :

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+tF

Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in

0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

EFH0.5% T#0.5% £EFH05% T2 0.5%

$'000 Tt $'000 7t $'000 T $'000 Tt

Discount rate (3,048) 3,240 (3,137) 3,342

FIR=E

Future salary increases 3,269 (3,104) 3,366 (3,190)

RRFEIEE

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that
changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore
it does not take into account the correlations between the
actuarial assumptions.

(d) Longservice payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of employmentin
certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed
at least five years of service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations.
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23 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(d) Longservice payments (Continued)

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was also carried
out at 31st March 2018, by independent professionally qualified
actuaries at Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit
method.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

Present value of unfunded obligations

BEPRMEZRE

23 EERKERN @)

(d) REIRES @)
EHRESIN-E—\E=A=+—AHEER
BB E A ERREMR RSN
EETEEME -

RESUBARRKRER 2 EBMT

2018 2017
—E—+F

$°000 F T

—E-N\F
$'000 F T

3,461 5,557

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practical to segregate this
amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as
the retirement benefit payable will also depend on staff turnover
and future changes in actuarial assumptions.

24 Equity settled share-based transactions
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 4th September
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Directors of
the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees
of the Group, including Directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company.
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28th
August 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”)
and the termination of the 2002 Share Option Scheme. Subject
to their respective exercisable periods, all outstanding options
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme will still be valid and
exercisable after the expiration of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the options is determined by the Directors
of the Company and is the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
and (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

The options are exercisable for a period not to exceed 10 years
from the date of grant. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share in the Company.

M e EROENEB —FREHE - A

EFEHLWEﬂ%%ﬁ¥§ImQT&F 1R
RERZBHME  BELREEARRTZEA

Wﬁ@iﬁZﬁﬁ#ﬁ%i$Tﬁ°

24 RBBNRERZRXS
ARTR-EZ-_FNANABFEHN—EEREST
B ([ =S -_FERETE]) » Bt XAF
CESERENBRBZLAEEZEES (BELE
BETEAARZES) EABREUZBERA
AEER R-ZE—-—FNAZ-T+NHETZX
ATRRBEREL BB T ERARATERE
FE([ZZ——FBERESE]) REL-ZZ
—FERENECERARR - REESETHE
HIBR > FTERBE_SZE_FHEREFERE 2K
TEBRENR-_ZSZ_FERETSHRERE
BNABR R A FITEE -

BREZTEERACANESEE  AUTZR
BE (RONRREEHN (ERLEREXR)
HEBBERZMAERLIR ([BRXF]) 852
W E ;R () RORBEERE AR AEEXA
R x5 2 PR mHE -

BREZTEHTSEBREAMES 2 +F -
BEBREZEEASAERE-RARAR
% o
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B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEBEBS - LB E)
24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 URGBANRE®R2ZRS @

(Continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the unexpired and unexercised (@) MEZRBz2RKERRERTEBRE KR

share options at the end of the reporting period are as RIRHENT  FEERESURGZEY
follows, whereby all options are settled by physical delivery RUNEESE -
of shares:
2018 2017
“E-N\f k- Sl o 3
Contractual RENETT RENETT
Date life of Exercise  contractual Number  contractual Number
of grant Exercise period options price life of options life of options
BRE fei & 1y o fei & g
R B fTE BNEH THEE BHEH #H ENEE L
$ '000 T A% ‘000 TR
9/6/2010 9/6/2011 to 8/6/2020 10years F 6.022 2 years & - 3years 352
9/6/2011% 8/6/2020
15/6/2011 15/6/2012 to 14/6/2021 10years F 6.424 3 years - 4years & 888
15/6/2012 £ 14/6/2021
8/9/2011 8/9/2012t0 7/9/2021 10years F 6.358 3 years 1,740 4yearsE 1,740
8/9/2012 £ 7/9/2021
22/6/2012 22/6/2013t0 21/6/2022 10vyears F 6.274 4 years 220 5years 378
22/6/2013 % 21/6/2022
31/8/2012 31/8/2013 to 30/8/2022 10vyears F 6.400 4 years 2,822 5years 2,822
31/8/2013 £ 30/8/2022
2/4/2013 2/4/2015 to 1/4/2023 10vyears F 9.090 5 years & - byearsE 1,000
2/4/2015 £ 1/4/2023
28/6/2013 28/6/2014 t0 27/6/2023 10vyears F 9.370 5 years & 238 6yearsF 3,022
28/6/2014 % 27/6/2023
9/9/2013 9/9/2014 t0 8/9/2023 10vyears F 9.370 5 years & 1,704 6yearsF 1,704
9/9/2014 % 8/9/2023
2/7/2014 2/7/2015t0 1/7/2024 10vyears F 10.080 6 years 706 7years 3,070
2/7/2015 £ 1/7/2024
10/9/2014 10/9/2015 to 9/9/2024 10vyears F 10.080 6 years 1,792 7years 1,792
10/9/2015 £ 9/9/2024
26/6/2015 26/6/2016 to0 25/6/2025 10years F 13.600 7 years & 2,250 8yearsF 3,498
26/6/2016 2 25/6/2025
14/9/2015 14/9/2016 to 13/9/2025 10years F 13.600 7 years & 1,588 8yearsF 1,588
14/9/2016 £ 13/9/2025
24/6/2016 24/6/2017 t0 23/6/2026 10years F 14.792 8 years & 2,422 9 years F 3434
24/6/2017 £ 23/6/2026
6/9/2016 6/9/2017 t0 5/9/2026 10years F 14.792 8 years & 1,420 9 years F 1,420
6/9/2017 £ 5/9/2026
2/3/2017 2/3/2019 to 1/3/2027 10years F 15.440 9 years & 326  10years® 326
2/3/2019 £ 1/3/2027
26/6/2017 26/6/2018 to 25/6/2027 10 years F 16.296 9 years 3,032 - -
26/6/2018 £ 25/6/2027
20,260 27,034
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B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(@) (Continued)

Except for the options granted on 2nd April 2013 and 2nd March
2017 which were fully vested after two years from the date
of grant, all the options are exercisable progressively and the
maximum percentage of the options which may be exercised is
determined in stages as follows:

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant

R AR —BFEHHER

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant
R ARESMBFHHER

On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant
RE BB =BFRHEZ

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

K B A FRER

24 R AENRERZR

(@) @
BR-ZE—=FNBE-HR=-Z—tF=HAZH
RECvERECERE AHRTMERESIR
B BRI FIEZBRES R ZELSEMm
MEMRERATEBRE2BESLL LRIT ¢

Percentage of
options granted

EEREREZ
B

25%

another 5 25%

another 5 25%

another 5 25%

During the year, 814,000 options (2017: 2,108,000 options) were
exercised under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, and 6,366,000
options (2017: 2,254,000) were exercised under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme.

F R-8140001 B R E (=T — £ &F:
2ﬂmmmﬁ%k$)mﬁ_?q_$%W%ﬁ

B BITHER 6,366,000 D ERE (= —+t5F :
2,254,00017) RIE—ZT— —FEREAEICEIT
{0
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B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 URGBANRE®R2ZRS @

(Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share ~ (b) BREZ2E RINEFIGTHEENT
options are as follows:

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
hnREF BIREZ hnFEF BIREZ
TEE =] TEE £ ¢S]
$ T '000 F % $T ‘000 T A%
Outstanding at 1st April 10.642 27,034 9431 27,740
R A — B RITE
Exercised during the year 9.694 (7,180) 7.916 (4,362)
RERTHE
Granted during the year 16.296 3,182 14.832 5,262
REARH

Forfeited on termination of

employment of eligible participants

or lapsed during the year 11.745 (2,776) 10.848 (1,600)
HEERSHEEREM

RERR KR KK
Outstanding at 31st March 11.715 20,260 10.642 27,034
R=A=+—HBMEKRTE
Exercisable at 31st March 10,723 13,871
R=ZA=+—RHH1T&E

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share CITFEZERENRFRZITER B2 MEFL IR
options exercised during the year was $17.471 (2017: $14.655). BA17471 8 (ZE—t%F : 14.6557T) °

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREZAARBRER

The fair value of services received in return for share options AEEUREBRERESZREZAARE I
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options SEZORHEREZAAREE - CREHBRE
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted 2 AARBEBNZBEXNHEENFE - BREZ
is measured based on a binomial lattice model. The contractual life ERNFHAEZEAZ—ERAZHY - BEREER
of the share optionis used as aninput into this model. Expectations TEZEHE T AZERBEER 2R o

of early exercise are incorporated into the binomial lattice model.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBEHRBPIN » LUBETHE)
24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 RGBT ANRERZRSZ @

(Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREZAABERRR @)
(Continued)
Fair values of share options and assumptions: BREZ A RNERERK

Date of grant R iti A 1
9/6/2010 15/6/2011 8/9/2011 22/6/2012 31/8/2012  2/4/2013 28/6/2013  9/9/2013  2/7/2014 10/9/2014 26/6/2015 14/9/2015 24/6/2016 6/9/2016  2/3/2017 26/6/2017

Fair value at
measurementdate  $09567T  $08957%  $0.6057 $09537 $1043m  $1440m $1827; $2244;m  $21507 $20827 93038  $22487 $2795% $36397m  §34487  $33237T
W BASZAR

Share price $5.9507  $6.1607C $5490% $6.1707T $66207 $90907 993707 999507 $10080% §99207 $136007 $118407 $137007 $152207 $154407% $16.0807
KE

Exercise price 96022 964247 96358 962747 $6400T $9.090T $9.3707 $9.3707 $100807 $100807 $136007 $136007 $147927 $147927 $154407 $162967
e

Expected volatility 26% 25% 25% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 24% 24%
LN

Expectedoptionlife 10years® 10years® 10years® 10years® 10years 10years® 10years® 10years® 10years® 10yearsF 10years® 10yearsF 10years® 10yearsF 10years® 10yearsE
RHEREZENS

Expected dividends 56% 5.5% 5.5% 50% 50% 49% 40% 40% 35% 3.5% 30% 30% 2.5% 25% 2.5% 25%
RS

Risk-freeinterestrate  2120% ~ 2040%  1750%  0810%  0620%  1092%  1720%  2400%  1870%  1940%  1750%  1730%  1050%  0950%  1830%  1240%
ERRNE

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, adjusted FEHRIRRE L RIREE - WREARITEER
for any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly BRI R 2 A MFEHRE LT UFRE - FHHRE
available information. Expected dividends are based on historical BERSREEE - THEAABRZEHTEH LA
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could B2ATEEERTE -

materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This BREZRBERBEAMEBL o IWIRRGEFTE
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair FEREzAAE (RELHAH) BTEZEZ
value measurement of the services received. There was no market Hl o R BRI BB HIGIRM ©

conditions associated with the share option grants.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBEHRBPIN » LUBETHE)

25 Income tax in the consolidated
statement of financial position

(a) Current tax recoverable/(payable) in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represents:

25 HREVBRRRZTER

(a) AHREHBMRK B (FEH)
BHEAEW T

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year (40,282) (51,941)
REERBNEFEE
Provisional Profits Tax paid 43,218 41,333
2T ZFEBREH
2,936 (10,608)
Taxation outside Hong Kong (23,992) (26,437)
BHEUIMEEFIE
(21,056) (37,045)
Summary BZE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$'000 Tt $'000 Tt
Current tax recoverable 10,209 736
FEWR HRFR 1E
Current tax payable (31,265) (37,781)
FETIRERRL1E
(21,056) (37,045)
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B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Income tax in the consolidated 25 HMEMBERRRZAEH @
statement of financial position (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CEIELEHRELEE (8E) :

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RESUBERRRBRZELRBEE (BF)
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the ZHERBORFRAZEEMT :
movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation Fair value
allowances adjustment on
in excess Future Employee Withholding  tangible and
of the related benefit of retirement tax on intangible Cash flow
depreciation tax losses benefits Provisions dividends assets hedges
BER
BUERGE  BBERZ E& BYEEZ 5é
ZTESHE RRFIR BANEA BE REEME AAERE REHH
$000 Tt $000 1t $000 1t $000 F 7t $000 F 1t $000 Tt $000 1t
Deferred tax arising from:
KEUTEBZELHE
At 1st April 2016 (77,609) 74,189 4380 46,333 (9.91¢) (1,205) 43 36,215
RZE-~ENA-A
Exchange adjustments (64) (98) - (1,970) - 39 - (2,093)
B A%
Credited/(charged) to
profit or loss 16,374 (65,310) 664 10,710 184 401 - (36,977)
REBHEA/ (1K)
(Charged)/credited to reserves - - (1,561) - - - 175 (1,386)
REE GIB) /A
At 31st March 2017 (61,299) 8,781 3483 55,073 (9732) (765) 218 (4,241)
R=B-t#=B=t-H
Deferred tax arising from:
REUTEEZETHE
At 1st April 2017 (61,299) 8,781 3483 55,073 (9,732) (765) 218 (4,241)
R-E-tEmA-H
Exchange adjustments (59) 737 - 4,880 - (46) - 5,512
ERAZ
(Charged)/credited to
profit or loss (6,214) 21,150 194 20,618 (5,663) 414 - 30,499
REE (1) /A
Charged to reserves - - (1,208) - - - (1,123) (2,331)
ARENR
At 31st March 2018 (67,572) 30,668 2,469 80,571 (15,395) (397) (905) 29,439

RZB-N\E=f=1+-H

Annual Report 2017/2018 & E & 1 9 1



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Income tax in the consolidated 25 HREMBMRRRZFABH @)
statement of financial position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CEIELEHRELEE (8E) :
(Continued) (')

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial HRERBEMR B RE R

position

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —E—tF
$'000 F 7 $000 F 7T

Net deferred tax assets

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position 103,362 56,451
RERE MR R ER I ELEH B EE T
Net deferred tax liabilities

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (73,923) (60,692)
RERE BB R ER I ELEH B EFEHE

29,439 (4,241)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () RBERZELZEHIBEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r), the REMF AN R ZESTEER » AEBWERR
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax EREBBERREMERER 94,747,000 T (=
losses and other temporary differences of $94,747,000 (2017: F—+ 4 :242,3320007T) 2 EERBEEE -
$242,332,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits FREREBEBREIZEEERERTAAEEE
against which the losses and other temporary differences can FEARRERBORF IR TS A EREERE
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and ERER -

entities.

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of $84,031,000 AEABRKEEEPHES4031,000T (ZE—+
(2017: $231,654,000) which can be carried forward up to twenty 1 231,654000) SO EEEEE 2FER
years from the year in which the loss originated. The remaining HEEBZ "+ - H£10,716,000T (=& —+
balance of $10,716,000 (2017: $10,678,000) does not expire F : 10,678,0007t) ST ERIBIRITREER ©
under current tax legislation.
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B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends 26 BEXR - HERBRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) RERMEKIBHOZEEH

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBGREEFZZARSOZFNEFREHZ
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out HIERRGEEREER - AATERERIHER
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of HORFENRFERZEEFBHIINT ¢

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

The Company b/ /A=

Share-based
Share Capital General compensation Hedging Retained Total

capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
RHER
Ra  Enffk  -Ridh  BERGE WG REER  EasE
Note fifzf $000F7x $000F7x $000F7x $000F7x $000Fx $000Fx $000F 7w

Balance at 1st April 2016 733722 46,959 2,261 31,340 (217) 1276021 2,090,086
RZF-AENA-BER

Changes in equity for the year:
AEEVRESD

Transfer from capital reserve to retained profits 26(d)(i) - (4,087) - - 4087 -
HEARGEEREZREEA

Shares issued on exercise of share options 26(c)(ii) 40,524 - - (5,994) -
ATERREMRTRG

Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 11,739 -
DRAAATER RS

Final dividend approved in respect of the previous year  26(b)fii) - -

HEBRE-FERHERE

Interim dividend declared in respect

34530

11739

(2784000 (278400)

of the current year 26(b)(i) - - - - - (39,958) (39,958)
ERAFEZTHRE
Total comprehensive income for the year 9 - - - - (888) 341,030 340,142
AEE2ANRAE
Balance at 31st March 2017 774,246 42872 2261 37,085 (1,05 1302780 2,158,139

R=B-tF=A=t+-B&kH
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BA RS SRR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(a) Movements in components of equity (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

26 EXR - REERKRE @
RESARIM 2B E) (8
XA E] (#)

(a)

Share-based
Share Capital General compensation Hedging Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits
RipER
Bx  EXfE -RREE  BERE  HPRE  REEA
Note fifzF $000F7 $000Fx $000F7w $000F7m $000Fm $000F 7
Balance at 1st April 2017 774,246 42872 2,261 37,085 (1,05) 1,302,780 2,158,139
R-B-tEMA-REH
Changes in equity for the year:
REECEERY:
Transfer from capital reserve toretained profits 26(d)(i) - (4,087) - - - 4087 -
HEARGEREREEA
Shares issued on exercise of share options 26(c)(ii) 83,089 - - (13,485) - - 69,604
ATRBRENRTRG
Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 8273 - - 8,273
NROARNHERZRS
Final dividend approved in respect of the previous year  26(b)(ii) - - - - - (285831)  (285,831)
HEBRLE-FEZRARES
Special dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 26(b)(ii) - - - - - (44,299) (44,299)
HEBRE-FEZRARE
Interim dividend declared in respect
of the current year 26(b)(i) - - - - - (40,161) (40,161)
ERAFEZTHRE
Total comprehensive income for the year 9 - - - - 5,685 369,334 375,019
AEE2ANEAE
Balance at 31st March 2018 857,335 38,785 2261 31,873 4580 1305910 2,240,744

RZE-NEZB=1-R&kH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEHA - LB E)
26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(b) Dividends

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

26 EXR - REERKRE @
(b) BE
(i) ENFELGREFEAZKREFERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —

$’000 Tt $°000 F T

Interim dividend declared and paid of 3.8 cents per
ordinary share (2017: 3.8 cents per ordinary share)
ERREXZAHERE - SREBR 3.81L
(ZZ—t5F : §REBEKR3.81L)

Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period of 31.4 cents per ordinary share
(2017: 27.1 cents per ordinary share) (note 26(e))

RER A ERIR 2 RERE - SREBR 31414
(ZZ—tF : BREBER 27.11b) (FIFE (26(e))

Special dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period
of nil (2017: 4.2 cents per ordinary share (note 26(e))

RER A ERKZ5EIRERE
(Z2—tF : BREBER4.240) (FHFE(26(e))

40,161 39,958

332,520 285,349

- 44,224

372,681 369,531

The final dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period
arebasedon 1,058,979,500 ordinary shares(2017:1,052,947,500
ordinary shares), being the total number of issued shares at the
date of approval of the financial statements.

The final dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period
have not been recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.

NEHRBEBHR 2 ABRE IR ERBHRRE
AT 3TIRNEE1,058,979,500 REEMK (=&
—+t 5 1 1,052,947,500 REER) 515 -

RER B REKZAMRENER B L RERS
afE-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEHA - LB E)
26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued)

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

26 BEXR - FERRKRE @
(b) BRE (@)

(i) BRE—RIRFE  ERFAAER
N FEREREFBEAZENRE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF

$'000 F 7t $'000 7t

Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year of 27.1 cents per
ordinary share (2017: 26.5 cents per ordinary share)

BRLE—MHFE > IRFRAERZFZRBRE
-BREBR 271U (ZZ2—1F : BREBER 26.51L)

Special dividend in respect of the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year of 4.2 cents per
ordinary share (2017:nil)

BRE-BMHRFE TRFAMERZGTZ5EHIKRE
-BREBR42ML (ZF—1F : &)

285,831 278,400

44,299 -

330,130 278,400

The final and special dividends approved and paid during the
year are based on the total number of issued shares at the date of
Annual General Meeting.

196 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

RERIER W2 RAREFRRE DZRRE
FREEERCBRITROBEGE -



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(c) Share capital

(i) Issued share capital

2018
—E-N\F
Number of

shares
gng 4=
'000 FB%

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
ERTREHMZEREK -

At 1st April
RIEA—H

Shares issued on exercise of

1,051,692

share options 7,180

FAT AR AR FE T BT AR 4D

26 EXX - RERERE @)
(c) B
(i) BBTRK
2017
—E—+F
Number of
Amount
Gk

$000 Tt

shares
BRHEE
'000 Fh%

Amount

£5
$'000 F 7t

774,246 1,047,330 733,722

83,089 4,362 40,524

At 31st March
M=A=+—H

1,058,872

857,335 1,051,692 774,246

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(ii)  Shares issued under share option schemes

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
7,180,000 ordinary shares in the Company. The net consideration
of $69,604,000 was credited to share capital. $13,485,000 was
transferred from the share-based compensation reserve to the
share capital account in accordance with the policy set out in note

1(q)(iv).
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Capital reserve

As part of the restructuring of the Group in February 1994, the
Company disposed of a property to a former subsidiary and
consideration was received in the form of cash and another
property. A total gain, representing the difference between
the historical carrying value of the property disposed of and
the fair value of the consideration received, resulted from such
transaction.

EERZEFEEATURERAKERZKRE - AR
RARZARELHBREOEE-—ZRFEE -5
AABZRGEENS IREBERERRSE
Ao

(i) RIFERETZIRITZREG
FR - ARE 7,180,000 AL T EEIR 2 BR
FEEITE - R{EEFEEE 69,604,000 LI B HARR
7K © 13,485,000 7T 2 1R 1% T 5F 1(a)(iv) FT 8 2 B
KEROERFHERBBEARRE -

(d) REZHEERMAR

() BEXGEE
tFRAEER - ANNE= AET2EAZ B
o ARTB-HANBAAHE—EYE R
BEUARERE —BENES - AHURBEEZA
W 3% B 5 3 2 R S BRE L ERE R B A R
24
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)  Capital reserve (Continued)

The gain arising from this transaction was divided into realised
and unrealised portions in the ratio of the amount of cash and the
fair value of the property received (“the property”). The unrealised
gain was taken to capital reserve and is realised on depreciation
of the property. During the year, $4,087,000 (2017: $4,087,000)
was transferred from capital reserve to retained profits.

(ii)  Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve has been set up by Shenzhen Vitasoy,
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada, and Vitasoy Foshan in accordance with
regulations in the PRC and Macau respectively.

(iii) Other reserve
The other reserve arose from the equity transaction with non-
controlling interest of Shenzhen Vitasoy in 2011.

(iv) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments
used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition of
the hedged cash flow in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in note 1(t).

(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange
differences arising from translation of monetary items that in
substance form part of the net investment in subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(v).

(vi) Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Group or the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(q)(iv).

198 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

26 BEXR - FERRKRE @
(d) fFEEZHERAZE @

(i) BAREE (&)
ZERGELEZREZRERRAERDE(TY
R AREZEADBEBERARERIAD
ABRWBRC T AERRHE LR EWETE
R IR e WEMR 4087000 (ZF—tHF:
4,087,0007t) BEAREERERERF -

(i) BEFARE
BEREERRYIMEML - g GRPT) BRA
B R A LU 4 b 73 0 BUAR 5 o B R P 2 A AR R

S_Lo

(iii) R Aff#
HittRBEEERIECHFEZEREZN-F
——F2RERG

(iv) ¥+
WrREEERERSHRREME 1t FrEH
BRERBYHMRAZETBEBEIYIRERE
ZREREBEMZEHH TR A RERTFEE
ZEEREH -

(v) ERfFE
ELfAEESRESBUMNMBEZHB LT 26
BBEREEZMENEE L ZERBESTEUN
HWEZMBARBEBRIEREFHE MM 2E
HEELEZHEELRZE - 2R EBRBHE
Uv) FRE 2 BT HCRIREE ©

(vi) RHOBEERFGERE
BROERBERBBLESRTAEEIA QRS
ZBRHRETTEE 2 RITEBREZ QA RE
BEABIRETIRIBMEE 1(a)(iv) FRIER AR BE
B2 RERA 2 ST BERMIER -



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31st March 2018, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $1,308,171,000 (2017:
$1,305,041,000).

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed
a final dividend of 31.4 cents per ordinary share (2017: 27.1
cents per ordinary share), amounting to $332,520,000 (2017:
$285,349,000) (note 26(b)(i)) and the directors do not recommend
the payment of a special dividend in respect of the year ended
31 March 2018 (2017: 4.2 cents per ordinary share amounted
to $44,224,000 (note 26(b)(i)). These dividends have not been
recognised as liabilities at the end of reporting period.

(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For
this purpose, the Group defines debt as the total of bank loans
and obligations under finance leases, and adjusted capital as all
components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2018, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2017, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio below
30%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

26 X - BERERE @

(e) At IkfEE
R-ZE-NF=ZA=+—0  REBB(Q2TAK
Bl) 58 6 T2 FLETE 2 A 5 R F AR D B IR HE
BB A2 H#H1#%851,308,171,000 T (=2 —+
£ 1 1,305,041,000 7T) °

REHRAER EFERRBRIRESRZBER
314 (Z2—tF  EREBER27.114L) » #H
# 332,520,000 7T (=& —+4 : 285,349,000 7T)
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A=+ HBLEFEEZHEIRE (= —+t&F:
BREBR42ML - 885 44,2240007T) (FEE
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continved) 26 B - FERRE @

(f) Capital management (Continued) () EXEE 5
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31st March 2018 and 2017 RIE-NFR-_ZE—tF=A=+—BZEAE
was as follows: AR E AR ZNT ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F —
$'000 F 7t $000 ¥t
Current liabilities:
TEEE
Bank loans (note 21) 27,085 7,329
RITER (MFE21)
Obligations under finance leases (note 22) 921 1,221
MERE 2 &% (MEE22)
28,006 8,550
Non-current liabilities:
FREEE
Bank loans (note 21) - 200,000
RITER (FFE21)
Obligations under finance leases (note 22) - 909
MERE 2 &% (MEE22)
- 200,909
Total debt 28,006 209,459
BEH%E
Total equity 3,169,146 2,689,706
R
Less: Proposed dividends (note 26(b)(i)) (332,520) (329,573)
B ERIRE (FEEE 26(b)(i))
Adjusted capital 2,836,626 2,360,133
BRABRER
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 1% 9%
EEYHEARERLER

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to fulfilment REEETRITEEENGED  BREKEAER
of covenants which include maintaining the Group’s debt-to- ZEEHKRBREREREFNETEEUTR
adjusted capital ratio below a certain amount and maintaining the BAEEZFEELRERFNE TEEUL - &
Group’s net worth ratio above a certain amount. Except for the LA EFraish » RARREEFARE AT BEE
above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject FHNRHEINZ EARRE ©

to externally imposed capital requirements.
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposures to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(a) Creditrisk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally
based on the financial strength of the individual customer. In order
to effectively manage the credit risks associated with customers,
credit evaluations of customers are performed periodically. Trade
receivables are generally due within one to three months from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the end of
reporting period, 17.0% (2017: 16.8%) and 38.9% (2017: 38.5%)
of the total trade and other receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits are placed with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, and the management
consider the Group’s exposure to credit risk is low.

The Group’s exposure to the credit risk and its policies for
managing such risk were unchanged from the year ended 31st
March 2017. Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 17.

27 BiKREREEREMIAEZ
ARE

FEBE-REBBEPFEEE  RBES -
MERREBEAR AEEHE2ABRRBRASE
B EEZEARARA 2 IR SRR A
ERIFALIT -

(a) FERR
REE 2 EERBERREEURRR S EK
# o ERERAEERE MAARZEBES

REBFEZ R -

REE-REABRERNEFZMBEL G TEFT
BzEEM BERHEREETFZFEER
e AEBEEERFEEF 2EEBR - BURER
R—BRBEHERT-—ZEZ=ZEAREH - —KM
5 AKETEREFIGEMR -

rEEHEERE2EERBREESTRES ZERER
2 - RERA  AEEBRAEFRAEARFZ
R Bk FE W BR TR e LAt FE R 48 R 2 17.0%
(ZE—t5F:168%) K38I%(ZE—tF:
38.5%) °

AEBUERBEAESAEEEREERR 2
R o

AEBzRERBITERDERRERFEEF
ReerE  EEERRAEEERZFEER
B RE

BHBZ-Z—tHF=ZA=+—HLEFEEL XK
B i o2 = EE e & R EE AR R R 2 BUR R
HE - BREAKEBRUERA R H R E
ErRERBzE-SRRBEHNME17
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management for daily operation, including placing
short term cash deposits and raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. Cash surplus over operating needs are
closely monitored and managed by the Group’s central cash and
treasury management system. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term. The Group’s exposures to the liquidity risk and its policies
for managing such risk were unchanged from the year ended 31st
March 2017.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

BEREEREMIA
NAE @
(b) REBELE

FEBENKEEREEHAREFEZ2REE
B BEGHENRSERRBAEBRURETE
BMREER  EMEEBBAE THABE 2 RE
KE BIBERBAREESHE - BBAEEME
ZREEBHAEETRBERVHBHEERHNER
PEZERERE - AEBZBRIDEREZER
E2FERHBETEREZHEZER  UBRKE
EAFEZEESHBERETZSREEREIRG
RHAZES  UWEMEEHRRBZRBHESTE
E-HEHEZE—tF=ZA=+—RHLFE® "
FEEREREZRABESAREAEEEEERARKRZ
BRI E) -

27

TREVNWAEEZEHEERERB 2B TELN
HR - LORBEVARFREESKE (BERS
WAZR - MBI ERERBBITZANRAEZ
MEMAR) URAEEAEEEBEFEZREH
HAfE DA

2018
—E-\F

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

More than
1 year but
less than
PAETSS

Within

1 year or
on demand
—F R
RER
$°000 F T

Trade and other payables

EmEFER
$'000 F 7t

BRRTREER

More than
2 years but
less than

5 years
mE#
BRER
$'000 F T

Carrying
Total amount

— 5%

Mt
$'000 Tt

AREE
$'000 ¥t

(excluding receipt in advance) 1,351,498 - - 1,351,498 1,351,498
SRR R AR

(FBEfEFEWRIER)
Bank loans 27,130 - - 27,130 27,085
IRITER
Obligations under finance leases 943 - - 943 921
RIEHE 2 EXK

1,379,571 - - 1,379,571 1,379,504
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27 MBEREEREMTIAZ
values of financial instruments (continued) NAE @
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REELEE (@®)

2017
—E—tF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BHRRFTRESRE

More than More than

Within lyearbut 2 yearsbut
1year or less than less than Carrying
ondemand 2 years 5years amount

—FAR —F1#% MEE
RER EWFER BRER BRMEE
$000 F7t $000F;t $000FT $'000 7Tt

Trade and other payables

(excluding receipt in advance) 1,185,615 - - 1,185,615 1,185,615
PR BRFA R H A PRI 5K

(FEfEFEWRIR)
Bank loans 10,665 151,776 50,382 212,823 207,329
IRITERM
Obligations under finance leases 1,340 930 - 2,270 2,130
RIEHE 2 &%

1,197,620 152,706 50,382 1,400,708 1,395,074

2018 2017
—B-N\F —
Contractual undiscounted cash Contractual undiscounted cash
(outflow)/inflow (outflow)/inflow
ERRITHRAE ORE) ARA EHRITBRBE GRE) HRA
More than More than

Within 1 year but Within 1 year but

1 year or less than 1yearor less than
on demand 2 years Total ondemand 2 years
—FRZH —F# —FRAR —F#%
RER EREA 4t RER BEWERA
$'000 F;r $'000 ¥t $'000F;t $000Fsk $000FT

Derivatives settled gross:
SEETETEELE .

Forward foreign exchange
contracts (note 27(d))
EHMESH (MEEE27(d)
- Outflow (6,813) = (6,813) (19,621) = (19,621)

2=
— JIL

- Inflow 6,628 = 6,628 18,936 = 18,936
-mA
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27 MBEREEREMTIAZ
values of financial instruments (continued) NRE @
(c) Interestrate risk (c) FI=E B

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest- AEEZAERBETEREMERE - REBE
bearing borrowings. The Group monitors the level of its fixed rate REEERFEBEKTE - AEEHEREBERE
and variable rate borrowings. The Group’s interest rate profile as ZREERERTE()E ©

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIEREHR
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s THRAVNANEBHNHWEBRERERB Z2RNEE
interest-bearing borrowings at the end of the reporting period: e
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E2—+tF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BRAI= x| BRAI= G
$000 ¥t % $000 F it
Fixed rate borrowings:
FEEEE -
Obligations under finance leases 7.50 921 7.50 2,130
RERE 2 EH
Bank loans - - 5.64 7,329
IRITER
921 9,459
Variable rate borrowings:
FEREE
Bank loans 3.00 27,085 1.64 200,000
IRITER
Total borrowings 28,006 209,459
BEREH
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits by approximately
$190,000 (2017: $1,670,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits in respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period. The impact on the Group’s profit after taxation and
retained profits is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense of such a change in interest rates. Management assumed
that certaininterest-bearing borrowings maturing during the next
reporting period will be rolled over upon the maturing for daily
operation purposes.

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its debt obligation. The fixed rate
instruments of the Group are insensitive to any change in market
interest rate. A change in interest rate at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.

The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31st March 2017.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and borrowings which give rise to receivables, payables,
cash balances and obligations under finance leases that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars (“USD”), Australian dollars (“AUD”), Singapore
dollars (“SGD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

27 BXEREENRESMT A
NRE @
(c) FI=mEBE (@)

(i) BBMEDHT
AZE-N\F=ZA=+—8 AR EEE
tHTHR-EEREE EAEHEMTEBREE
REFFTEZERT  *EERHRBEFRERE R
FMAEE LR,/ H04 190,000 T (ZF—+4F :
1,670,000 7T) °

LR MBS AEERERBFE2FH
NETASIFAEEHKRRSREN REAR 2R
BEEFRRBGEF 2 BREE) - REBRRBLIE
BENRFREBNAZRE  DRANZEBHHTE
Xz FEZEMT - EEERRNT — AR
SHERN2E THEEERIBRGERBUE
REEEZA -

REEYSEGEMESBERDIAEFELTA
B BASETECERTESRT AR TARE
BER - AEEZELRTAHTAT ST EEH
YRR - EFHRA 2R REHW L EERS -

BE-ZtF=-A=1T-HLEFEZIWR
SRARE AL AEET -

(d) E¥ER
FEEHREzEYEREIERBEEEREEM
EEZRUR - BN  REEHEREREZ
&% ZSEBNEINE (IRZ AP ERE 2
BREBLUINZES) fHE EEEEARZER
FERER([Ex]) - Bx ([Br]) Kx
(M) RAR®E (AR%]) -
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”), all sales and purchases are denominated in either HKD
or USD, except for certain transactions with group entities and
purchases that are denominated in AUD, SGD and RMB. Given
the HKD is pegged to the USD, management does not expect that
there will be any significant currency risk associated with such
USD denominated transactions.

For group entities whose functional currency is a currency
other than HKD, except for certain sales and transactions with
group entities and certain borrowings from group entities that
are denominated in HKD, most of the other transactions are
denominated in their functional currencies.

The Group’s policies for managing such risk were unchanged
from the year ended 31st March 2017. During the year ended
31st March 2018, the Group uses bank balances to hedge its
currency risk arising from the purchase of raw materials that are
denominated in foreign currency and classifies these as cash flow
hedges as set out in note 18(a).

The Group has also uses forward exchange contracts to manage
its currency risks.

Changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts that
economically hedge monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss. The net
fair value of forward exchange contracts used by the Group as
economic hedges of monetary assets and liabilities denominatedin
foreign currencies at 31st March 2018 was liabilities of $181,000
(2017: $618,000), recognised as derivative financial instruments.

In respect of other trade receivables and payables denominated in
foreign currencies, the company ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s significant exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKD, translated using the spot rates at the year
end date. Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the
Group’s presentation currency, the exposure arising from the
borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries and the bank balances that
are designated as a hedge of the Group’s foreign currency risk
of highly probable forecast transactions or committed future
transactions are excluded.

BEREEREMIA
NAE @
(d) E¥mEp @)

(i) AEEzZEERR
TRAVAREERERAUEHRER 2 LY
PN EBHEZCRREENRERELEZE
REBRR FEERBAESBEDIRFERZ
EERBEREBEEZSIZA - REFBUIN
HEMB AR Y BERRASEE Z2FIEEM
EXCEE REEEERZEE (EEBRR
MEBARZREFR - 2@k MURiE
EREHPARERPRAIEET ZRE RO &
RETZARRR G 2 IMNERBRZRITEFLTE
EEA °

27

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)

MNERRAR (NERTE)

2018 2017
—E-)\F “E-tE
SGD HKD RMB AUD UsD SGD HKD RMB
$ il ARH A ESD o i ARE
$000Fx $000Fx $000Fxm $000Fx $000Fm $000F:m  $000FT  $000Fm
Cash and bank deposits 216,359 - 1,699 92,991 7 48199 - 8326 74,908 6
RERBAER
Amount due from/{to) group companies 7,551 1,336 9,129 7,596 7273 10404 719 (160,112) 4914 7,160
B/ (BfY) SEREATHE
Trade and other receivables 5 - - - - - - - - -
ERERRE RN
Trade and other payables (27.268) (365) - (3,445) (230) (26,328) (40) - (6,405) (92)
EABRREMERS
Gross exposure arising from
recognised assets and liabilities 196,694 971 10,828 97,142 7,050 32,275 679 (151,786) 73417 7074
ERREERBBEE ZRREAELE
Notional amount of forward exchange
contracts used as economic hedges - - - - (6,813) - - - - (19.621)
RSB RENER N7 08
Net exposure arising from
recognised assets and liabilities 196,694 971 10,828 97,142 27 32275 679 (151,786) 73417 (12,547)

BEREERRREL L ARAERE
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27 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group entities have
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the

27 BHEABREEREMIAEZ

NRE @

(d) E¥EpE @)
(i) BBEDHT

HKD and the USD would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the USD against other currencies.

(

usD

pi
BT

SGD
KT

HKD
B

2018

—B-N\fF

Increase/
decrease)
in foreign

exchange

rates

B &
R
(F&)

5%
(5)%

5%
(5)%

5%
(5)%

5%
(5)%

5%
(5)%

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
after taxation
and retained
profits

MR BRA
R AR T
i
()
$'000 F 7t

(79)
79

41
(41)

482
(482)

3,974
(3,974)

13
(13)

TRITREHAASESERAHEARR 2
EXNZAHREHTEEHAEERRRER
RREEF AN EE (RRAEE R TS
BREZESTE) - BltmE - DRRBEESE
TRBEERTERAETL HtE Y 2 EAEE
ERRMZINEATE -

2017
—E2—+tF

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in foreign after taxation
exchange and retained
rates profits
BB IEF

= RARE & F
EH tH
(&) (T &)
$'000 F T

5% (35)

(5)% 35

5% 28

(5)% (28)
5% (7,773)

(5)% 7,773

5% 2,991
(5)% (2,991)
5% (533)

(5)% 533
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after taxation measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements
of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation
currency, the exposure arising from the borrowings from group
entities that in substance form part of the net investment in
subsidiaries and the bank balances that are designated as a hedge
of the Group’s foreign currency risk of highly probable forecast
transactions or committed future transactions. The analysis has
been performed on the same basis for the year ended 31st March
2017.

(e) Fair value measurement
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
consolidated financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

27 BXEREENRESMT A
NRE @
(d) E¥mEp @)

(i) SBMDH (H)
EREBZAMERBETRAEESBERUEAY
REERTE 2RRRERN  BEHRABTZER
BESBEUE2R 2 BRNKTE -

PRSI ERREREBEARENTEAE
ERERAFESAREEHEMNER S 2ZEE
BITAR BFAKEQATABUERARERAZ
WEEEB UMD ERTHEZBARKEWER - 2
MABREEREEBIIMNEENE D B < P HHR
RAAEEZ2FEEMELE ZEZH  RAKH
BERCEE (BEBRRHNBARZREFEZ
—800) MELZER - UREERELEPARE
EEARAEET 2R ERNEEHET 2 AR
BRNERRRITEF BE-ZT—tF=A
=+ —BLFEZINHRBEREEET -

(e) AREFE
() BAAEBTEZETHEERER
DRERE

TREJIEHRERAFEAEBRFRS ST
AQRE UnBR(EBMHRELER) F13
S AREAEIIREZZROAERE - &
RAEFEBDEZERNESENTRER AR
Rz BBz TBEEERERMRERE

- B-RhE: EERS-REARE (AR
AAERRBREEREENERTHE ZRE
AERE) FFBZDRE -
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is measured using
Level 2 inputs. The fair value is determined by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the current spot rate.
The discount rate used is derived from the relevant government
yield curve as at the end of the reporting period plus an adequate
constant credit spread.

(ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

All other financial instruments of the Group carried at costs or
amortised costs are not materially different from their fair values
as at 31st March 2018 and 2017.

28 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31st March 2018 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

27 BiRBEEEREMIAZ
NRE @

AN
(e) DREFE (@)
(i) BARBFEZZHEEREE (#)

DAERE (#)

- BDHME ERSE-RWARE (BIREE
ERE - Rz UEERRARE) BXREH
ERTUEEHARBBHEZROAE T
IBEBABBRETSHE cBARE -

- BZRMEE: ERAEXATUBREARE

FFEZARE -

EHMNESH 2 AAETRBE R ABES
B UEBMREANEMERRIIRRENHE
REE - RAZBRRZNERA 2 BBRAF
WamREAR - SNEHZEERESESH -

(i) WHBEAIAESERZEMTAZAAE

REZZB-N\ERZZ-—LHF=A=1+—-0 &
BAAHMERARBERAT Rz SR T AR
HAARELBERER -

28 H&iE

(@) R=FT-NF=ZA=+—-0 KEHBRE
RPBEBZRNEREFRNT ¢

2018 2017

—FE-NF —E—tF

$'000 Tt $'000 Tt

Contracted for 256,082 101,993

[EHES)

Authorised but not contracted for 1,806,128 448,555
EREERTH

2,062,210 550,548

As at 31st March 2018, the Group is committed to certain
contracts for the acquisition and construction of plant, machinery
and buildings.
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28 Commitments (Continued)

(b) The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint
venture not included above are as follows:

28 EIE @)
(b) FEHALXREBMELESEATZER
REWT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

$'000 F 7t $000 Tt

Contracted for 25,216 -

[EHES)

Authorised but not contracted for 25,181 -
EREERTY

50,397 -

(C) At 31st March 2018, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

() R=EB—NE=ZRA=1+—RH REFTAMH
MeKEHETHEEN 2RERENRK

MW -

2018 2017
—F-N\F — L

Factory Factory

machinery machinery

and and

Properties equipment Properties equipment

TRR#sEs TRR#eEs

L/ES k&G YE3 RFE

$'000 Tt $'000 Tt $'000 F T $'000 F 7t

Within one year 140,857 2,175 97,126 3,196
—FR

After one year but within five years 204,564 1,138 76,550 1,106

—FRERFR

After five years 55,867 - 18,780 -
hFE

401,288 &1l 192,456 4,302

The Group leases a number of properties and items of factory
machinery and equipment under operating leases. The leases run
for an initial period of one to six years, with an option to renew
each lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated.

Some of the leases of the Group include contingent rentals
determinable at certain fixed rates on the turnover of the relevant
concessions in periods in which the leases relate to.

FAEERBEEHEEASEAMERZH T KK
BRRE ZSHENSI /P —FEAF - ALH
BRENRSHERERRBEED  ERABHRRS
AEHEE °

AEERHAET RZAR D RBURAEHE
ZEXBzETEELRBEE 2RAEE -
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29 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
inthese financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with related parties

(i)  The products of the Group are distributed in Australia by a
related party (non-controlling interests of the Company’s
subsidiary) and a management fee is charged for the
provision of services. The management fee is calculated
based on a pre-determined percentage of the gross sales of
products distributed by the related party. Total management
fees charged by the related party for the year amounted
to $25,202,000 (2017: $23,838,000). The amount due
to the related party as at 31st March 2018 amounted to
$6,052,000 (2017: $5,852,000).

(i) On 29th July 2013, the Group entered into a distribution
agreement with a related party (non-controlling interests
of the Company’s subsidiaries) in New Zealand pursuant to
which the related party agreed to distribute the products of
the Group in New Zealand. A management fee is charged for
the provision of services. The management fee is calculated
based on a pre-determined percentage of the gross
sales of products distributed by the related party. Total
management fee charged by the related party for the year
amounted to $6,492,000 (2017: $5,895,000). The amount
due to the related party as at 31st March 2018 amounted to
$1,620,000 (2017: $1,446,000).

(iii) The Group has entered into a distribution agreement with a
joint venture in the Philippines pursuant to which the Group
agreed to supply soy related beverages to the joint venture.
Total sales to the joint venture for the year amounted to
$30,610,000 (2017: Nil). The amount due from the joint
venture as at 31st March 2018 amounted to $2,487,000
(2017: Nil).

The related party transactions in respect of (i) and (ii) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However they are exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

29 EXBAEALRS
BREHBRESERBELRS RESIN AL
BRI TEABMEALRS ©

(a) BEHREEALZRS

(i) HAEBzEMBH—SBEEAL (KQTNE
NAZIEEBER) RBMNDEE ZAL
RELEREUDEEER BEEBERRZ
BEALHHERHERABEZEEEER
DHFE TR ZHAEATHRZERE
EHEHEH25202000T (ZE—t4F:
23,838,0007T) e R=E—NFE=ZA=+—
BN FZEEA L ZFIES 6,052,0007T
(ZZ—+% :5852,0007T) °

(i) R=-ZE—Z=FtA=-+NH FTEHEHE—
EZEEALT (RAFIME LR ZIERE
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ZBEEATRERT AR EARECE
Mo ZHAEAIHRIRHREBNERSE
A - EEBARZBEEATIHEEREE
%@%EZ%E%FEE’\&#% FR o %

BATHWEZEEBRERAESHA6,492,0007T
(ZZ—+% :58950007T) c R=ZZ—N
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(i) AEECH-REREEE QT
DEHE B AEEREOZEE
FAHERSZAEBEERR - FR mszé*"
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29 Material related party transactions
(Continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as disclosed
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in

note 8, is as follows:

29 EXBEALIRS @)

(b) AREBAEBZME
FEBBRERABIHS (BREME7RE
EAARESIM 2 REARMES B EE
FREHEEXNZRE) MO

Short-term employee benefits 36,430 38,604
EHESER
Post-employment benefits 1,285 1,113
B E R
Equity compensation benefits 8,115 11,387
RAFHERR

45,830 51,104

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

BMEEFT A TETRAI(RHEESD)) °
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30 Company-level statement of financial

position

2018

—E—)\F

Note fffz $'000 Tt $'000 ¥t

$'000 F 7t

30 ATFEBMEZMEAMRR T

2017
—E—tF
$000 F 7T

Non-current assets
FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment
M~ BERRE

- Investment properties

- REM=E

- Other property, plant and equipment

- Hib¥) 2 - BB RRB

Interest in subsidiaries

KRB AR 2 s

Deposits for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

BENXE  BERREZITZ

Current assets

REEE

Inventories

78

Trade and other receivables
JE AT B R B2 L At FE LK
Amounts due from subsidiaries
FE U B B A R FRIE
Current tax recoverable

FE R B 1R

Cash and bank deposits
RERBITHERK

Current liabilities

RENBE

Trade and other payables
FES BRI H At R K
Amounts due to subsidiaries
FEAS B A R FRIE
Current tax payable

PR RAHE

Net current assets
BREEE
Total assets less current liabilities

REERRBRE

4,088

436,030

440,118

987,354

1,283

1,428,755
163,414
464,114
123,145
2,329
683,485
1,436,487
496,279
65,466
561,745

874,742

2,303,497

4,613

414,773

419,386

961,532

190

1,381,108
182,079
435,239
276,175
664,744
1,558,237
446,202
60,139
11,231
517,572

1,040,665

2,421,773
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30 Company-level statement of financial 30 AREHZMBEARRE @
position (Continued)

2018 2017
—B—N\F =B+

Note fffz $'000 Tt $'000 ¥t $'000 7t $'000 F 7t

Non-current liabilities

FERBEE
Bank loans - 200,000

RITER
Employee retirement benefit liabilities 12,715 18,134
EERKENERE
Deferred tax liabilities 50,038 45,500
EEBIEEE
62,753 263,634

NET ASSETS 2,240,744 2,158,139
FEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

BEXR G

Share capital 26(a) 857,335 774,246
[N

Reserves 1,383,409 1,383,893
(G

TOTAL EQUITY 2,240,744 2,158,139
ERBH

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on REZB-NERA+HAEESSHETRER

15th June 2018. 1 o

Winston Yau-lai LO Roberto GUIDETTI
ERE FEEE

Director Director

EE EZE
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31 Non-adjusting events after the
reporting period

Saved as disclosed elsewhere to these consolidated financial
statements, the following are significant events after the date of
statement of financial position entered into by the Group.

(a) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in
note 26(b)(i).

(b) On 6th June 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into an Assignment of State-owned Land Use
Right Agreement to purchase a piece of land in Changping
Town, Dongguan City of Guangdong Province in Mainland
China to construct a production plant, at a consideration of
approximately RMB97.5 million (net of value-added tax). The
transaction is expected to be completed in September 2018.
The consideration formed part of the capital commitments
as at 31st March 2018 as set out in note 28(a).

32 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2018

Uptothedateofissue of thesefinancial statements, the HKICPA has
issued anumber of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2018 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

31 BAFEHARCERARER

BRREEEMBHRESZEWEEI  NEERY
Bk R AR L 2 BERBHUT

(a) EBFNERAREBRERBRE - E—
B ERMIEE 26(b)() P ©

(b) RZE-—NERAXRB AEE-B2E
MEBAR L —mEEELALFERER
BEE UBE-—RBURPEAERE
EETE LA HMNEREERE A
BB AR 97,500,000 7T (S IR E
B) o REFHER=Z—NELATK °
ZREAMT28() TER=E—N\F=A
=+ —BzEREEN IS -

32 EHEMEHAREBEEZE=-ZF—N
FZA=Z+—BHLFEERZ
15T - FE]ERIR R
A 2

BEZEMBBRETEZH  BESHMAEE

EHEE—E-\F=A=+—HILFEHKRE

B TEEZEVBRKREA ZBIEBET ~ #35]

HARDE EDPEETIURERAEEER2

CHIRE R 2 X

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

R BB
Z BB
ZERHBEEX

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments _ 1 January 2018
(BB REER) FFK 2@ T A —E-NE—F—H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
(BRYBEREER) B 155K [FEFEHINA S —Z-N\E—F—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment:

Classification gnd measurement of share-basgd payment transactions 1 January 2018
(BBEIEREER) 5295 [ LUEHBEB 2113 -

UG RAIMEBER RG22 ERE | 2155T —E-)\¥—A—H
Amend ments to HKAS 40, /nyestmentprogerty: Transfer\s of investment property 1 January 2018
(EBGTHER) F405% [ KREYXE EEREYHE | 2185 —Z-N\E—F—H
HK(IFRIC)22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018
B8 (FRUBRERBEESR) B2 [IMEXZRAMTE] —ZE-N\E—A—H
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
(BBUBKREEN) F 1655 [HE —Z-hE—A—H
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
E% (ARUBRERBESR) £ 235 [ FEREE 2 TREM —E-RFE—F-§
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32 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2018 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of
the expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15,
the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group, and further impacts
may be identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ended 30th
September 2018.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, including
the measurement of impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the Group has identified impairment of financial
assets to be an area that may be affected by the adoption of
HKFRS 9.

The newimpairment model inHKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model. Under
the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for
a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and measure expected
credit losses as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may resultin an earlier
recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade receivables
and other financial assets. However, a more detailed analysis is
required to determine the extent of the impact.

32 EEMERAREZE=ZZ—N
FZA=1+—HLEFEENZ
1£3] - ] ERIRRETREE
B2 5 E (m)

75 82 B IF ST 3 2 1 5T I 3 5T 2 ) 98 B A B

DREE S HE - KEFEST BT ER Y

=T HATEEYECNBREBREALE -

ERMERTE Y E SHERT X0 - B

BB RS RS IR R BB HEER S

155 2 AT AT - MR A 2 i

PENBEBAEEREZEH  BILEDSRM

ZEER% T ERYETEEFFRE - TREE

EREBRAEESE—E—N\ENA=THL

BB 2 b ER A RS R 25 AR AT AL B E A B/ o

(BRMBREER) BN /24T

A/

(BBUBRELED) BIRKMREBEHTA
SRECREEL(EBETTER) 395 [£
BTA: #ZRE ] (BEBUBHRELA) E9
TSI AT ERTESRHEEZHRE  BIEHE
EREERERYISHER - Z—FHE (&
BMBRELER) 5 9RMABLERIELE (B
BETTER) FRERAEARKLEASH
TEREREEIENREZRE - RENISF
i REBECKERE ERER RS AT REE R
(BRBMBHELER) FIRMIATE 2805 -

(BB HMEER) 5B IR ZHMERLL ]
HMEEEE | BXAMA(EBSTER) E395%
ZIBEELEBREIEX - REAHEFEBER
X HETBERERIBESENREFRES
oMk —HERASEREEFRERL
ERT-EAZENGEERRIUEAFHAZ
BEHEERRE  HETEE FERFRAME -
WEFEEEX TRESRERRIAGRAREE
BWERRREMEREEZFERE - AT - BE
FEIRERETEFMZOM -
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32 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the requirements
relating to measuring and recognising ineffectiveness under
HKAS 39. However, greater flexibility has been introduced to
the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting. The
Group preliminarily assesses that its current hedge relationships
will qualify as continuing hedges upon the adoption of HKFRS
9 and therefore it expects that the accounting for its hedging
relationships will not be significantly impacted.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes acomprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace
the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts. The Group is currently
assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its financial
statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group has
identified the following area which may be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note
1(u). Currently, revenue arising from the provision of services is
recognised over time, whereas revenue from the sale of goods is
generally recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership
have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the contract.
HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of the promised
good or service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(@)  When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the
entity performs;

2 18 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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32 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example work in progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced,;

()  When the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any
of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownershipis only one of the indicators that will be considered in
determining when the transfer of control occurs.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward approach
to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control approach, it
is possible that once the Group adopts HKFRS 15 some of the
Group’s contracts that are currently recognised at a point in time
may meet the HKFRS 15 criteria for revenue recognition over
time. This will depend on the terms of the sales contract and the
enforceability of any specific performance clauses in that contract,
which may vary dependingonthejurisdictioninwhich the contract
would be enforced. It is also possible that for the remainder of the
Group’s contracts the point in time when revenue is recognised
may be earlier or later than under the current accounting policy.
The Group has assessed the above criteria and concluded that the
new revenue standard is not likely to have significant impact on
how it recognises the Group’s contracts.

32 EEMERAREZE=ZZ—N
FZA=1+—HLEFEENZ
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

32 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(j)(iii), currently the Group classifies leases
into operating leases.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under alease. However,
once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in asimilar way to current
finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the present
value of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not
to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in
which case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases for properties which are currently classified as operating leases.
The application of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period
of the lease. As disclosed in note 28(c), at 31 March 2018 the Group’s
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to $401,288,000 and $3,313,000 for properties and
other assets respectively, part of which is payable either between 1
and 5 years after the reporting date or in more than 5 years. Some of
these amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine
the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating lease
commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for any leases
entered into or terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS
16 and the effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The Group does not intend to adopt this standard
before the effective date.
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Five Year Summary

B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LUB#EEHE)

2017 2015 2014
—B—+tF TN —2-HF —E-IF
$000 F 7t 7T $000 F 7t $000 Tt
Results
ES
Revenue 6,464,525 5,406,090 5,551,898 5,051,827 4,493,885
PN
Profit from operations 822,248 848,034 603,352 529,264 469,669
FEg e
Finance costs (1,700) (3,730) (4,044) (5,655) (13,068)
R R AN
Share of losses of joint venture (17,814) (627) - - -
it &N TER
Profit before taxation 802,734 843,677 599,308 523,609 456,601
BRF AT R
Income tax (160,679) (190,383) (34,064) (114,888) (115,845)
Fris®t
Profit for the year 642,055 653,294 565,244 408,721 340,756
IREEEF
Attributable to:
TH AL :
- Equity shareholders of
the Company 585,774 618,372 530,616 372,079 306,693
- RATREFEA
- Non-controlling interests 56,281 34,922 34,628 36,642 34,063
- FFIEpRRE R
Profit for the year 642,055 653,294 565,244 408,721 340,756
REE A
Assets and liabilities
EEREE
Property, plant and equipment 2,348,875 2,053,276 2,186,972 1,853,517 1,566,688
M BERRE
Other non-current assets 173,144 97,027 144,082 77,016 94,304
HibERBEE
Net current assets 737,116 823,069 383,392 304,702 443,197
BREBEE
Total assets less current
liabilities 3,259,135 2,973,372 2,714,446 2,235,235 2,104,189
HEERREBERE
Non-current liabilities (89,989) (283,666) (302,583) (110,563) (146,877)
FRBEE
NET ASSETS 3,169,146 2,689,706 2,411,863 2,124,672 1,957,312
FEE
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Five Year Summary
hFENBREE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LUB#EEHE)

Capital and reserves

EXR MR

Share capital
[ &N
Reserves

e

857,335

2,052,422

2017

—2—t%F
$'000 F T

774,246

1,697,123

733,722

1,466,013

2015
—s-H%E
$'000 Tt

677,694

1,241,391

2014
—z-—mF
$'000 F T

655,299

1,094,362

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company

RATRERE A
FEfh R AR

Non-controlling interests

FFIER RS

2,909,757

259,389

2,471,369

218,337

2,199,735

212,128

1,919,085

205,587

1,749,661

207,651

TOTAL EQUITY

3,169,146

2,689,706

2,411,863

2,124,672

1,957,312

Earnings per share
BREF

- Basic

- B K

- Diluted

-3

55.5 centsfil|

55.0 cents fili

58.9 cents Al

58.4 cents il

50.9 cents Al

50.4 cents ili

35.9 cents Al

35.5 cents il

29.8 cents Al

29.4 centsl
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